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City Council 
 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
6911 No. 3 Road 

Monday, May 14, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

 
CNCL 
Pg. # 

ITEM  

 
  

MINUTES 
 
 1. Motion to adopt: 

  (1) the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Monday, April 
23, 2012 (distributed previously); and 

CNCL-7  (2) the minutes of the Special Council Meeting held on Tuesday, May 8, 
2012; and 

CNCL-9  to receive for information the Metro Vancouver ‘Board in Brief’ dated 
Friday, April 27, 2012. 

 

 
  

AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS 
 
  

PRESENTATION 
CNCL-13  Mark Gosse, Chair, Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee, to present 

the Committee’s 2011 Annual Report.  

 
  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
 2. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on 

agenda items. 
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 3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items. 

  (PLEASE NOTE THAT FOR LEGAL REASONS, DELEGATIONS 
ARE NOT PERMITTED ON ZONING OR OCP AMENDMENT 
BYLAWS WHICH ARE TO BE ADOPTED; OR ON DEVELOPMENT 
PERMITS/DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMITS - ITEM NO. 10.) 

 
 4. Motion to rise and report. 

 

 
  

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION 
 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 

  (PLEASE NOTE THAT ITEMS APPEARING ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA WHICH PRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR 
COUNCIL MEMBERS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY.) 

 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA HIGHLIGHTS 

   Receipt of Committee minutes 

   2011 Consolidated Financial Statements 

   Land use applications for first reading (to be further considered at the 
Public Hearing on Monday, June 18, 2012): 

    6471 Blundell – Rezone from (RS1/E) to (RCH) (Chen Design 
Studio – applicant) 

    11340 Williams Road – Rezone from (RS1/E) to (RC2) (Khalid 
Hasan – applicant) 

 
 5. Motion to adopt Items 6 through 9 by general consent. 
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 6. COMMITTEE MINUTES
 

  That the minutes of: 

CNCL-31  (1) the Finance Committee meeting held on Monday, May 7, 2012; and 

CNCL-33  (2) the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday, May 8, 2012; 

  be received for information. 

 

 
 7. 2011 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(File Ref. No.:  ) (REDMS No.3514791) 

CNCL-35  See Page CNCL-35 for full report 

  FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That the City’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 be approved. 

 

 
 8. APPLICATION BY XI CHEN (CHEN DESIGN STUDIO) FOR 

REZONING AT 6471 BLUNDELL ROAD FROM SINGLE 
DETACHED (RS1/E) TO COACH HOUSES (RCH) 
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-8893, RZ 12-600991) (REDMS No. 3504576) 

CNCL-99  See Page CNCL-99 for full report 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That Bylaw No. 8893, for the rezoning of 6471 Blundell Road from “Single 
Detached (RS1/E)” to “Coach Houses (RCH)”, be introduced and given 
first reading. 

 

 
 9. APPLICATION BY KHALID HASAN FOR REZONING AT 11340 

WILLIAMS ROAD FROM SINGLE DETACHED (RS1/E) TO 
COMPACT SINGLE DETACHED (RC2) 
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-8895, RZ 10-522194) (REDMS No. 3508396) 

CNCL-113  See Page CNCL-113 for full report 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That Bylaw No. 8895, for the rezoning of 11340 Williams Road from 
“Single Detached (RS1/E)” to “Compact Single Detached (RC2)”, be 
introduced and given first reading. 

 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 
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  *********************** 

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

*********************** 
 
 

  NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
  

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

NEW BUSINESS 

 
 
  

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION 
 

CNCL-127  Child Care Operating Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 8877 
Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-129  Affordable Housing Operating Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 8206, 

Amendment Bylaw No. 8883 
Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 
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CNCL-131  Annual Property Tax Rates Bylaw No. 8885 

Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-135  Alexandra District Energy Utility Bylaw No. 8641, Amendment Bylaw No. 

8892 
Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-137  Additional Hotel Room Tax Imposition, Bylaw No. 8894 

Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-139  Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 8615 

(7411 & 7431 Moffatt Road, RZ 08-449233)  
Opposed at 1st Reading – None. 
Opposed at 2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-141  Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 8796 

(9640/9660 Seacote Road, RZ 11-572975)  
Opposed at 1st Reading – None. 
Opposed at 2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
CNCL-143  Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 8843 

(7600 Garden City Road, RZ 11-565948)  
Opposed at 1st Reading – None. 
Opposed at 2nd/3rd Readings – None. 
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DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL 

 
 10. RECOMMENDATION 

  See DPP Plan Package (distributed separately) for full hardcopy plans 

CNCL-145 
 (1) That the minutes of the Development Permit Panel meetings held on 

Wednesday, April 11, 2012, and Wednesday, April 25, 2012, and the 
Chair’s report for the Development Permit Panel meetings held on 
October 13, 2010 and October 27, 2010, be received for information; 
and 

CNCL-167 

  (2) That the recommendations of the Panel to authorize the issuance of a 
Development Permit (DP 07-363924) for the property at 7411 and 
7431 Moffatt Road, be endorsed, and the Permits so issued. 

 

 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



Time: 

Place: 

Present: 

Absent: 

City of 
Richmond 

4:00 p.m. 

Special Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 8, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
CoUncillor Chak Au 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Evelina Halsey·Brandt 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 
Councillor Linda McPhai l 
Councillor Harold Steves 

Corporate Officer - David Weber 

Councillor Linda Barnes 

Minutes 

Call to Order: Mayor Brodie called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Mayor Brodie recessed the meeting at 4:01 p.m. 

Mayor Brodie reconvened the meeting at 4:52 p.m. 

RES NO. ITEM 

SP 1213-1 

I. ADDITIONAL HOTEL ROOM TAX BYLAWS 
(File Ref. No.: ) (REDMS No.) 

It was moved and seconded 
(1) That tlrird reading 0/ Additional Hotel Room Tax Imposition Bylaw 

No. 8894 be rescinded; 

(2) Tltat Additional Hotel Room Tax Imposition Bylaw No. 8894 be 
amended by deleting sectiOll 3 and substituting there/ore the 
following: 

I. 
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City of 
Richmond 

Special Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 8, 2012 

Minutes 

RES NO. ITEM 

SPI2/3-2 

"3. The purposes for wllich the amount paid to lite City of 
Ric/rmond out o/the I'evellue collected/rom tire lax to be imposed 
u"der the provij'iol1s of lite regulation referred to ill j'ectioll 1 0/ 
this Bylaw may be expellded are: 

(a) tourism marketing, programs and projecu'; alld 

(b) sport !rostillg marketillg, programs alld projects." 

(3) That Additional Hotel Room Tax Impositioll By/aw No. 8894 be give" 
,hi,d readillg as amellded 011 this day; 

(4) Thai eaclt of the following bylaws (curreutly sittillg at third readillg), 
be abandolled: 

(a) Additional Hotel Room Tax Levy Bylaw No. 6817, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 8897j 

(b) Additional Hotel Room Tax Impositioll Bylaw No. 8471, 
Am endment Bylaw N o. 8899; and 

(c) Additional Hotel Room Tax Imposition Bylaw No. 7810, 
Amendment .Bylaw No. 8898. 

CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
That tire meetillg adjoliTII (4:56 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of the 
Council of the City of Richmond held on 
Tuesday, May 8, 2012. 

Mayor (Malcolm D. Brodie) Corporate Officer (David Weber) 

2. 
3529351 
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SUSTAINABLE REGION INITIATIVE. • • TURNING IDEAS INTO ACTION 

Board in Brief 
For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, April 27, 2012 

Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material 
relating to any of the following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. 

For more information, please contact either: 
Bill Morrell, 604-451-6107, BiII.Morrell@metrovancouver.org or 
Glenn Bohn, 604-451-6697, Glenn.Bohn@metrovancouver.orq 

Greater Vancouver Regional District 

Concerns with the Health Canada November 2011 Draft Guideline titled 
"Turbidity in Drinking Water" 

Approved 

Metro Vancouver is now constructing a $110 million upgrade of water treatment at its Coquitlam 
source by adding ultraviolet light treatment. If a turbidity guideline proposed by Health Canada is 
implemented by provincial health authorities, Metro Vancouver may be required to add filtration 
treatment at Coquitlam, at an estimated cost of $300 million. 

According to a staff report, the proposed Health Canada guidelines have not been scientifically 
justified; are more stringent than regulations in other parts of the world , including regulations in 
the United States; and are not justified by any assessment of cost versus benefit. 

The Board approved a resolution that the Board Chair: 
Together with the Utilities Committee Chair, write to Health Canada expressing Metro 
Vancouver's concerns regarding proposed changes to turbidity guideline; 
The 2003 Turbidity Guideline remain unchanged; or alternatively, 
The November 2011 draft turbidity guideline be revised to be consistent with regulations 
in other countries, and that it include a cost benefit analysis of any proposed changes 
from the 2003 Turbidity Guideline, and that a new round of public consultation be 
undertaken; and 

Direct staff to forward a copy of the correspondence to the British Columbia Medical Health 
Authorities serving the Metro Vancouver region for distribution to local Medical Health Officers. 

Draft Audited 2011 Financial Statements Approved 

The Board of Directors approved a 2011 budget with a $607.6 million operating budget and 
$304 million capital budget. 

~. metro 
vancouver wwwmetrovancouver.org 
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An independent audit of 201 1 financial statements confirms that regional district expenditures 
are $47 million less (or about five per cent less) than the Board-authorized budget. 
The main factors contributing to this surplus position are unexpected and often unavoidable 
deferrals of some construction projects and lower-than-budgeted debt costs in water and liquid 
waste. Unfilled staff positions and higher-than-projected revenues are some of the minor factors . 

The Board approved the Aud ited 20 11 Financial Statements for the Greater Vancouver Water 
District for the year ended on Dec. 31 , 2011. 

Status of Reserves Received 

The Board received the report titled "2011 Financial Results Year-EndH dated April 2, 2012 for 
information. 

Status of Utilities Capital Ex penditures to Dec. 31, 2011 Approved 

The Board approved the application of reserves, as set out in schedules 1 and 2 of a March 22 , 
2012 report. 

2011 Financial Results Year-End Received 

The Water District's projected surplus of $16.6 million is the result of lower debt charges as 
capital spending was less than budget. Savings from unanticipated delays in some maintenance 
projects and lower than expected distribution and water treatment costs were also contributing 
factors . 

Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 

Implementation of an EPR Program for Mattresses and Other Large 
Furniture Items 

Approved 

Since 2009, local companies have been recycling mattresses, sofas, hide-a-beds and other 
bulky furniture items. In October 2010, the Board approved an amendment to the regional 
Tipping Fee bylaw to ban the disposal of mattresses and charge a $20 per mattress fee for 
recycling. In 2011 , about 100,000 mattresses and box springs were recycled and diverted from 
disposal. However, municipalities have experienced an increase in the number of abandoned or 
illegally dumped mattresses and springs. 

If mattresses and springs were covered under an Extended Producer Responsibility program, 
costs for material management at the product's end of life wou ld be funded by a fee paid at the 
time of purchase. A Board resolutions requests that the Chair send a letter to the Provincial 
Government highlighting the importance of implementing an Extended Producer Responsibility 
program for mattresses and other large furniture items. 

Page 2 of 4 
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Draft Audited 2011 Financial Statements 

The GVS&DD Board approved the Audited 2011 Financial Statements for the Greater 
Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District. 

2011 Financial Results Year-End 

Approved 

Received 

Overall , the Districts and Housing Corporation are projecting a surplus of $47.3 million for the 
20 11 fiscal year. 

The Liquid Waste surplus of $15.7 million for 2011 is due to savings in debt service costs, delays 
in some projects and the savings of the operating contingency. 
The Solid Waste variance of $9.2 million is primarily due to higher than expected demolition and 
construction waste as well as the savings of some operating costs and the defe.rral of some 
projects to the future. 

Status of Utilities Capital Expenditures to December 31, 2011 Approved 

The Board approved the application of reserves , as set out in schedules 1 and 2 of a March 22, 
2012 report. 

Amendment - Fraser Sewerage Area Boundary · Boundary Bay Airport, 
Corporation of Delta 

Approved 

That the GVS&OD Board approve the expansion of the Fraser Sewerage Area to include the 
mixed employment zoned lands at the Boundary Bay Airport in the Corporation of Delta as 
shown on Plan SAv2376 - Sheet 67 and described in the report titled "Amendment - Fraser 
Sewerage Area Boundary - Boundary Bay Airport, Corporation of Delta" dated February 20, 
2012. 

Greater Vancouver Regional District 

Draft Audited 2011 Financial Statements Approved 

The Board approved the audited financia l statements for the Greater Vancouver Regiona l District 
and Metro Vancouver Housing Corporation. The statements were prepared by management in 
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles for local governments, as 
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board. 

During 2011 , the PSAB expanded the scope of public sector accounting standards to include 
government not-for-profit organizations. As a result, MVHC, which is classified as a 
government not-for-profit organization, is required to adopt Canadian PSAB Standards. 

Page 3 of 4 
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Status of Reserves Approved 

The Board approved the application of reserves , as set out in schedules 1 and 2 of a March 22, 
2012 report. 

2011 Financial Results Year-End Received 

Overall , the Districts and Housing Corporation are projecting a surplus of $47.3 million for the 
2011 fiscal year. 

The Metro Vancouver Housing Corporation had a net income of $1 .1 million because of higher 
than anticipated revenues and some favourable terms on mortgage agreements. Corporate 
programs achieved a surplus position of about $2.9 million primarily due to savings in head office 
operating and project costs, some staff positions that were vacant for portions of the year and 
deferral of anticipated community outreach and education expenditures. 

Greater Vancouver Regional District Electoral Area A Zoning Bylaw No. 
1144,2011: Third and Final Readings 

Approved 

The Board amended a zoning bylaw for Electoral Area A by: 
Changing the heading of section 213 from "Setbacks from Non-Tidal Waters" to 
"Setbacks from Non-Tidal Waters (including Pitt Laker 
Replacing , in section 215, the reference to Section 302 (a) with Section 302 
Replacing Map 10 - Montizambert Wynd with a corrected version included as attachment 
2. 

Board Pre-Budget Workshop Received 

Delia Laglagaron, Interim Chief Administrative Officer, and Jim Rusnak, Chief Financial Officer, 
made an oral presentation and responded to Directors' questions and comments about the 
development of the 2013 budget. 

Page" of" 
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RICHMOND FAMILY and YOUTH COURT COMMITTEE (RFYCC) 

2011 ANNUAL REPORT 

Table of Contents 
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7. Richmond Family & Youth Court Committee 2012 Business Plan ................... 13 
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2. 
Background Information 

The Family and Youth Court Committee is provided for in law under the Provincial 
Court Act and the Youth Criminal Justice ACI. 

The Committee is community based and is accountable to the Mayor and City Council, as 
well as to the Attorney-General of British Colwnbia. The Richmond Family and Youth 
Court Committee is the longest established Committee with continuous service in the 
Province since its establishment in 1964. 

The Committee gathers information with respect to issues raised by the Court, its 
officers, clients and by the community. The Committee draws upon the support of the 
community and advocates for improvements in the justice system. Examples of 
presentations with relevant programs include: Youth Criminal Justice Act, Restorative 
Justice Program, Legal Services Society, the B.C. Law Society, Victim Assistance 
Program, Family Maintenance Enforcement Programs, etc. 

The Riclunond Family and Youth Court Committee makes submissions to the Attorney­
General and other Ministers on proposed changes in legislation and administrative 
practices, which may have an effect on the delivery of youth and family court services. 
The Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee works as a liaison with other Family 
Court Committees on issues of mutual concern. We encourage Committee members to 
attend conferences to further their knowledge about best practices on issues facing their 
community and the justice system. 

To achieve the mandate of "understanding and monitoring the legislation and 
administrative practises relating to the justice system", volunteer members of the 
Committee regularly attend both family and youth court. As impartial observers, they 
view cases involving applications made under: the Family Relations Act, 
Inter jurisdictional Support Orders Act, Family Maintenance Enforcement Act, Child 
Family and Community Services Act, and the Youth Criminal Justice Act. 

Issues and concerns arising from court watch activities are reported to the Family and 
Youth Court Committee at monthly meetings for follow-up action to effect 
improvements. These may include identified gaps in service, lack of adequate resources, 
or concerns regard ing courtroom process. 

Court watch volunteers make objective observations on courtroom procedures, while 
respecting and maintaining the privacy of individuals involved in the proceedings. 

CNCL - 15



2011 Membership 

Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee (RFYCC) 

Hadyn Acheson 
Ruby Ba 

Gerry Browne 
Mark Gosse 

Raj Johal 
Eray Karabilgin 
Sharon Nasadyk 

Gale Rocky 
Maryanne Schulz 

William (Bill) Shayler 
Harvey Siobod 
Karen Stephen 
Mabel Tsang 
Teresa Vozza 

Sylvana Yeomans 

Council Liaison: Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 

3. 
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4. 
CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT 

Mem bership Overview 

The Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee (RFYCC) ended 2010 with eight members. 
As a result of recruitment conducted in the Fall with the assistance of the City Clerk's Office, a 
further seven qualified members were appointed to the Committee for 20 II. All members were 
actively involved in the Committee and most made time to attend and observe court proceedings. 

Council Liaison 

Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt was again appointed to our Committee as the Council Liaison 
for 2011. She continued to be an incredible source of information and guidance. She 
enthusiastically participated in our meetings and always quickly followed through with any 
requests for assistance. We thank her very much and are delighted that she will be returning as 
our Council Liaison for 2012. 

Activit ies in 201 t 

• As part of our mandate, the Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee membership 
attends and observes Family and Youth Court cases. The number of cases our committee 
members can observe is detennined by the availability of committee members to attend 
court on any specific day of the week. This Committee's mandate is to observe and report 
on court proceedings. Committee members who do attend court, observe the proceedings 
as well as the courthouse environment. They then attend monthly meetings to impart their 
knowledge and understanding of some of the important issues which need to be 
addressed. They may also make some recommendations for improvements or changes 
they feel may improve the overall court experience. 

• The fo llowing table provides a comparison of the Committee activities (membership, 
court cases observed and committed volunteer hours for the past five years): 

Activity 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

# Committee 8 11 14 13 8 15 
Members 

# of court cases 505 717 652 458 435 518 
observed 

# Volunteer N/A N/A 800 1200' 1975" 800 
hours 

* Approximately 600 hours were devoted to the planning and organizing ofa Family 
and Youth Court conference in Riclunond that year. 

** The data provided for 20 I 0 was not accurately reported and a more appropriate 
estimate of the total volunteer hours of service for that year would be 700. 
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5. 
• In 2011 the Comminee concluded a review of its activities related to statistics with the 

assistance of a consultant. After considerable discussion, it was determined the 
Committee should limit the gathering of any statistics to the Court Watch Sub-Committee 
and the involved court observation practices (i.e. number of volunteers, volunteer hours, 
and court cases observed). 
This decision was made given volunteers could not be present for all court sessions 
(therefore the statistics were incomplete), the collection of the data involved 
interpretation on the part of a number of volunteer observors (detracting from the validity 
of the data) and the inability of the Committee to collect and analyze a greater amount of 
statistical material with respect to trends and resources. 

• As a result of this decision, the Committee determined a previous grant received from the 
Committee to improve the gathering and analysis of statistics would be returned. The 
support of the City in this regard was appreciated but the Commmittee, therefore, 
returned $ 10,224.38 to the City in 20 II. 

• The Committee receives and is grateful to the City for an annual grant of $2,500.00. As 
indicated in the table below, in 2011 the Committee had expenses of about $1 ,500.00. in 
September 20 II the Committtee took action to reduce the cost of refreshments at each 
meeting by more than 50%. 

3S1230S 

ITEM AMOUNT BALANCE 
Annual Grant $2500.00 
I. Meetin~ Expenses 

~ Refreshments $529 .70 
~ Annual Holiday Dinner Est.) $600 .00 

2. RCSAC Annual Dues $50.00 
3. Court Watch ID Ta~s $249.29 
4. Miscellaneous $89.96 
Total Expenses $1 ,518.95 
Balance 5981.05 

• With respect to the organization and functioning of the Committee, all requirements of 
the Provincial Court Act, s. 5 and the Committee's Tenns of Reference were met 
including: the appointment of the committee; the necessary number of members; 

appointment of a chair and vice~chair; more than the prescribed number of meetings; and 
the submission of an annual report. In addition, the Committee reviewed and approved 

amendments to the orientation document for new members ("An Introduction to the Role 
and Function of the Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee") and submitted a 

written request to the Attorney General to be designated a Youth Justice Committee 
pursuant to s. 18 of the Youth Criminal Justice Act. Finally, the Committee prepared and 

approved an Arumal Business plan that references the legal mandate and Tenns of 
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6. 
Reference of the Committee and relates that to the Committee's planned actiVities, 
perfonnance measures and related expenses. A copy afthe 20 12 RFYCC Business Plan 
is attached to this report and will be used to guide future Annual Reports of the 
Committee. 

• Ms. Schulz and Mr. Karabilgin participated as members of the City of Richmond's 
Advisory Committee Consultation process in June 20 I 1. 

• Following the Commimee 's enquiries and concerns with respect to the lack of an infant 
change table in the Provincial Courthouse, the Committee was pleased to see an infant 
change table was installed at the Courthouse in 20 11 . 

• In 2011 . the Committee received the following presentations: 
o January 5 - Sunny Haer, City of Richmond Community Services Youth Outreach 

Worker 
o March 2 - Andrea Brownstone, Lawyer and full-time staff member, The Law 

Society of BC 
o December 7 - Ivory Xi, lnfonnation Worker, Legal Services Society 

In Conclusion 

At year's end, I wish to thank all members of this committee for their hard work and 
commitment during the year. I am pleased that 7 out of 15 members are returning in 20 11 . This 
year we thank Raj lohal , Gale Rocky, Karen Stephen and Sylvana Yeomans for serving on the 
committee. We also say goodbye to a number of people who filled key positions over the years: 
Hadyn Acheson (Treasurer), Sharon Nasadyk (Court-Walch Co-Chair) and Mable Tsang 
(Statistics). A special recognition and thank you must go out to Gerry Browne who served on 
this committee for many years, most recently as Vice-Chairperson. He will be greatly missed 
but we wish him a very happy retirement! 

We are fortunate that we wi ll be joined by an additional five new members! The new members 
bring a weallh of knowledge, experience and information from their varied backgrounds in youth 
criminal justice, law, health, education and other community involvement. This includes two 
students from McMath Secondary School. 

The Committee wishes to thank Mayor Malcolm Brodie and Richmond City Counci l for 
supporting us with a place to meet, an annual budget and a Committee Clerk to record our 
monthly meetings and prepare our Annual Report. 

We extend a special thank you to the City Clerk' s office for the continued guidance and support 
to this committee. We especially thank lodie Allesia and Sheila l ohnston for helping to keep this 
committee organized and for their willingness to assist with any detail at a moment's notice. 
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7. 
The Committee enjoyed a large and active membership in 2011. A number of organizational 
changes were accomplished that support the established priorities of the Committee. I envision 
that the ideas, suggestions and enthusiasm of the members will spill over into 2012 in a positive 
and meaningful way, leading to another successful year. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Teresa Vozza 
Chairperson 2011 
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8. 
SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Court Watch Sub-Committee 
Chaired by Bill Shayler 

Court watch duties in 2011 were shared by Haydn Acheson, Ruby Sa, Gerry Browne, Mark 
Gosse, Raj Jehal, Eray Karabilgin, Sharon Nasadyk. Gale Rocky, Maryanne Schulz, Bill 
ShayIef, Harvey Slobod, Mabel Tsang and Teresa Vazza. 

These dedicated volunteers were very generous with their time, and our court coverage was well 
below our usual level. Fortunately, we were able to recruit five new members for the 2012 
committee. We look forward to the assistance of these eager and knowledgeable individuals in 
2012. 

We arc very pleased to report that two programs RFYCC advocated for, Parenting After 
Separation and free Duty Counsel, continue to make attending court an easier experience for 
people in Richmond. Members observing court sessions noted that members of the public 
coming before the Court had access to, and uti lized the services of, Duty Counsel, Family Justice 
Workers and Family Case Conferences and Trial Preparation Conferences. 

In 2011, there was a reduction of the number of pennanent judges assigned to the Richmond 
Provincial Court. Notwithstanding the presence of visiting judges, the number of operating court 
rooms also declined in this year. The Court Observors made the following comments with 
respect to these changes: 

• There appear to be longer delays in scheduling matters before a case manager and for 
hearing/trial. These delays cause concerns and issues for all involved but, in particular, 
for young persons in conflict with the law and for fami ly members experiencing the 
trauma of a family break-up. 

• It was apparent the decrease in judicial and court resources had an impact on scheduling. 
For example, there were scheduling conflicts when matters that had been set for 
hearing/trial at a time when more judges and courtrooms were available were faced with 
the reduced capacity. In short, more than one trial would be scheduled before a judge at 
the same time which contributed to "plea bargains", expedited proceedings or caused 
matters scheduled for hearing/trial to be further delayed. 

• The reduction in judicial and court resources also contributed to the scheduling of 
different types of cases in the same court, on the same days. For example, in a courtroom 
full of family members waiting to have their family matters dealt with, the court would be 
compelled to also call criminal and civil cases. 
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9. 
A compounding issue, particularly with family relations matters was the number of cases with 
unrepresented parties that contributed to longer proceedings and case resolutions. 

Finally. while there has been some interest and progress in other parts of the Province for 
establishing specialized judicial and other resources in relation to domestic violence, in 
Richmond these matters are dealt with as a part of the Provincial Court adult criminal process. 
As this involves the scheduling of domestic violence cases throughout the week, it has been 
difficult to accomplish any significant court observation activities in this regard in 201 1. 

In conclusion, we wish to express OUf appreciation to Manjit Sandhu, Court Manager (and 
previous Court Watch Committee member) and her competent and courteous staff at the 
Richmond Courthouse. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Bill Shayler, Court Watch Sub-Committee 
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Richmond Communitv Services Advison' Committee (RCSAC) 
Attended by Maryanne Schulz 

10. 

The Richmond Community Service Advisory Committee (RCSAC) has two objectives - to 
educate and to share information regarding social. health and community matters. 

Funded by the City of Richmond, the RCSAC has served the City since 1979 by incorporating a 
diverse set of goals, both short and long term, in order to improve the well-being of the 
community. 

The Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee delegates a member to attend the RCSAC 
meetings. Thirty-one agencies, two citizen appointees, one individual member, a City of 
Richmond council liaison, and a City staff liaison attend the meetings. The group shares 
information and collectively works to improve social matters. 

Some of the highlights from 2011 include: 

- sending regular "Things That Matt-er" bulletins; 

- developing a task force to review and make recommendations on grants; 

- hosting two all candidates meetings, one for Mayor and Council and one for School Board; and 

- maintaining a useful website 

Re levant information on topics such as addiction, domestic vio lence, poverty, and youth is 
obtained from these meetings and shared at the Richmond Family and Youth Court Committee 
meetings, In addition, the representative has the opportunity to work on sub-committees and be a 
voting member of the committee, 

Respectfully submitted, 
Maryanne Schulz 
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11. 
MANDATE OF THE FAMILY COURT COMMITTEE 

Municipal authority to appoint Family Court Committees and the mandate and duties of 
persons appointed are set down as mandatory requirements in section (5) of the Provincial 
Court Act, Chapter RSBC J 996. 

(1) A municipality must have a family court committee appointed by the municipal 
council in January of each year. 

(2) The members of a family court committee must include persons with experience 
in education, Irealtll, probation or welfare. 

(3) The members of afamily court committee serve wit/lOut remuneration. 

(4) If a cOllrl facility in which family matters are dealt with serves more than one 
municipality or area not in a municipality, the jamily court committee must be 
composed of representatives from each area served. 

(5) TIre municipalities involved must appoint one member of the family court 
committee as cha;r, and another as v;ce chair. 

(6) Thefamily cOllrt committee must do the/ol/owing: 

(a) meet at least 4 t;mes Q year to consider and examine the resources 0/ the 
community for /amily and children's matters, to assist the court when 
requested and generally, to make the recommendations to the court, the 
Attorney General or others it considers advisable,' 

(b) assist the officers and judges of the court, if requested, to provide a 
community resource or assistance in individual cases referred to the 
committee; 

(c) report ammally to the municipalities involved and to the Attorney General 
respecting their activities during the past year. 
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12. 
MANDATE OF THE YOUTH CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 

The desirability of maintaining community involvement in the provinciall y·administered youth 
justice system is addressed in section 18 of the YOUlh Criminal Jus/ice Act which allows for the 
discretionary establishment of a Youth Justice Committee. Section 18 of the Youth Criminal 
Justice Act states that: 

Youth justice committees 

18. (1) Tile Attomey General of Canatia or a province or any ollrer minister tllat file 
lieu/elluM govemor in council of lire province may designate may establish one or more 
committees 0/ citizens, to be known as YOlillt justice committees, to assist in any aspect of lite 
administration of tit is Act or in any programs or services for young persons. 

Role of committee 

(2) Tile funetiolts 0/ a youth justice committee may include tltefollowing: 

(a) in tlte case of a young person alleged to have committed an offellce, 

(i) giving advice on tlte appropriate extrajullicial measure to be used in respect of the 
yo~ng person, 

(ii) supporting any victim of the alleged offence by soliciting his or her COncems and 
facilitating the reconciliation of the victim and the young person, 

(iii) ensuring that community support is available to the young persoll by arranging 
for the use of services from within Ihe community, and enlisting members of tI,e 
community to provide short-term mentoring and supervision, and 

(iv) whell tlte young persoll is also being dealt with by a child protection agency or a 
community group, helping to coordinate the interaction of the agency or group with 
tI,e youth criminal justice system; 

(b) advising the federal and provincial govemments On whether the provisions of this Act 
that grallt rights to young persolls, or provide for the protection of young persons, are 
being complied witlt; 

(c) advising the felleral aud provillcial govemments on policies and procedures related to 
tlte youth criminal justice system,. 

(d) providing information to the public ill respect of this Act and the youth criminal justice 
system; 

(e) acting as a conference; and 

(f) any other fimctions assigned by the person who establishes the committee. 
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OBJECTIVE 

1 
Effectiveness 
of RFYCC 

2. 
Effectiveness 
of Provincial 
FYCCs 

3512305 

RICHMOND FAMILY AND YOUTH COURT COMMITTEE 
2012 BUSINESS PLAN 

MANDATE ACTIVITIES INDICATORS Statu. 

peA 5. 5; Maintain RFYCC 
Committee appointed 

pursuant to Act 

PCA 5 (2). Maintain Required 8·15 
T.O.R. # of members Appropriate 

members 
appointed 

PCA s.5 (5) Appoint Chair and 
ChairNice-Chair Vice- Chair 

Appointed 

YCJA s. 18 Determine Status Status 
-Youth Justice confirmed, 
Committee action taken as 

necessary 

peAs. 5 Hold at least 4 10 Meetings 
(6)(a) meetings per year per year held 

peA 5.5 Submit Annual Annual Report 
(6)(e) Report to Council produced and 

and AG submitted 

peA 5. 5 Support annual Support 

13. 

~~~ 
0 

0 

0 

0 

Refreshment 
costs of about 

$35 for 9 
meetings and 

an annual 
dinner of 
$600.00 

Total 
$900.00 

0 

Contribution 
meetings of provided towards cost of 
FYCCs provincial 

meeting 
$400.00 
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14. 

OBJECTIVE MANDATE ACTIVITIES INDICATORS Status Projected 
Costs 

3. Monitor peA $.5 Maintain Court Program Purchase of 
FamilylYoulh (6)(a) Watch Program maintained Name Tags; 
Activities & court watch 
Resources forms 

$200.00 

Maintain liaison Liaison Annual Dues 
with the RCSAC Maintained $50.00 

4. Enhance YCJA s. Experts/speakers 8 Honorarium/gift 
Awareness! 18(d); present at Presentations for speakers 
Education of T.O.R. committee made (about $20 
Community meetings each) 

Total Cost 
$150.00 

Members attend Support $100 each 
relevant attendance of Total Cost 
workshops/con· 4 members $400.00 
ferences 

Improve Signage, 0 
information, brochures 
signage at court improved 
facility 

Promote Initiatives $400 
Community based supported: 
awareness and Youth/students 
education appointed to 
initiatives committee 

Examine means to Awareness 0 
improve in itiatives 
community undertaken 
awareness (e.g. 
media clipping 
service, 
newsletter, regular 
media articles) 
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15. 

OBJECTIVE MANDATE ACTIVITIES INDICATORS Status Projected 
cOsts 

5. Assist in PCAs. 5 Provide Assistance 0 
individual (6)(b); YCJA assistance if provided as 
cases, if s. 18(2)(a) requested requested 
requested 

6. Submit peA s . 5 Submit Advice as Advice 0 
advice to (6)(a); YCJA required submitted as 
government s. 18(2)(b) necessary 
courts and and (e) 
others 
regarding 
policy, 
procedures 
and youth 
rights 

Provide advice Advice and 0 
and recommenda-
recommendations tions provided 
in Annual Report in Annual 

Report 
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16. 
Summary - Grants and Projected Costs 2012 

Grant, City of Richmond $2,500 

Projected Expenditures $2,500 

Projected Balance $0 

Support in kind from the City of Richmond is gratefully acknowledged and appreciated . 
This includes meeting space for the Committee. clerical and other support from the City 
of Richmond Counsellor and staff. parking permits for members of the Court Watch sub­
committee and advertisements for the recruitment of committee members. 

Note: 
PCA - Provincial Court Act; 
YCJA - Youth Criminal Justice Act; 
TOR - Terms of Reference; 
RCSAC - Richmond Community Services Advisory Committee. 
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Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

Absent: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Monday, May 7, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair 
Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 
Councillor Linda McPhail 
Councillor Harold Steves 

Councillor Linda Barnes 

Minutes 

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:59 p.m. 

3S17830 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
That the minutes o/the meeting o/the Finance Committee held Oil M01lday, 
April 2, 2012, be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

DELEGATION 

1. Nancy Adie-MacKay, Partner, and Becky Hui, Senior Manager, KPMG 
reviewed the 201 1 Auditor' s report on the City' s financial statements. 

1. 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, May 7, 2012 

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

2. 2011 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(File Ref No.: ) (REDMS No.3S I419 1) 

It was moved and seconded 
rhat the City's audite(1 cOlIsolidatedjilJanciai sllllemelJls for the year euded 
December 31,2011 be approved. 

Councillor ChakAu left the meeting (5:02 p.m.). 

3. FINANCIAL INFORMA nON _ 1ST QUARTER 2012 
(File Ref. No.: ) (REDMS No. 35 12161) 

It was moved and seconded 

CARRIED 

That tire staff report titled F inancial Ill/ormatioll/or the 1st Quarter elided 
March 31, 2012/rolll the Director, Finllnce, be received/or ill/ormatioll. 

CARRIED 

Council/or Chak Au re-elllered the meeting (5: 03 p.m.). 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat the meetillg adjourn (5:04 p.m.). 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
Chair 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Finance 
Committee of the Council of the City of 
Richmond held on Monday. May 7, 2012. 

Shanan Dhal iwal 
Executive Assistant 
City Clerk's Office 

2. 
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City of 
Richmond Minutes 

Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

Absent: 

Also Present: 

Call to Order: 

Planning Committee 

Tuesday, May 8, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Riclunond City Hall 

Councillor Bill McNulty, Chair 
Counci llor Evelina Halsey·Brandt, Vice·Chair 
Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Harold Steves 
Mayor Malcolm Brodie 

Councillor Linda Barnes 

Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Linda McPhail 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Planlling Committee held 011 

Tuesday, April 17, 2012, be adoptel/ as circulated. 

CARRIED 

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 

Wednesday, May 23, 2012, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson 
Room 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

I. APPLICA nON BY XI CIlEN (CHEN DESIGN STUDIO) FOR 
REZONING AT 6471 BLUNDELL ROAD FROM SINGLE 
DETACHED (RSl/E) TO COACH HOUSES (RCII) 
(File Ref. No. 12·8060-20-8893, RZ 12-600(91) (REDMS No. 3504576) 

J, 
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Planning Committee 
Tuesday, May 8, 2012 

It was moved and seconded 
That Bylaw No. 8893, for tire rezoning of 6471 Blundell Road from "Single 
Detached (RSJ/E)" to "Coach Houses (ReH)", be introduced alld given 
first reading. 

CARRIED 

2. APPLICATION BY KHALID HASAN FOR REZONING AT 11340 
WILLIAMS ROAD FROM SINGLE DETACHED (RSl/E) TO 
COMPACT SINGLE DETACHED (RC2) 
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-8895, RZ 10-522194) (REDMS No. 3508396) 

It was moved and seconded 
Thai Byllllv No. 8895, jol' the rezolling 0/11340 Williams Road from 
"Single Detached (RSllE)" to "Compact Sillgle Detached (Re2)", he 
introduced alld given first readillg. 

CARRIED 

3. MANAGER'S REPORT 

No Manager' s reports were given. 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
ThaI tire meeti1lg adjourn (4:05 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Committee of the Council of the City of 
Richmond held on Tuesday, May 8, 201 2. 

Councillor Bill McNulty 
Chair 

Sheila lolmston 
Committee Clerk 

2. 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: 

From: 

Finance Committee 

Andrew Nazareth 
General Manager, Business and Financial 
Services 

Re: 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation 

Date: April 17, 2012 

File: 03-0905-01/2012-Vol 
01 

That the City's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 , 
20 11 be approved. 

,4-J -- ..-c. 
Andrew Nazareth 
General Manager, Business and Financial Services 
(604-276-4095) 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

~. -L 

REVIEWED BY TAG i NO REViEWED BY CAO . g/ NO 

D 6b. D 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

The objective of the report is to present to Counci l the Consolidated Financial Statements afCily 
of Richmond for the fiscal year 2011 CFYll) as required by sections 98 and 167 of the 
Community Charter, and to present the discussion and analysis within which to interpret the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The Financial Statements are prepared 
in the accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Analysis 

The City's financial statements serve the interests ofa variety of users interested in the state of 
City's fmanees, the financial viability both in the short and long term, the revenues and financing 
sources, the allocation and use of economic resources, the nature and extent of economic 
activities and the quality of financial management. 

The Management Discussion and Analysis communicates the financial results and analyzes the 
trends experienced by the City. This analysis is intended to be read in conjunction with the 2011 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Financial Impact 

There is no financial impact associated with this report, 

Conclusion 

The City has maintained its strong financial position in 2011, which enables the City to maintain 
the necessary flexibility and sustainability for the future. 

1J2t<.M-
Nashater Sanghera 
Manager, Budgets & Accounting 
(604-247-4628) 

3514791 2 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Executive Summary 

The City of Riclunond is required by sections 98 and 167 of the 
Community Charter to prepare annual financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian publ ic sector accounting standards. The City's auditors 
have issued an unqualified audit opinion for the 2011 consolidated 
financial statements that they fair ly present the consolidated financial 
position of the City of Richmond at December 31, 2011. 

2011 Financial Statements 

These statements, in conjunction with the Management Discuss ion and 
Analysis contained in this report illustrate tbe current slate of the City's 
finances, the financial viability in the short and long term, the nature and 
extent of economic activities and the stewardship of Council. 

Council set goals and objectives that direct the CAO and Senior 
Management to develop and implement the City's programs and services. 

Development and economic projections suggest continued moderate 
growth that should result in continued business activity and investment in 
Richmond. The population forecasts also predict continued growth, 
placing increased demands on City services. 

Richmond was able to maintain a moderate tax increase of2.95% in 20 11 , 
fourth lowest in the lower mainland. Future rates over the next five years 
are projected to approximate 3% based on the current financial plan. 

For fiscal year 2011 , the City's financial position remained strong with: 
• $415.7 million of net financial assets 
• Net debt in the amount of$5.8 million and debt free by 2014 
• $110.8 million annual surplus 
• $275.4 million reserve balance 
• Net book value of assets of $1.8 billion 

Future trends in the short ternl remain positive based on the current Five 
Year Financial Plan. The long term financial position will be influenced 
by growth, service levels, strategic decisions and capital investments. The 
Long Term Financial Management Strategy incorporates these factors and 
aids decision makers, and an update will be presented to Council on May 
7",2012. 

=-
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Management Di scussion and Analysis 

Introduction 

The objective of the report is to present to Council the conso lidated 
financial statements of the City of Richmond for the fiscal year 20 11 as 
required by sections 98 and 167 of the Community Charter. The following 
report provides discussion and analysis within which interpret the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The financial 
statements are prepared in the accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board, 
and are lhe responsibility of the Management of the City of Richmond (the 
City). 

Objectives 

The 20 11 budget was prepared utilizing the Council approved 2008-20 11 
Term Goals. These goals direct the development and implementation of 
the City's work programs. The CAO and the Senior Management Team 
then used these goals to develop strategic, operational work plans and 
budgets. 

The fo llowing are the 2008-20 II Council Tenn Goals: 

1. Ensure Richmond remains a safe and desirable community to live, 
work and play in through an interdisciplinary approach to 
community safety and a term strategy. 

2. Ensure the City has the capacity to meet the financial challenges of 
today and in the future, while maintaining appropriate levels of 
service. 

3. Ensure effective growth management for the City. 
4. Improve the effectiveness of the delivery of social services in the 

City through the development and implementation of a Social and 
Community Service Strategy. 

5. Advance the City's destination status and ensure our continued 
development as a vibrant cultural city with well establi shed 
festi vals and the arts. 

6. Improve City transportation and mobility clements. 
7. Demonstrate leadership in and significant advancement of the 

City ' s agenda for sustainability through the development and 
implementation of a comprehensive strategy. 

8. Effectively manage local economic development issues and 
opportunit ies through the creation of clearly articulated economic 
development objectives for this term of office. 

9. The City will have a stable, effective, and knowledgeable 
workforce to serve Counci l and the community now and in the 
future. 

-=-
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Analysis 

Economic Growth 

The Canadian economic momentum over the second half af20)! has been 
better than expected, led by a rebound in exports. However, the weaker 
global economy has inevitably put a damper on Canadian exports and 
consumer and business confidence. Although the slow economic recovery 
has implications to the City, historically the main factors that revolve 
around the real estate market such as housing starts, median selling prices, 
building pennits and development applications playa more important role 
in determining the City's economic overview. 

Population Growth 

Despite the global economic challenges over the last two years, Riclunond 
had an average population growth rate of about 1.7% per year from 1996 
to 2011. It is projected that Richmond will grow to 280,000 by 2041. 
Richmond is expected to grow approximately the same rate as the rest of 
Be and will account for approximately 7% of Metro Vancouver's 
population. Figure I below illustrates Richmond's population growth 
between 1996 and 2011: 

Figure I ~ Po u/afion of Richmond 

Richmond Population from 1996 - 2011 
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Management Discussion and Analys is 

Key Drivers of City Services 

Key drivers of the City's services relatc to growth and development of 
housing and construction as well as business. These can be measured 
through development applications, building pennils and business licences. 

Housing Activities and Business Licences 

Richmond house prices outpaced the residential average for Greater 
Vancouver, with detached median house prices ri sing to $994,000 (19%). 
The number of sales has increased by 14.4% in 2011. 

in 20 11 , the total number of building permits issued was 1,480 pennits 
which was approximate ly a similar level in 2010. Overall, the building 
permit revenue decreased by 16.49% due to smaller construction projects 
in 20 II as compared to the higher value mixed-use residential and 
commercial build ing construction in 2010. The actual pennit revenue for 
20lt was $4.4 1 mill ion. 

Fi ure 2 - Number 0 Development Ap lications 

Development Applications 
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The number of development appl ications received in 20 II was also 
consistent with the levels in 2010. Total revenues coll ected in 20 11 
increased by 15.8% compared to 2010. 
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Management Discussion and Ana lysis 

Building Permits 
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Business Licences 

The number of new business licences issued in Richmond increased from 
2010 by 13.5% or 1,823. The total nwnber of business licences issued in 
20 11 was comparable to 20 10, with 12,988 and 12,832 licences issued in 
20 11 and 2010 respectively. The revenue from licences was $3.0 million. 

Fi ure 4 - Number of Business Licences 

Business Licences 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Service Demand 

With the increase in population, the residents have greater expectation of 
the City services with respect to community safety, social and recreational 
services which in tum also impacts administrative services. The City 
budgeted over $75 million in capital construction annually to ensure all 
the infrastructure and fac ilities are safe and accessible. Below are some 
examples of the demand for City Services: 

a change . uses with the conversion 
10 

122,784 recreation 

S541.50 7. in Citl 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

2011 Financia l Statements 

The City's financial statements serve the interests of a variety of users 
interested in the state of City's finances, the financial viability both in the 
short and long term, the revenues and financing sources, the allocation and 
use of economic resources, the nature and extent of economic activities 
and the quality of financial management. 

During 2011 , the City's financial position remained very strong, as 
supported by the fo llowing results: 

• The annual surplus amounted to $1 10.8 mi llion, which was an 
increase of 13.0% in comparison with 2010, while the total 
accumulated surpl us amounted to $2,221. 1 million as at 
December 31. 

• Increased investment in capital in the amount of $64.1 million 
and an additional $60.8 million in the investment portfolio. 

• The financial position of the City remained good with $4 15.7 
million of net financial assets (the excess of financial assets 
over financial liabilities) which indicates strong short term 
stability. 

• Long-term financing is at minimal levels with the net debt 
amounting to $5.8 million which is only 1.6% of related 
revenues indicating capacity and flexibi lity in financing future 
capital and operational undertakings. The City will be debt free 
by 2014. The outstanding net debt per capita is $29. 

• Prudent and effective financial management was achieved 
through the management of financial assets and liabi lities and 
securities portfo lio management 

Detailed analysis of the consolidated financial statements is located in the 
Appendices 1 through 4. Ratio analysis is provided in Appendix 5. 

reserve balance 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements consist of the City entity financials, 
which comprise the following combined ftmds: General Revenue, General 
Capital and Loan, Waterworks Fund, Sewerage Funds and Reserve Funds, 
and are consolidated with the two wholly-owned government entities: 
Richmond Public Library Board and Richmond Olympic Oval 
Corporation. 

Richmond Public Library 

The libraries provide access to informational , educational, cultural and 
recreational library materials and services in a variety of formats and 
technologies. The 201 1 operating expenditures were $8.6 mi ll ion and the 
net book value of assets is $4.5 million. Analysis of the Library figures is 
provided in Appendix 6. 

Richmond Olympic Oval 

The Richmond Olympic Oval is a premier faci li ty that provides an 
inspiring community environment, high performance sport development 
and wellness. The 2011 operating expenditures were $8 .6 million. 
Analysis of the Oval figures is provided in Appendix 6. 
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" Management Discussion and Analysis 

201 J Revenue Sources 

Figure 6 shows the actual 2011 revenue distribution. 38% of the revenue 
is for property tax and levies. 16% of the revenue is the user fees which 
include the utility charges for water supply, sewer collection, and drainage 
and garbage collection. 

Figure 6 w 2011 Revenue Distribution 

2011 Actual Revenue 
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The above figure represents the consolidated total of all revenues 
including revenues from: operations, capital sources, utilities and the Oval. 
Analysis shows that the taxes comprise 56% of the operating revenues. 

The di stribution of revenues is consistent with prior years. 

The Long Term Financial Management Strategy (LTFMS) suggests 
identification of alternative revenues to decrease the reliance on taxes. 
This would mitigate the costs downloaded from other levels of 
government and insulate the taxpayers. 

However, new revenues may not be feas ible due to various constraints. 
Additionally, during the current economic times, it would be difficult to 
increase user fees beyond CPl. 
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Management Di scussion and Analys is 

The City aims to maintain a value proposition by maintaining a relatively 
low tax rate while providing a high level of services and programs. Figure 
7 below shows that the City had the 4th lowest tax increase in Metro 
Vancouver. The City managed to keep the rate at 2.95% which is below 
Metro Vancouver average without reducing the level of service. 

Fi ure 7 - Tax Rale Increase Com arison 

• Co 

:9 
= o 
:;: 

Comparison of20U Tax Rate lncreases for Selccted 
Municipalities 

Port Moody 

Pitt Meadows 

Abbotsford 

Whistler 

Maple Ridge 

LangleyTownship 

Burnaby 

White Rock 

Port Coq uitlam 

Coq uitlam 

North Va ncouver C ity 

Mission 

North Vancouvtr District 

Langley City 

NewWtstm in ster 

Delta 

Richmond 

Surrey 

Vancouver 

West Vancouver 

""crage Inueue: 3.5% 

Ricllmond: 2.95% 

0.00% 1.00% 2.oo°h, 3.OO°h, 4.00% 5.00% 6.00% 7.00°h, 

Tax Rate Increase 

Il1creaSe //1 

I (/I1COIII'er 

CNCL - 47



Management Discussion and Analys is 

The tax burden that is faced by tbe average Canadian household is 
significant. Based on the information obtained from Fraser Institute in 
their "2011 Canadian Consumer Tax Index" publi shed on April 19,2011 , 
the average household incurs 4 1.3% of their average income on taxes. 
However, it should be noted that only 4.75% of income relates to property 
tax, of which approximately more than half is for taxes collected on behalf 
of the School Board and TransLink. Figure 8 illustrates the average 
household 's tax distribution and the taxes as a proportion of average 
income respectively: 

Figure 8 - 201 1 Average Household 's Tax Distribution 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

For under $3.74 per day in property taxes, the average Richmond 
household supports a range of services such as police, firefighters, road 
and parks maintenance and recreation programming. 

Fi lire 9 Mon/hl Avera e Household Costs in Vancouver 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Key Services 

The City of Richmond provides a wide array of services to residents, 
businesses and visitors. The City is responsible for delivering the 
following services in Richmond: 

• pcrfonning land use and transportation planning, building 
approvals, property use administration and zoning. 

• providing and maintaining roads, dykes, water and sewerage 
systems, drainage and irrigation systems. 

• providing sanitation and recycling services. 
• providing for the safety and protection of its citizens by 

maintaining a police fo rce. fire-rescue services, bylaw 
enforcement, emergency programs and environmental programs. 

• provid ing for the recreational and cultural needs of its citizens by: 
funding li brary services; and building and maintaining recreational 
and cultural facili ties, including pools, arenas, community centres, 
art centres, a theatre and numerous heritage sites. 

• designing, constructing, and maintaining a recreational trai l system 
and a system of parks with playing fields, playgrounds, and 
various amenities including tennis courts, basketball courts. 

• providing business li censing and economic development 
initiatives. 

• administrating property taxes and utility bill s. 
• working to safeguard the financial well-being of the City, through 

the provision of effective and reliable financial advice, services 
and infonnation to Counci l, staff and the public. 

• working to safeguard and enhance the li vability and social, 
financial, and environmental sustainabiJity of our community and 
surrounding environment. 

• representing the interests of our citizens on various regional bodies 
responsible for providing services such as (ransit, dri nking water, 
waste disposal, and air quality monitoring and reporting. 

These services are provided through the use of funds as approved in the 
20 11 operating, capital and utility budgets. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

2011 Expenditure 

Through the leadership of the CAO and the Administrators' Group (TAG). 
the strategic and operational work plans are aligned with Counci l's goals 
and objectives for the City. These fann the basis for which expenditures 
are budgeted and planned. 

The following chart shows the distribution of lhe 20 11 actual expenditure. 
In tcnns of cost distribution, Law and Community Safety which includes 
Police and Fire Rescue continue to be the largest cost centre. The City 
Utiliti es (Water suppl y, Sewerage and Sanitation and recycling) is 2 1 % of 
the City's total expenditure which is funded from the utili ty charges. 

Figure 10 Consolidated Expenditure Breakdown by City Function 
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The above figure represents the consolidated total of all expenditures 
including expenditures from: operations, amortization, utiliti es and the 
Oval . Figure} J presents the distribution of net costs fo r the City entity on 
an individual basis. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Figure J J Breakdown 0[$1 of Municipal Tax (excluding utilities, oval and 
ca ital 

2011 Actual Breakdown of $1 Municipal Taxes 
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The chart above is based on actual net operating requirements, which is a 
combination of user fees, corporate revenues and expenses. 

Future Direction 

Similar to most communities, Richmond will experience an aging 
population which means increased demand for services to improve aging­
in-place and healthy community. The City is facing cost increases that 
surpass the CPT. These include additional fund transfers to reserves for 
future infrastructure replacement, RCMP contract cost, water purchase 
from Metro Vancouver and operating cost of the facilities. Despite the 
slow economic recovery and chal lenges, Riclunond is able to maintain a 
competitive tax rate. The following illustrates the actual tax rate from 
2007 to 2011 and the projection of2012 to 2016. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Figure 12 - Cit 0 Richmond Tax Rate Trend 

Cityof Richmond Tax RateTrend - 2007 t02016 
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The capital replacement of several City facilities is forthcoming and 
analysis and discussion of the financing alternatives is required. 

Conclusion 

The City has continued to maintain a strong financial position in 20 11 , 
enabling the City to maintain the necessary flexibility and sustainability in 
the future. 
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Appendix 1 - Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

Appendix 2 - Tangible Capital Assets and Reserve Analysis 

Appendix 3 - Annual Surplus Analysis 

Appendix 4 - Cash Flow Statement Analysis 

Appendix 5 - Indicators of Financial Condition 

Appendix 6 - Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation and Richmond Public Library 

CNCL - 54



Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

Summary of Financial Statement Position 

The statement of financial position represents the City's financial assets and liabilities, 
investment in non-financial assets and the accumulated surplus as at December 31, 20 11. 

In fiscal 201 1, the fo llowing changes occulTed: 

• financial assets have increased by $39.8 mi ll ion, while financial liabilities have decreased 

by $8 .1 million, which led to a combined increase of financial assets by $47.9 mi ll ion 

• investment in non-financial assets increased by $62.9 million, driven by a net increase in 

tangib le capital assets. 

As a result, the overall positive effect led to an increase of accumulated surplus of $ 11 0.8 

million. 

Net Financial Assets 

Net financial assets represent the difference between the total financia l assets over the financial 
liabilities and is an indication of the City's ability to pay for future services. The City is in good 
financial position since the City has been able to finance its operation without additional external 
financing. 

Furthermore, the excess of financial assets by $415.7 mi llion suggests strong financial position 
and hence financial sustainability as well as flex ibility in providing the City with the option to 
finance future capital investments and operating activities from its own resources. 

Summary of Financial Assets 

The following table represents the breakdown of the financial assets at December 3 1, 201 1 and 
2010: 

Chlln~e from %C hange 

Finuncial Assets (SOOO's) 21111 2010 2010 to 2011 2UIO to 2UII 

Cash and cash equivalents $11,766 $19,058 ($7,292) -38.3% 

Investments 563,162 502,375 60,787 12. 1% 

Accrued Interest receivables 2,710 3,418 (708) -20.7% 

Accounts receivables 22095 29,651 (7,556) -25 .5% 

Taxes rece ivable 6,716 7,708 (992) -1 2.9% 

Development fees receivables 16826 21,189 (4,363) -20.6% 

Debt reserve fund 386 449 (63) -14.0% 

Total $623,661 $583,848 $39,813 6.8% 

As presented in the table, the fmancial assets have increased by $39.8 million. 
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I 
Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

--":::''''''~D~uring the period major changes relating to the following items occurred: 

, 

• Decrease in cash and equivalents by $7.3 million, (see the discussion on cash flow). 

• Investments increased by $60.8 million. The foll owing chart provides a breakdown of 
investments for fi scal years 20 11 and 20 10: 
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Short-tcnn notes and 
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• Decrease in accounts receivable of$7.5 million, mostly driven by collection of trade 
receivables related to capital grants in the amount of $ 1 0.0 million offset by an increase 

in other trade receivables of $2.0 million. 
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Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

"';::"'''iS~ummary of Financial Liabilities 

The fo llowing table represents the breakdown of the financialliabiJities at December 31, 20 11 
and 2010, respectively: 

ChanAI.' from %Ch:U1 ~{, 

Financia l liabilitie s (SOOO's) 201 I 2010 20 10 to 20 1 I 20 10 to 2011 

Accounts able $77 698 $73963 $3735 50 Yo 

DeposITs and holdbacks 36,753 45447 (8695) -1 9. 1% 

Deferred revenue 34802 43946 (9 144) -20.8% 

Development Cost Charges 52379 42,2 I I 10 168 24. 1% 

Caoitalleases conunitments 499 I 168 (669) -57.3% 

Debt net of MFA sinking fund 5808 9274 (3,466) -37.4% 

Total $207,938 $216,009 ($8,071) -3.7% 

The following items describe the major changes during the period: 

• accounts payable increased by $3.7 million consisting of the increase in the trade 

payables of $ 1.9 million and $1.8 million that relates to post-employment benefits for 

employees. 

• deposits and holdbacks decreased by $8.7 million mostly due to refunded security 
deposits in the amount of$8.0 million and contract holdbacks of$0.9 million, while other 

positions increased by $0.2 million. 

• deferred revenues decreased by $9. 1 million due to the transaction entered into that 
decreased the parking easement and leased land revenues of $1 1.7 million and was 

partially offset by other deferred revenues in tbe amount of$2.6 million. 

• development cost charges (DCC) increased by $10.2 million, which was a consequence 
of new contributions in the amount of $23 .5 million (2010 $26.1 mill ion), while revenue 

recognized on DCC. i. e. related projects undertaken, amounted to $14.3 million (2010 

$ 17.8 mill ion). 

• long tenn debt decreased by $3.5 million, of which $3.4 million was from the General 

Fund and $0.1 million Sewer works Fund. 
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.:-- :/RiChmond - 20- 35 14781 CNCL - 57



Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

The City is in good financial position and has enough capacity and flexibility to undertake 

any additional external long-term financing for necessary projects, given the achieved 

coverage and minimal Debt-ta-Revenue ratio (which represents the ratio of long-term debt to 

total revenues) of 1.6%. Furthennore, during 20 11 the liability limit as set by the Be 
Regulation 254/2004, defined as the liabi lity servicing cost (cost ofprincipaJ and interest 

charges) over total revenue was substantially below the threshold of25%. 

Net Revenues Ratio Debt 
Net Debt (SOOO's) Debt per fund to RC\clluc 

General Fund $5,659 $330,975 1.7% 

Sewerworks Fund 149 30,526 0.5% 

Total $5,808 $361,501 1.6% 

Current debt will be extinguished by 20 14 and the 201 1 outstanding net debt per capita is $29. 

City of Richmond debt per capita 
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Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

Summary of Non-Financial Assets 

The changes in the non-financial assets are due primarily from investments in capital assets that 
have increased by a net $62.6 million in 201 1 (cost $ 105.3 million and related depreciation of 
$42.7 million). The remaining effect of the changes was related to prepaid expenses and 
inventories amounting to a combined $0.3 million. 

lbe following table detai ls the changes in tangible capital assets by asset category. 

Tangible Capital Asse ts (SOOO's) 2010 Additiolls Ilis ilosais 2011 

collections and 

Infrastructure 

-=--
.:--~ChmOnd - 22 - 3514781 CNCL - 59



Statement of Financial Position Analysis 

Accumulated Surplus 

The accumulated surplus represents the accumulated results of operations and can be compared 
with the equity (net assets) of a commercial enterprise. Accumulated surplus represents the 
equity investment in tangible capital assets and the net financial assets, which were discussed 
above. Also, from an allocation point of view accumulated surplus is di vided into following 
categories: 

• investments in tangible capital assets (tangible capital asset nct ofaDY debt) 

• reserves (restricted funds for the particular predetennined use) 

• appropriated surplus (internally reserved funds) 

• surplus (unrestricted funds) 

• obligation to be funded and other equity 

The foUowing table represents the changes in the major categories in the period 20 10 - 201 1 : 

C h :l n ~c from % Changc 

Accumul:ltcd Surplus (SOOO's) 2011 20to l UIII 10 2UII l UlU to 2Ul1 

Investment in TeA SI 795322 SI,728,577 $66745 3.9% 

Reserves 275,353 247,123 28,230 11.40/. 

Appropriated surplus 123943 111,895 t2048 10.80/. 

Obligations to be funded (50) (to I) 51 -50. 50/. 

Surplus 24631 21,098 3533 16.7% 

Other eQuity 1934 1,745 189 10.8% 

Total $2,22 1,134 $2,110,337 5110,797 5.3·/. 

~ 
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Tangible Capital Assets and Reserve Analysis 

Tangible Capital Assets 

The tangible capital assets represent a diverse mix of assets from underground infrastructure to 
library books. These assets enable the City to deliver a vast range of services and functions. 

Each asset is ass igned a useful life that approximates the expected longevity of the asset. Every 
period, the asset is depreciated to reflect the decrease in the asset's remaining life. A high 
depreciation percentage represents assets that are closer to the end of the usefu l life and that will 
requ ire replacement in the near tenn. All analysis is based on financial reporting and does not 
encompass condition assessment or other non· financia l reporting aspects that may alter the actual 
live of individual assets. 

All asset categories other than land are depreciated over an estimated useful life. As represented 
below, the bui ldings. infTastructure and machinery and equipment categories show a slight 
increase in the depreciation percentage. This signifies that the capital replacement is occurring at 
a lower rate than the depreciation. 

• The buildings category decreased significantly over the period of2007-2008 as a result of 
the Oval being added to the asset inventory. 

• Library shows the opposite trend of decreasing the depreciation percentage as a result of 
renewal of the library collections. 

• Total 20 11 depreciation expense was $47.7 million. 

Depreciated level of TCA per type in percentage 
from 2007-2011 
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Tangible Capital Assets and Reserve Analysis 

The level of capital expenditure relative to the amortization expense can be used as a gauge to 
evaluate capital reinvestment. Generally, in order to maintain the same level of depreciation 
percentage as previously discussed, the capital expenditure should at minimum equal the 
amortization expense. Overall the City is replacing assets at a faster rale as depicted by the 
annual increase in capita l equity. 

2011 Capital Expenditure vs. Amortization Expense (SOOO's) 
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Tangible Capital Assets and Reserve Analysis 

Annual Capital additions are comprised of many assets and are funded from various sources. 
These sources include: City reserves, DeC's, grants, developer contributed assets and other 
sources. The portion related to the City reserves represents planned replacement of existing 
infrastructure. As shown below, the reserves represent approximately 40-50% of the tota1 annual 
funding of capital additions. 

Capital Additions and Reserve Spending 
in ($OOO's) 2007-2011 
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• 2010 expenditure includes $59 mi llion fo r the Garden City land acquisition. 
• 2009 ($7 mi llion) and 2010 ($20 million) expenditure was adj usted fo r land received 
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Tangible Capital Assets and Reserve Analysis 

Reserves 

The balance of the reserves has remained fairly consistent with a 20 11 balance of $275.4 million. 
This balance includes both the uncommitted balance of $183.9 million and amounts that have 
been approved for expenditure but remain unspent as at December 31, 2011 of $91.5 million. 

Reserve Balances 2007-2011 ($OOO's) 
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Annua l Surplus Analysis 

Annual Surplus Analysis 

The annual surplus is comprised of all activity that impacts the accumulated surplus. The Public 
Sector Accounting Standards (PSAB) direct that that the accumulated surplus consist of general 
surplus, reserves, appropriated surplus, investment in capital assets, obligations to be funded and 
other equity. 

The 20 11 general operating surplus ($4.6 mill ion) represents the net excess of revenues over 
expenditures relating to budgeted transactions and is a component of the 20 11 arumal surplus of 
$110.8 million. The remaining portion of the annual surplus relates to transactions that impact 
the capital equity and other accumulated surplus items as per PSAB. 

The increase is a result of the simultaneous higher revenues in the amount of$75.2 million, 
21.6% higher than the budget and lower expenditures of$18.3 million in comparison to the 
budget. 

Major items resulting in the increase of revenues by $75.2 million are as fo llows: 

• higher Other Capital Funding Sources (donated assets from developers) which were 
budgeted at $6. 1 mi ll ion and reached $50.1 million, a positive impact of $44.0 million. 

• higher Other Revenues in the amount of$16.0 million than the budget primarily related 

to the gain on the sale of land in the amount of$ ll . 7 million. 

• higher Sale of Services in the amount of$4.5 million, primarily related to the higher sales 

of Oval in the amount of $2.6 million. 

• whi le all other type of revenues, higher by $10.7 million, were a result of higher gaming 
revenues of $2.6 million, investment income revenues of $3.5 miHion and all other 

revenues of $4.6 million. 

Major items causing the decrease in expenditures of$ 18.3 million are as fo llows: 

• lower Law and Communi ty Safety expenditures of $4.5 million in comparison with the 
budget due to unfilled positions and lower than expected contract costs . 

• lower Engineering, Public Works and Project Development expenditures of$5.3 million 
due to higher than expected cost recoveries as well as lower salary expenses due to 

vacant positions. 

• lower General Government expenditures by $3.2 million due to unfilled vacant. 

• while all other types of expenditures were lower by $5.3 mill ion. 
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Annual Surplus Analysis 

Results of Operations 

In 2011 , the annual surplus has increased by $ 12.8 million (increase of 13.0% in comparison 
with 2010), mostly by the increase in revenues of $24.5 million (increase 0[21.6% in 
comparison wi th 2010), while in the same period the expenditures rose by $ 11 .8 million 
(increase of 3.9% in comparison with 20 I 0) . The major contribution to the annual surplus relates 
to the other revenues which rose by $13.3 million, out of which $11.7 million was related the 
discharge ofthe parking easement and land disposition. 

Revenues by Type 

The foLlowing chart represents the comparison of the 2011 revenues to the budget. 

Revenue per type Budget 2011-2011 ($OOO's) 
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The major source ofrevenues is the property taxes. Revenues from this source increased by 3.7% 
in comparison with 2010. This includes the budgeted increase of2.95% and increases relating to 
newly constructed properties added to the assessment roll. The sale of services increased most 
notably from the Olympic Oval which rose by $2.6 million. The increase in the investment 
income was driven by the increase in the investment portfolio. 

The decrease in Deve lopment Cost Charges was the result of capital expenditures and the timing 
of projects. The increase in the other revenue mostly relates to the $1 1.7 million in gain in sale of 
a piece of leased land as noted in the Financial Statements in note 21. 
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3 
Annual Surplus Analysis 

The following chart represents the operating expenditure structure per type of service. As 
depicted below, all services were provided within the allotted 2011 budgets. As previously noted , 
the service areas contributing to the annual surplus include: Law and Community Safety, Public 
Works and Project Development and General Government. 
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Cash Flow Statement Analysis 

Cash Flow Statement 

The following chart represents the condensed cash flow statement for the year ended December 
31, 201 1 and 20 I O. This presents the major sources of cash and cash equivalents during the 
period as well as the use of cash. As can be seen, the major source of cash comes from the annual 
surplus, i.e. the results of operation achieved during the period of $ 11 0.8 mi llon. As well, in 
2011 a significant portion of cash came from the cash management of the financial assets and 
liabilities, which provided an additional combined cash amount of$21.2 million. The total funds 
used for the acquisition of tangible capitai assets amounted to $75.9 million, repayment of debt 
in the amount of$4.2 million and $60.8 investment in the net investment activities. 

Cash Flm\ Statement (SOOO 's) 2011 2010 

Annual surplus $110,797 $98,050 

Items not involving cash: 1609 12375 

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (Increase) in financ ial assets 13,683 ( 18,200 

Decrease (Increase) in other assets (3021 368 

[ncrease (Decrease) in financial liabilities 7794 41 139 

Total change in non-cash assets 21 175 23,307 

Net change in cash from operating activities 133 580 133 732 

Changes in capital activities (investment in TeA) (75 878) ( 142990 

Changes in financing activities (repayment of debt) (4,207) (3,355 

Investement activities (investment in securities) (60,787) 23 928 

Net change in cash (7292) 1131 5 

Cash and Cash EQuivalents, beginning of year 19058 7744 
Cash and Cash EQuivalents, end of year $11,766 $19,058 
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Indi cators of F inancia l Condition 

Ratio Analysis 

The following ratio analysis was conducted as recommended by the Statement of Recommended 
Practice SOPR-4 " Indicators of financial condition" issued by the Canadian Institute of 
Chartered Accountants. The analysis serves as a recommended practice of financial reporting 
and enables the readers of financial reports not only to interpret the financial reports but also to 
also assess the quality of financial management. 

As a best practice, the conducted analysis should address the fo llowing three key areas: 

• Assessment o{slIsla;nahilitv measures and demonstrates the ability of a government 

entity to carry out its service commitments, settles financial commitments to creditors, 

employees and others without increasing the debt or tax burden in the economy that it 
operates. 

o Assets to li abilities, indicates the sustainability by the extent to which the 

government entity finances its operations by issuing debt. 

o Financial assets to liabi li ties, indicates sustainability by the degree that future 

revenues are required to pay for past transactions and events. 

o Net debt to total revenue, indicates the financial burden over the earning capacity 

and also indicates how future revenues will be needed for financing of past 

transactions and events. 

o Net debt to total assessment, indicates the relationship between the level of debt 

and the stale of the local economy. 

o Expenses to total assessment, indicates the trend of the government spending in 

connection to the slate of the local economy. 

• Assessment of[lexibilitv measures and demonstrates the degree to which a government 

entity can change the level of debt and tax burden in order to meet its services 
commi tments or settle financial commitments. 

o Debt charges to revenues, indicates the extent to which past borrowing decisions 

present a constraint on a govenunent' s abi lity to meet its financial conunitments. 

o Net book value of capital assets to cost, indicates the estimated useful life of the 

capital assets to provide services. 

o Own source revenue to assessment, indicates the degree to which represents the 

percentage of taxes taken from its own tax base. 
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lndi cators of Financial Condition 

Assessment of vulnerability measures and demonstrates the degree by which a 

government entity is dependent on sources of funding outside its control or influence or is 

exposed to risk that could impair its ability to meet its service and financial 

commitments. 

o Government transfers to total revenue, indicates the degree to which the local 

government is dependent on provincial or federal grants. 

The following table presents the conducted ratio analysis per major aforementioned categories 
for the period 201 0-2011: 

Ratio anal)-sis Indicators offimmcial condition 2011 2010 
Sus tainabilitv ratios 
Assets to liabilities (times) 11.2 11.5 
Financia l assets to liabilitie;(time;) 2.8 3.0 
Net debt to tota l revenues 1.8% 2.6% 
Net debt to the total assessment 0.0% 0.0% 
Exnenses to the total assessment 0.6% 0.7% 

Flexibility ratios 
Public debt charges to revenues 1.2% 1.5% 
Net book value of canita l assets to its cost 70.4% 70.4% 
Own source revenue to the assessment 0.8% 0.8% 

Vulnc rability ratios 

Government transfers to total revenues 1.9"10 1.6% 
Note: 

B(1seil Oil (1verage Bt'/flllee SlIeet fI/tIOllnts 

As the conducted analysis reaffinns, the City maintained a stable financial position which is a 
consequence of solid financial management practices. Furthennore, it demonstrates the sound 
self-sufficiency and financial capacity of the City's operations and capital project activity. 
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Ri chmond Olympi c Oval Corporation and Richmond Publi c Library 

-----

Analysis oftbe Ricbmond Olympic Oval 
Corporation and Ricbmond Public Library 

During 20 II the two who ll y owned City entities: Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation and 
Richmond Public Library were marked with increase in sales of service to third parties and 
receipt of donations, while both operations are economically dependent on the City funding for 
their operations. 

Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

• In 20 11 , the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation had an annual surplus of $2.2 million, 

which is an arumal increase of$3.4 million. The sale of services increased year over year 

in the amount 0[$2.6 million, which was partly offset by the increase in payroll expenses 
0[$1.6 million. 

• Net financial assets increased by $2.3 million, which is a result of the increase in cash 

and investments by $3.3 million with excess funds being deposited into short teml 
deposits . 

• The Oval transferred $1.7 mi llion into its capital reserve as per the requirements of the 
Operating agreement. 

Richmond Public Library 

• In 2011 , the Library annual surplus increased by $1.2 million mostly driven by the 
collection donations in the same amount. Other revenues and expenditures had a neutral 

effect on the annual surp lus. Included in the total revenue of $10.1 million on the 

Library's entity financial statements is $7.9 mi ll ion of City funding. 

• Net financial assets remained steady at $0.4 mill ion with the previous year and there were 

no major changes between categories. 

• The non-financial assets increased by a net $1.5 million relating to acquisition of library 

collections amounting to $1.2 million and furniture and equipment for the remaining $0.3 
million. 
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.:--~ChmOnd - 34 - 3514781 CNCL - 71



Consolidated Financial Statements of 

CITY OF RICHMOND 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

DRAFT · May 4, 2012 CNCL - 72



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Mayor and Council 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as al December 31, 2011 and the 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects , the 
consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at December 31,2011, and its consolidated 
results of operations, its changes in net consolidated financial assets and its consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Accountants 

DATE 
Burnaby, Canada 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
(Expressed in thousands of doUars) 

December 31 , 2011 , with comparative figures for 2010 

2011 2010 
(recast 

- note 3) 
Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,766 $ 19,058 

Investments (note 4) 563,162 502,375 

Accrued interest receivable 2,710 3,418 

Accounts receivable (note 5) 22,095 29,651 

Taxes receivable 6,716 7,708 

Development fees receivable 16,826 21 ,189 

Debt reserve fund· def!osits (note 6) 386 449 
623,661 583,848 

FlnancialUabil ities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 77,698 73,963 

Deposits and haldbacks (nole 8) 36,753 45,447 

Deferred revenue (note 9) 34,801 43,946 

Development cost charges (note 10) 52,379 42,211 

Obligations under capital leases (note 11) 499 1,168 

Debt. net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 12l 5,808 9,274 
207,938 216,009 

Net financial assets 415,723 367,839 

No n-F inancial A ssets 

Tangible capital assets (note 13) 1,801,630 1,739,019 

Inventory of materials and supplies 1,934 1,745 

Pre2aid eX2enses 11847 1,734 
1,805,411 1,742,498 

Accumulated surplus (note 14) $ 2,221 ,134 $ 2,110,337 

Commitments and contingencies (note 18) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

General Manager, Business and Financial Services 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

Budget Actual Actual 
2011 2011 2010 

(unaudited (recast 
- notes 2(m) and 23) - note 3) 

Revenue: 
Taxation and levies $ 161 ,335 $ 161 ,821 $ 156,071 
User fees 70,035 69 ,359 68,365 
Sales of services 37,053 41,518 37,403 
Development cost charges 13,813 14,321 17,804 
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 11 ,770 13,726 13,203 
Provincial and federal grants 6,215 8,066 6,353 
Other capital funding sources 6,054 50,063 53,217 
Other revenues: 

Investment income 16,830 20,328 16,864 
Gaming revenue 11 ,113 13,728 12,563 
Licenses and permits 7,060 7,524 7,328 
Other ~nole 21} 7,581 23,588 1°1335 

348,859 424,042 399,506 

Expenses: 
Law and Community safety 79,109 74,548 70,838 
Engineering, public works and project development 57,585 52,338 56,365 
General government 42 ,950 39,728 35,130 
Parks, recreation and community services 45,959 45,957 43,647 
Utilities: 

Water supply and distribution 33,434 33,437 30,277 
Sewerage collection and disposal 24,724 23,422 23,772 
Sanitation and recycling services 10,627 9,829 9,163 

Planning and development 12,150 11,560 11,427 
library services 9,393 8,615 8,221 
Richmond Olympic Oval 9,911 8,647 6,614 
Interest and finance charges 51745 51164 6,002 

331 ,587 313,245 301,456 

Annual surplus 17,272 110,797 98,050 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 2,110,337 2,110,337 2,012,287 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 2,127,609 $ 2,221,134 $ 2,110,337 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 . with comparative figures for 2010 

2011 budget 2011 2010 
(unaudited (recast 

- notes 2(m) and 23) - note 3) 

Surplus for the year $ 17,272 $ 110,797 $ 98,050 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets in 
cash and financed by capital leases (17,272) (76,026) (149,088) 
Acquired tangible capital assets from developers (35,740) (31,454) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 47,696 47,725 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (10,347) (3,897) 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 11 ,806 5,424 

48,186 (33,240) 

Acquisition of inventories of supplies (1,934) (1,745) 
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (1 ,847) (1,734) 
Consumption of inventories of supplies 1,745 2,253 
Use of prepaid expenses 1,734 1,594 

Change in net financial assets 47,884 (32,872) 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 367,839 367,839 400,711 

Net financial assets, end of year $ 367,839 $ 415,723 $ 367,839 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

2011 2010 
(recast 

- note 3) 
Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Annual surplus $ 110,797 $ 98,050 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 47,696 47,725 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (10,347) (3 ,897) 
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets (35,740) (31,454) 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease in accrued interest receivable 708 963 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 7,556 (2 ,362) 
Decrease (increase) in taxes receivable 992 (552) 
Decrease (increase) in development fees receivable 4,363 (16,249) 
Decrease in debt reserve fund 63 
Increase in prepaid expenses (113) (140) 
(Increase) decrease in inventories of supplies (189) 508 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,735 6,287 
(Decrease) increase in deposits and holdbacks (8,694) 22,015 
Increase in deferred revenue 2,585 3,834 
Increase in development cost charges 10,168 9,003 

Net change in cash from operating activities 133,580 133,731 

Capital activities: 
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (75 ,954) (148,414) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 76 5,424 
Net change in cash from capital activities (75,878) (142,990) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on debt (3,466) (2 ,534) 
Principal payments on obligations under capital leases (741) (821) 
Net change in cash from financing activities (4,207) (3,355) 

Investing activities: 
Change in investments (60,787) 23,928 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (7,292) 11,314 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 19,058 7,744 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 11 ,766 $ 19,058 

Supplementary Information: 
Non-cash transactions: 

Tangible capital assets financed by capital leases $ 72 $ 674 
Sale of property in exchange for leasehold interest 

in another property 11,730 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

1. Operations : 

The City of Richmond (the ' City~) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British 
Columbia. The City's principal activities include the provision of local government services to 
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation, 
environmental , recreational, water, and sewer. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the City are the representation of management prepared 

in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the 

Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

(a) Basis of consolidation: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City's General Revenue, 

General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated 
with the Richmond Public Library (the "Library") and the Richmond Olympic Oval. The Library 

is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Richmond Olympic Oval is 

consolidated as it is a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City and operates as 

another government organization . Interfund transactions, fund balances and activities have 

been eliminated on consolidation . 

(i) General Revenue Fund: 

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the 

Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and 

servicing general debt. 

(ii) General Capital and Loan Fund: 

This fund is used to record the City's capital assets and work-in-progress, including 

engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related long-term debt. 

(iii) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds: 

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with 

related capital and loan funds to record the related capital assets and long-term debt. 

(iv) Reserve Funds: 

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily 

by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund plus interest earned on fund 

balances . 

(b) Basis of accounting : 

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are 

normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are 

recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services 

and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

2. Signif icant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in 

which the related expenditures are incurred. Unrestricted transfers are recognized as 
revenue when received. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments, and 
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days at acquisition. 

(e) Investments: 

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts. 

Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary. At 

various times during the term of each individual investment, market value may be less than 

cost. Such declines in value are considered temporary for investments with known maturity 

dates as they generally reverse as the investments mature and therefore an adjustment to 

market value for these market declines is not recorded. 

(f) Accounts receivable: 

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent 

amounts expected to be collected. 

(g) Development cost charges: 

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital 

infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when 

the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions. 

(h) Post-employment benefits: 

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is 

a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred. 

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City's employees. The liabilities related to these 

benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages 

and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are 

accrued based on prOjected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to 

earn the future benefits. 

(i) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 

the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are 

not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(i) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets, The 

cost, less the residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land are amortized 

on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset 

Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
Library's collections, furniture and equipment 

Useful life - years 

10- 75 
5 · 100 

3 - 40 
4·20 

Amortization is charged over the asset's useful life commencing when the asset is 

acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for 

productive use. 

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets : 

Tangible capita) assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the 

date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Natural resources: 

Natural resources that have been purchased are not recognized as assets in the financial 

statements. 

(iv) Works of art and cultural and historic assets: 

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial 

statements. 

(v) Interest capitalization: 

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible 

capital asset. 

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases which transfer substantially al l of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 

property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 

accounted for as operating lease~ and the related payments are charged to expenses as 

incurred. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

{il Non-financial assets (continued): 

(vii) Inventory of materials and supplies: 

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined 

on a weighted average basis. 

Ul Deferred revenue: 

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and 

recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed or other 
related expenditures are incurred. 

(k) Deposits: 

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with extemal 
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain 

circumstances. Vv'hen qualifying expenditures are incurred, deposits are recognized as 

revenue at amounts equal to the qualifying expenditures. 

(I) Debt: 

Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances. 

(m) Budget information: 

Unaudited budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual 

results, was included in the City of Richmond's Five Year Financial Plan and was adopted 

through Bylaw #8707 on March 14, 2011 . 

(n) Use of accounting estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring 

the use of management estimates relate to the value of contributed capital assets, value of 

developer contributions, useful lives for amortization , determination of provisions for accrued 

liabilities, performing actuarial valuation of employee future benefits, allowance for doubtful 

accounts, and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the financial statements in the period that the change 

in estimate is made, as well as in the period of settlement if the amount is different. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(0) Segment disclosures: 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity of group of activities of a government for 

which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of 
the standard. The City of Richmond has provided definitions of segments used by the City as 
well as presented financial information in segment format (note 22). 

3. Recast of comparative figures: 

During the year, the City determined that certain developer contributed land was omitted and 

should be added to the 201 0 and 2009 tangible capital asset register. 

The 2010 comparative figures have been recast for this item. The effects of the recast on the 
2010 comparative figures have been applied retroactively and are summarized below: 

Accumulated surplus at January 1, 2010 

Accumulated surplus, as previously reported 
Add: Net book value of tangible capital asset 

Accumulated surplus, as recast 

Annual surplus for 2010 

Annual surplus, as previously reported 
Add: Developer contribution of tangible capital assets 

Annual surplus, as recast 

Tangible capital assets, December 31,2010 

Tangible capital assets, as previously reported 
Add: Net book value of tangible capital asset 

Tangible capital assets, as recast 
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7,038 

$ 2,012,287 

$ 

$ 

77,247 
20 ,803 

98,050 

$ 1,711 ,178 
27,841 

$ 1,739 ,019 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 . 2011 

•• Investments : 

2011 

Cost 

Short-term notes and deposits $ 99,424 $ 
Government and government 

guaranteed bonds 402,293 
Municipal Finance Authority 

Pooled Investment 21 ,289 
Other Bonds 40,156 

$ 563,162 $ 

5. Accounts receivable: 

Water and sewer utilities 
Casino revenues 
Capital grant 
Other trade receivables 

Market 
value 

99,457 

410,633 

21,289 
42,162 

573,541 

6. Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes: 

2010 
Market 

Cost value 

$ 136,309 $ 136,309 

305,113 315,332 

20,723 20,723 
40,230 42,283 

$ 502,375 $ 51 4 ,647 

2011 2010 

$ 6,880 $ 6,467 
3,186 3,146 
2,934 12,980 
9,095 7,058 

$ 22,095 $ 29,651 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the "MFA"). As a 

condi tion of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA as a 

Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture 

whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are 

contingent in nature and are not reflected in the accounts. The details of the cash deposits and 

contingent demand notes at December 31 , 201 1 are as follows: 

Contingent 
Cash demand 

deposits notes 

General Revenue Fund $ 376 $ 1,706 
Sewerwor1<:s Revenue Fund 10 48 

Total $ 386 $ 1,754 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 201 1 

7. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

8, 

Trade and other liabilities 
Post-employment benefits (note 16) 

Deposits and Holdbacks: 

Balance 
December 31 , Deposit 

201 0 contributions 

Security deposits S 33,059 $ 6, 175 
Contract hold backs 2,075 3,640 
Developer contribution 5,197 340 
Transit Oriented Development Fund 1,523 
Other 3,593 3,124 

$ 45,447 S 13,279 

9. Deferred revenue : 

2011 

$ 50,808 
26,890 

$ 77,698 

Refund 
expenditures 

$ 14,094 
4 ,509 

3,370 

$ 21 ,973 

2010 

$ 48,892 
25,071 

$ 73 ,963 

Balance 
December 31 , 

201 1 

S 25,140 
1,206 
5,537 
1,523 
3,347 

$ 36,753 

Deferred revenue represents revenues thai 1) are coUecled but not earned as of December 31 , 

2011 . These revenues will be recognized in future periods as they are earned. 2) Funds received 
from extemal parties for specified purposes. These revenues are recognized in the period in 
which the related expenses are incurred. 

2011 2010 

Prepaid taxes $ 12,652 $ 11,737 
Capital grants 4,919 6,151 
Business license revenues 2,433 1,882 
Firm price billing revenues 2,723 3,375 
Other 9,671 6,078 
Parking easement and leased land revenues 2,403 14,723 

Balance, end of year $ 34,801 S 43,946 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

10. Development cost charges: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions 
Interest 
Revenue recognized 

Balance, end of year 

11. Obligations under capital leases: 

$ 

$ 

2011 2010 

42,211 $ 33,208 
23,518 26,101 

971 706 
(14,321) (17,804) 

52 ,379 $ 42,211 

The City has entered into capital lease agreements to finance certain equipment al an estimated 

cost of borrowing ranging from 1.25% to 5% per year. 

Future minimum lease payments relating to obligations under capital leases expiring on various 
dates as follows: 

Year ending December 31: 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 and thereafter 

Total future minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 

Present value of capital lease payments 
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$ 

12 

337 
80 
59 
26 
6 

508 
(9) 

499 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

12. Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits: 

The rales of interest on the principal amount of the MFA debentures vary between 3.15% and 

8.50% per annum. The average rate of interest for the year ended December 31, 2011 
approximates 5.85%. 

The City issues debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under 
authority of the Community Charter to finance certain capital expenditures. Sinking fund balances 

managed by the MFA are netted against related debt. 

Gross amount for the debt and the amount for the sinking funds assets available to retire the debt 

are as follows: 

Sinking Net Net 
Gross fund debt debt 

debt asset 2011 2010 

General Fund S 39,546 $ 33,887 $ 5,659 $ 9,055 
Sewerworks Fund 1,109 960 149 219 

S 40,655 $ 34,847 $ 5,808 S 9,274 

Principal payments and sinking fund instalments on net outstanding debenture debt over the next 

three years are as follows: 

General 

2012 $ 2,248 
2013 2,355 
2014 1,056 

$ 5,659 
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Sewerworks 

$ 73 
76 

$ 149 

Total 

$ 2,321 
2,431 
1,056 

$ 5,808 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31,2011 

13. Tangible capital assets: 

Balance at 
December 31, Additions 

Cost 2010 and transfers 
(recast 

- note 3) 

Land $ 570,939 $ 37,582 
Bui ldings and building 

improvements 313,067 27,705 
Infrastructure 1,455,639 47,349 
Vehicles , machinery and 

equipment 81,498 4,864 
Library's collections, furniture and 

equipment 8,203 2,788 
Assets under construction 34,379 (8,522) 

$ 2,463,725 $ 111 ,766 

Balance at 
December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2010 Disposals 

(recast 
- note 3) 

Buildings and building 
improvements $ 80,489 $ 508 

Infrastructure 591,261 2,069 
Vehicles, machinery and 

equipment 47,819 1,067 
Library's collections, furniture and 

equipment 5,137 1,329 

$ 724,706 $ 4,973 

DRAFT· May 4,201 2 14 

Balance at 
December 31 , 

Disposals 2011 

$ 10 $ 608,511 

600 340,172 
3,394 1,499,594 

1,099 85,263 

1,329 9,662 
25,857 

$ 6,432 $ 2,569,059 

Balance at 
Amortization December 31 , 

expense 2011 

$ 10,950 $ 90,931 
29,868 619,060 

5,514 52 ,266 

1,364 5,172 

$ 47,696 $ 767,429 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31,2011 

13. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Land 
Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
Library's collection, furniture and equipment 
Assets under construction 

Balance, end of year 

(a) Assets under construction: 

Net book 
value 

December 31 , 
2010 

(recast 
- note 3) 

$ 570,939 
232 ,578 
864,378 
33,679 

3,066 
34,379 

$ 1,739 ,019 

Net book 
value 

December 31 , 
2011 

$ 608,511 
249,241 
880,534 

32,997 
4,490 

25,857 

$ 1,801 ,630 

Assets under construction having a value of approximately $25,857,000 (2010 - $34,379,000) 
have not been amortized , Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put 

into service. 

(b) Contributed tangible capital assets: 

Contributed capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of 

contribution . The value of contributed assets received during the year is approximately 

$35,740,000 (2010 - $31 ,454,000) comprised of infrastructure in the amount of approximately 

$11 ,978 ,000 (2010 - $10,061,000), land in the amount of approximately $22,483,000 (2010 -

$21,393,000) and library collections in the amount of approximately $1 ,279,000 (2010 - nil) 

(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values: 

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized 

at a nominal value. 

(d) Works of Art and Historical Treasures: 

The City manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cuttural 

assets including building , artifacts, paintings, and sculptures located at City sites and public 

display areas . The assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not amortized. 

(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets: 

There were no writedowns of tangible capital assets during the year (201Q..$nil). 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dol lars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

15. Reserves: 

Reserve funds : 
Affordable housing $ 
Capital building and infrastructure 
Capital reserve 
Child care development 
Community legacy and land replacement 
Drainage improvement 
Equipment replacement 
leisure facilities 
Local improvements 
Neighborhood improvement 
Public art program 
Sanitary sewer 
Steveston off-street parking 
Steveston road ends 
Waterfront improvement 
Watermain replacement 
Oval 

2010 

10,728 
26 ,238 
76,229 

1,789 
5,718 

18,213 
14,912 

2,522 
6,117 
5,649 
1,278 

27,661 
266 

2,930 
496 

46 ,377 

$ 247,123 

16. Post employmentfuture benefits: 

Change 
during year 2011 

$ 616 $ 11 ,344 
1,408 27 ,646 
5,591 81 ,820 

357 2,146 
11,379 17,097 

5,182 23,395 
1,832 16,744 

99 2,621 
213 6,330 
408 6,057 
307 1,585 

2,593 30,254 
11 277 

(207) 2,723 
(317) 179 

(2,942) 43,435 
1,700 1,700 

$ 28,230 $ 275,353 

The City provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick leave, compensated 

absences, and termination benefits to its employees. 

2011 2010 

Balance, beginning of year $ 25,071 $ 23,263 
Current service cost 1,843 1,696 
Interest cost 1,207 1,320 
Amortization of actuarial loss 424 545 
Benefits paid (1 ,655) (1 ,753) 

Balance, end of year $ 26,890 $ 25,071 

An actuarial valuation for these benefits was performed to determine the City's accrued benefit 

obligation as at December 31 , 2009 and the results are extrapolated to December 31, 2011. The 

difference between the actuarially determined accrued benefit obligation of approximately 

$28,471 ,000 and the liability of approximately $26,890,000 as at December 31 , 2011 is an 

unamortized actuarial loss of $1 ,581 ,000. This actuarial loss is being amortized over a period 

equal to the employees' average remaining service life of 10 years. 

DRAFT- May 4, 2012 17 CNCL - 91



CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

16. Post employment future benefits (continued): 

Actuarial benefit obligation: 

Liability, end of year 
Unamortized actuarial loss 

Balance, end of year 

2011 

$ 26,890 
1,581 

$ 28,471 

2010 

$ 25 ,071 
1,642 

$ 26,713 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the City's accrued benefit obligation are as follows: 

Discount rate 
Expected future inflation rate 
Expected wage and salary range increases 

17. Pension plan: 

2011 

3.50% 
2.50% 
3.50% 

2010 

4.50% 
2.50% 
3.50% 

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan-) . a jointly 
trusteed pension plan. The Plan's Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, 

is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including the investment of the assets 

and administration of benefits. The pension plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan . 

Basic pension benefits provided are defined. The Plan has about 173,000 active members and 

approximately 63,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 35,000 

contributors from local governments. 

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan 

and the adequacy of plan funding . The most recent valuation as at December 31 , 2009 indicated 

an unfunded liability of $1 ,024 million for basic pension benefits. The next actuarial valuation will 

be performed as at December 31 , 2012 with results available in 2013. The actuary does not 

attribute portions of the unfunded liability to individual employers. The City paid $9,291 ,000 (2010 
- $8 ,832 ,000) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2011 . Employees paid $7,624,000 
(2010 - $7 ,170,000) for employee contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2011 . 

18. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) Joint and severalliabililies: 

The City has a contingent liability with respect to debentures of the Greater Vancouver Water 

District, Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District and Greater Vancouver Regional 

District, 10 the extent provided for in their respective Enabling Acts, Acts of Incorporation and 

Amending Acts. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely 

and therefore no amounts have been accrued. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

18. Commitments and contingencies (continued): 

(b) lease payments: 

In addition to the obligations under capital leases, at December 31, 2011 , the City was 
commitled to operating lease payments for premises and equipment in the following 
approximate amounts: 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 and thereafter 

(e) Litigation: 

$ 4,338 
4,172 
4,123 
4,091 

28,449 

As at December 31 , 2011 , there were a number of legal claims in various stages of liligation. 

The City has made no specific provision for those where the outcome is presently not 
determinable, 

(d) Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia: 

The City is a participant in the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia 
(the "Association"). Should the Association payout claims in excess of premiums received, it 
is possible that the City, along with other participants, would be required to contribute towards 
the deficit. Management does not consider external payment under this contingency to be 
likely and therefore, no amounts have been accrued. 

(e) Contractual obligation: 

The City has entered into various contracts for services and construction with periods ranging 
beyond one year. These commitments are in accordance with budgets passed by Council. 

(f) E-Comm Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia ("E-Comm"): 

The City is a shareholder of the Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia 
Incorporated (E-Comm) whose services provided include: regional 9-1-1 call centre for the 
Greater Vancouver Regional District; Wide Area Radio network; dispatch operations; and 
records management. The City has 2 Class A shares and 1 Class B share (of a total of 26 
Class A and 23 Class B shares issued and outstanding as at December 31 , 2011). As a 
Class A shareholder, the City shares in both funding the future operations and capital 
obligations of E-Comm (in accordance with a cost sharing formula), including any lease 
obligations committed to by E-Comm up to the shareholders withdrawal dale. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

18. Commitments and contingencies (continued): 

(9) Community Associations: 

The City has a close relationship with the various community associations which operate the 

community centers throughout the City. While they are separate legal entities, the City does 

generally provide the buildings and grounds for the use of the community associations as well 

as pay the operating costs of the facililies. Typically the community associations are 
responsible for providing programming and services to the community. The community 
associations retain all revenue which they receive. The City provides the core staff for the 
facilities as well as certain additional services such as information technology services. 

(h) Contingent liabilities: 

The City has a contract with the federal government whereby the federal government 
provides Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) policing services. RCMP members and 
the federal government are currently in legal proceedings regarding pay raises for 2009 and 

2010 that were retracted for RCMP members. As the final outcome of the legal action and 
the potential financial impact to the City is not determinable, the City has not recorded any 

provision for this matter in the financial statements as at December 31, 2011 . 

19. Trust funds: 

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to the City to be administered as directed by 
agreement or statute. The City holds the assets for the benefit of and stands in fiduciary 

relationship to the beneficiary. The following trust fund is excluded from the City's financial 
statements. 

2011 2010 

Richmond Community Associations $ 1,015 $ 994 

20. Collections for other governments: 

The City is obligated to collect and transmit certain taxation revenue on behalf of other 
government bodies. These funds are excluded from the City's financial statements since they are 

not revenue of the City. Such taxes collected and remitted to the government bodies during the 
year are as follows: 

Province of British Columbia ~ Schools 
Greater Vancouver Regional District and others 
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2011 

$ 122,465 
37,655 

$ 160,120 

2010 

$ 118,391 
35,715 

$ 154,106 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

21 . Non-monetary transaction: 

During the year, the City sold a portion of land to a third party developer valued al an agreed 
amount of $6 million. In a separate but related transaction, the City acquired and discharged the 

developer from its use of a leasehold interest for the equivalent amount. The transactions 
occurred at fair value and no cash was exchanged. 

The sale of land resulted in a gain on disposition in the amount of $6 million. The discharge of the 

leasehold interest and discharge of an easement for parking resulted in an accounting gain on 
settlement of $6 million. The total resulting gain of $12 million has been included in Other 
Revenues - Other on the statement of operations. 

22. Segmented reporting : 

The City of Richmond provides a wide variety of services to its residents. For segment disclosure, 
these services are grouped and reported under service areasfdepartments that are responsible 
for providing such services. They are as follows: 

Law and Community Safety brings together the City's public safety providers such as Police 
(RCMP), Fire-Rescue, Emergency Programs, and Community Bylaws along with sections 
responsible for legal and regulatory matters. It is responsible fOf ensuring safe communities by 
providing protection services with a focus on law enforcement, crime prevention, emergency 
response, protection of life and properties, and legal services. 

Engineering, Public Works and Project Development comprises of General Public Works, 
Roads and Construction, Storm Drainage, Fleet Operations, Engineering Planning, Project 
Development, and Facility Management. The services provided are construction and 
maintenance of the City's infrastructure and all City owned buildings, maintenance of the City's 
road networks, managing and operating a mixed fleet of vehicles, heavy equipment and an 
assortment of specialized work units for the City operations, development of current and long­
range engineering planning and planning, and construction of major projects. 

Parks, Recreation and Community Services comprises of Parks, Recreation and Community 
Services. These departments ensure recreation opportunities in Richmond by maintaining a 
variety of facilities such as arenas, community centres, pools, etc. It designs, constructs and 
maintains parks and sports fields to ensure, there is adequate open green space and sports fields 
available for Richmond residents. It also addresses the economic, arts, culture, and community 
issues that the City encounters. 

General Government comprises of Mayor and Council, Corporate Administration, Corporate 
Services, and Business and Financial Services. II is responsible for adopting bylaws, effectively 
administering city operations, levying taxes, providing sound management of human resources, 
information technology, and City finance, and ensuring high quality services to Richmond 
residents. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

22. Segmented reporting (continued): 

Utilities provide such services as planning, designing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

the City's infrastructure of water and sewer networks and sanitation and recycling . 

Planning and Development is responsible for land use plans, developing bylaws and policies for 

sustainable development in the City including the City's transportation systems. 

Library Services provides public access to information by maintaining 5 branches throughout the 

City, 

Richmond Olympic Oval is formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of the City. It uses the 
Richmond Olympic Oval facility as a venue for a wide range of sports, business and community 
activities. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31 , 2011 

23. Budget data 

The unaudited budget dala presented in these consolidated financial statements is based on the 

2011 operating and capital budgets approved by Council on March 14, 2011 and the approved 

budget for Richmond Olympic Oval. Below is the reconciliation of the approved budget to the 
budget amount reported in these financial statements, 

Budget 
Amount 

Revenues: 
Approved operating budget $ 369,267 
Approved capital budget 216,081 
Approved Oval budget 10,520 

Less: 
Transfer from other funds 64,386 
Intercity recoveries 36,211 
Intercompany recoveries 3,030 
Carried forward ca~ital eXf:!enditures 143,382 
Total revenue 348,859 

Expenses: 
Approved operating budget 369,267 
Approved capital budget 216,081 
Approved Oval budget 9,911 

Less: 
Transfer to other funds 7,019 
Intercity payments 36,211 
Intercompany payments 3,030 
Capital expenditures 72,699 
Debt principal payments 1,331 
Carried forward caf:!ital eXf:!enditures 143,382 
Total expenses 331,587 

Annual surplus per statement of operations $ 17,272 

CRAFT- May 4, 2012 24 CNCL - 98



To: 

City of 
Richmond 

Planning Committee 

Report to Committee 
Fast Track Application 

Date: April 11 , 2012 

From: Brian J. Jackson, MCIP File: RZ 12-600991 
Acting General Manager, Planning and 
Development 

Re: Application by Xi Chen (Chen Design Studio) for Rezoning at 6471 Blundell 
Road from Single Detached (RS1/E) to Coach Houses (RCH) 

Staff Recommendation 

That Bylaw No. 8893, for the rezoning of 64 71 Blundell Road fTom "Single Detached (RS lIE)" 
to "Coach Houses (RCI-I)", be introduced and given first reading. 

kson, Me W 
Acting General Manager, Planning and Development 

BJ:el 
A It. ,r 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY rtJ{1 iii" 
" 

ROUTEOTo: CONCURRENCE C0'A.U"m~t:",G/:ERAL MANAGER 

y.jN 0 Affordable Housing 1 7' wv'r 

VII 
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April II. 2012 

Item 
Applicant 

Location 

Development Data Sheet 

Zoning 

OCP Designation 

Area Plan Designation 

Lot Size Policy 

Other Designations 

Affordable Housing 
Strateav Resoonse 

Surrounding 
Development 

Rezoning Considerations 

Staff Comments 

Tree Preservation 

- 2 -

Staff Report 

Details 
Xi Chen (Chen Design Studio) 
6471 Blundell Road See Attachment 1 

See Attachment 2 

Existing: Single Detached (RS1/E) 

RZ 12-600991 
Fast Track Application 

Proposed: Coach Houses (RCH) See Attachment 3 
Generalized Land Use Map 

Complies Ii'IY 0 N 
Neighbourhood Residential 
N/A Complies Ii'IY 0 N 

Policy 5408 permits Compact Single 
Detached or Coach House lots Complies Ii'IY 0 N 
See Attachment 4 
Lane Establishment and Arterial Road 
Redevelopment Policy - permits Compact 

Complies 0' YON 
Single Detached or Coach House lots with 
lane access 

Two (2) coach house units Complies 0 YON 

North: Single Detached (RS1 /E) 

South: Across Blundell Road, Blundell Elementary School 

East: Non-conforming Single Detached (RS1 /E) - 13.5m wide 

West: Six (6) recently created Coach House (RCH) Lots 

See Attachment 5 

A Tree Survey and a Certified Arborist 's report were submitted in support of the application; six 
(6) on-site trees and seven (7) off-site trees were identified and assessed. The City's Tree 
Preservation Coordinator reviewed the Arborist's Report and concurs with the Arborist's 
recommendations to remove six (6) bylaw-sized trees on site due to poor condition and conflict 
with lane construction (Attachment 6). Based on the 2: I tree replacement ratio goal stated in 
the Official Community Plan (OCP), 12 replacement trees are required. 

Due to the configurations of the future lots and building footpri nts, it is expected that only 
eight (8) replacement trees can be planted on site. The applicant has agreed to provide a 
voluntary contribution of $2,000 to the City' s Tree Compensation Fund in-lieu of planting the 
remaining four (4) replacement trees. 

In order to ensure that the proposed replacement trees will be planted and that the front yards of 
the future lots will be enhanced, a Landscape Plan, prepared by a registered landscape architect, 
and a landscaping security, based on 100% of the cost estimates provided by the landscape 
architect, must be submitted prior to final adoption of the rezoning bylaw. 
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Apri111,20 12 - 3 - RZ 12-600991 
Fast Track Application 

Seven (7) trces located on the neighbouring property to the north and east are identified to be 
retained and protected. Tree protection fencing is proposed on site (see Tree Retention Plan in 
Attachment 7). As a condition to rezoning, the applicant is required to submit a proof of 
contract with a Certified Arborist to monitor all works to be done near or within all tree 
protection zones. 

Site Servicing/Subdivision 

No servicing concerns. As a condition of rezoning, the deve loper is requi red to dedicate a 6 m 
lane along the entire north property line of the site for proposed lane extension. 

Prior to Approval of the Subdivision, the developer is required to enter inlo a standard Servicing 
Agreement for the design & construction of a lane along the entire north property line of the site 
(see Attachment 5 for detai ls). 

The deve loper will also be required to pay DCC's (City & GVS&DD). School Site Acquisition 
Charge, and Address assignment Fee at future Subdivision stage. 

Vehicle Access 

Direct vehicular access from the subject site to Blundell Road will not be pennitted in 
accordance with Residential Lot (Vehicular) Access Regulation (Bylaw No. 7222). Vehicle 
access is to be from the proposed rear lane only. Removal of the existing driveway letdowns to 
the site along Blundell Road and reinstatement of the sidewalk will be addressed as part of the 
Servicing Agreement appl ication. 

Conclusion 

This rezoning app lication is to permit subdivision of an existing large lot into two (2) smaller 
lots. This rezoning application complies with all applicable land use designations and policies 
contained within the Official Community Plan (OCP). The appl icant has agreed to the list of 
rezoning conditions included in Attachment 5. On this basis, staff recommends support of the 
application -_os -
Edwin Lee 
Planner I 
(4121) 

EL:rg 

Attachment I: Location Map 
Attachment 2: Development Application Data Sheet 
Attachment 3: Proposed Subdivision Plan 
Attachment 4: Lot Size Policy No. 5408 
Attachment 5: Rezoni ng Considerations 
Attachment 6: Arborist Report Review 
Auachment 7: Tree Retention Plan 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

Original Date: 02/24112 

RZ 12-600991 Amended Date: 

Note: Dimensions are ill METRES 
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City of 
Richmond 

Development Application Data Sheet 
Fast Track Application 

Development Applications Division 

RZ 12-600991 Attachment 2 

Address: 6471 Blundell Road 

Applicant: Xi Chen (Chen Design Studio) 

Date Received: February 14, 2012 Fast Track Compliance: March 20, 2012 

Existing Proposed 

Owner 
John-Wayne Yao, To be determined 
Wen Su Pat Yun Erwing Yao 

Site Size (m2
) 941 m' (10,129 ft') 409.5 m2 (4408 ft2) each 

two (2) single-family residential 
Land Uses One (1) single-family residential dwellings with one (1) coach 

house per lot 

Zoning Single Detached (RS1/E) Coach Houses (RCH) 

Number of Units One (1) Four (4) 

On Future 
I 

Bylaw Requirement 
I 

Proposed 
I 

Variance 
Subdivided Lots 

Floor Area Ratio: Max. 0.60 0.60 Max. none permitted 

Lot Coverage - Build ing: Max. 45% 45% Max. none 

Lot Coverage - Buildings, Max. 70% 70% Max. none 
structures, and non-porous 

Lot Coverage - Landscaping Min. 20% 20% Min. none 

Setback 6mMin. 6mMin. none 
Front & Rear Yards (m): 

Setback - Side Yards (m): Min. 1.2 m Min. 1.2 m none 

Height (m): 2.5 storeys 2.5 storeys none 

Lot Size (min. dimensions): 270 m2 409.5 m2 none 

Lot Width Min. 9 m 10.31 m none 

Other: Tree replacement compensation reguired for loss of significant trees. 
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City of Richmond 

Page 1 of 2 

Policy 5408: 

Adopted by Council: April 10, 1989 

Amended by Council : January 15, 2001· 

I • 

ATTACHMENT 4 

Policy Manual 

Poticy 5408 

The following policy es~ablishes lot sizes in Section 18-4-6 located in the area generall y bounded 
by Comstock Road, Blundell Road, Gilbert Road and No.2 Road as shown on the attached 
map: 

l. All properties shall meet the requirements of Single-Family Housing District, 
Subdivision Area E (RIlE) as per the Zoning and Development Bylaw 5300, with the 
following ~xceptions: 

(a) properties with frontage on Gilbert Road and Blundell Road may be allowed to be 
subdivided as per Single-Family Housing District (RI-O.6) or Coach House 
District (R!9), provided accesses are to be a constructed lane and not to these 
arterial roads. 

2. This policy is to be used in determining the disposition of future rezoning applications in 
this area for a period of not less than five years, except as per the amending procedures in 
the Zoning and Development Bylaw 5300. 

3. Multiple-fami ly residential development shall not be permitted . 

• Original Adoption Date in Effect 
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~ Subdivision Permitted as Per RI-O.6 or Rl9 provided that access 
is to a constructed lane and not to the arterial roads. 

c:::=J Subdivision Pennitted as Per RIlE 

Policy 5408 
Section 18-4-6 

Adopl (>d Date : 04/ 10/89 

A mended Da te: 0511 5/06 
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City of 
Richmond 

ATTACHMENT 5 

Rezoning Considerations 
Development Applications Division 

6911 NO. 3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Address: 6471 Blundell Road File No. : RZ 12-600991 

Prior to final adoption of Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8893, the developer is required to 
complete the following : 
1. 6m lane dedication along the entire north property line. 

2. Submission of a Landscape Plan, prepared by a Registered Landscape Arch itect, to the satisfaction of 
the Director of Development, and deposit of a Landscaping Security based on 100% of the cost estimate 
provided by the Landscape Architect, including installation costs. The Landscape Plan should: 
• comply with the guidelines of the Dep' s Lane Establishment and Arterial Road Redevelopment 

Pol icies and should not include hedges along the front property line; 
• include a mix of coniferous and deciduous trees; 
• include the dimensions of tree protection fencing as illustrated on the Tree Retention Plan attached 

to this report; and 
• include the eight (8) required replacement trees with the following minimum sizes: 

No. of Replacem ent Trees 

8 

Minimum Caliper of 
Deciduous Tree 

9 em 

0' 
Minimum Height of 

Coniferous Tree 
5m 

If required replacement trees cannot be accommodated on~s L te , a cash~Ln~ l1eu contribution in the amount 
of $SOO/tree to the City 's Tree Compensation Fund fo r off~site planting is requi red. 

3 . City acceptance of the deve loper's offer to voluntarily contribute $2,000 to the City' s Tree 
Compensation Fund for the planting of four (4) replacement trees within the City . 

4. Submission of a Contract entered into between the applicant and a Certified Arborist for supervision of 
anyon-site works conducted within the tree protection zone of the trees to be retained on the 
neighbouring properties to the north and east. The Contract should include the scope of work to be 
undertaken, including: the proposed number of site monitoring inspections, and a provision for the 
Arborist to submit a post~construction assessment report to the City for review. 

S. Registration ofa flood indemnity covenant on title. 

Prior to Approval of Subdivision, the developer is required to: 
I . Enter into a Servicing Agreement* for the design and construction of a lane along the entire north 

property line. Works include, but may not be limited to, storm sewer, sand/gravel base, roll curb & 
gutter (both sides), asphalt pavement, and lane lighting. Design to include water, storm & sanitary 
connections for both lots, and the removal of the existing driveway crossing on Blundell Road. 

2. Pay Dec's (City & GYS& DD), School site acquisition charge, and Add ress assignment fee . 

Note: 

• 
• 

This requires a separate application . 

Where the Director of Development deems appropriate, the preceding agreements are to be drawn not only as 
personal covenants of the property owner but also as covenants pursuant to Section 219 of the Land Title Act. 
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All agreements to be registered in the Land Title Office shall have priority over all such liens, charges and 
encumbrances as is considered advisable by the Director of Development. All agreements to be registered in the 
Land Title Office shall, unless the Director of Development detennines other-vise, be fully registered in the Land 
Title Office prior to enactment of the appropriate bylaw. 

The preceding agreements shall provide security to the City including indemnities, warranties, equitable/tent 
charges, letters of credit and withholding pennits, as deemed necessary or advisable by the Director of 
Development. All agreements shall be in a form and content satisfactory to the Director of Development. 

[Signed original on file] 

Signed Date 
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A IT ACHMENT 6 

Arborist Report review - G. Jaggs 

6471 Blundell Rd RZ 12-600991 Mar 29, 2012 

Att: Edwin Lee 
cc: Con or Sheridan 

I have reviewed the Arborist report dated February 22, 2012 and provide the following 
commentary: 

Tree Inventory Summary 

4 trees located on site 
2 trees located in the lane ROW 
7 trees located on neighbouring property 

Staff commentary 

4 trees (tag# 258, 259, 260 and 263) located on site are all in poor condition - either dead, dying 
(sparse canopy foliage) or have been previously topped or exhibit structural defects such as 
cavities at the main branch union. As a result, these trees arc not good candidates for retention 
and should be replaced. 

2 trees (tag# 261 and 262) located in the lane ROW have been previously topped, exhibit co­
dominant stems with inclusions and sparse canopy foliage indicative of decline. These two tTees 
will also be in conflict with new lane construction. As a result, these trees are not good 
candidates for retention and should be replaced. 

7 trees located on neighbouring property are to be protected as per the Arborist report 
recommendations and as per City of Ricrunond Tree Protection Infonnation Bulletin Tree-03 . 

Replacement trees should be specified at 2: I ratio as per the O.C.P. 

Summary 
4 trees (tag# 258, 259, 260 and 263) located on site to be removed and replaced. 
2 trees (tag# 261 and 262) located in the lane ROW to be removed and replaced. 
7 trees located on neighbouring property are to be protected. 
Replacement trees should be specified at 2: I ratio as per the O.C.P. 

WlOS45 CNCL - 110



I
f e

. Q
. 

L 
0 

c. 
o.~

1~c
"\'

 
+-

? r
 o

+
e.

 c..
 \-

; 
0

"
,"

 
?\

 0
0

.
 

1
0

0
 

• X
 \01 

S
L

-"
'\"

 
o 

"Z
-

~ 
(,

 
9 

10
 

( 

(r
n)

 

~e
..

c.
e,

V'\
"",
~t

. 
K.G

.A .
.... 

~ '
" 

'/r<
a..

.e..
 

I<.
ec
.o
"'

'''
e~
d.
 

R<
-M

.",
,-

"1
re

e.
 

c.. 
re

v
.>

"-

"\
:)

,\
1'

 \
~(

\e
. 

-,
 

J
r

ee
.. 

\'r
ete

.-c
.'+

~o"
 

I 
~o

.r
('

\e
..

('
 

2
0

9
 

"lL
A

N
 

4
3

8
4

8
 

." , 
L

A
N

E
 

8 
P

LA
N

 
B

C
P

49
07

4 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 

O
W

fW
N

G
 

" • 

~
 

1 

20
1 1 1 

x 

2 
1 

~I
 

.1
 

"l
l 

A
R

E
A

=
4

0
9

.5
n

/ 
I
~
 • 
«
~
 

--
, 

~ 
~
~
-

~~
 11

 
-~

\g
 

B<
:l

~ ~ 
.~

 

43
84

8 

O'
"'

~ 
S~

"'
) 

2
2

0
 

P
LA

N
 5

82
31

 

. 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 

i?
EM

 
E

 I
 /

?t
r"

 
~
D
l
l
1

i'
WN
G 

0
'-

,;
' 

.-
( 

P
LA

N
 

'"
;"

7
9

 
.

' 
",

] 
~
 • , 

1.:
'11

 
,
~
 

X
 

1(
).

:}
1 

x 
...

. 
!?'
"
 

48
' 

\ 
0

0
· 

-_
_

_
_

_
 --..

·c/
.- L

' 
,.

 
,.

 
..,.

' 
~
 

~
?
 -

-
~
.
~
 

,. 
,. 

)l
IN

 
0-

4 
f)-

"I
" 

sa
: 

III
IU

C'
 

'"
 

,'I
' 

B
LU

N
D

E
LL

 
R

O
A

D
 

,f>
 

,f
 

,,,"
 

,9
 

_
_

 
II

 
-
-
-
-
-
c
R
O
;
W
O
F
~
 

-
" 

-

~I
 

;t­ o ~ ~ >-
i ..., 
I 

CNCL - 111



City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8893 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8893 (RZ 12-600991) 

6471 BLUNDELL ROAD 

The Council of the City of Riclunond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. The Zoning Map of the City of Richmond, which accompanies and fanns part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the following area and by designating it COACH HOUSES (RCI!). 

P.l.D.003-491-226 
East half Lot 2 Except: Part subdivided by Plan 43029, Section 18 Block 4 North Range 
6 West New Westminster District Plan 13379 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as "Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8893". 

FlRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HELD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS SATISFIED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

3S0?376 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

CITY OF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVEO 

it 
APPROVED 
by [)j,eetor 

I f~~ 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Planning Committee 

Brian J. Jackson, MCIP 

Report to Committee 
Planning and Development Department 

l o rli'J - \'\ 6LL1 8> 2 £0_ 

Date: April t 1, 2012 

Acting General Manager of Development 
File: RZ 10-522194 

Re: Application by Khalid Hasan for Rezoning at 11340 Williams Road from Single 
Detached (RSlIE) to Compact Single Detached (RC2) 

Staff Recommendation 

That Bylaw No. 8895, for the rezoning of 11 340 Will iams Road [rom "Single Detached 
(RSllE)" to "Compact Single Detached (RC2)", be introduced and given first reading. 

Brian J . kson, MCIP 
Acting General Manager of Development 

BJJ :el 
Alt. 

ROUTED To: 

Affordable Housing 

lS083% 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY AC11 1/O; 

CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF' hENERAL MANAGER 

y J ND 
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April II , 2012 - 2 - RZ 10-522194 

Staff Report 

Origin 

Khalid Hasan has applied to lhe City of Richmond for pennission to rezone 11340 Wi lliams 
Road (Attachment J) from Single Detached (RS IIE) to Compact Single Detached (RC2) in 
order to permit the property to be subdivided into two (2) single family lots with vehicle access 
from an existing rear lane (Attachment 2). 

Findings of Fact 

A Development Application Data Sheet providing details about the development proposal is 
attached (Attachment 3). 

Surrounding Development 

The subject property is located on the south side of Williams Road, between Shell Road and 
Seacole Road, in an established residential neighbourhood consisting of a mix of older single 
detached dwell ings on larger lots and new single detached dwe ll ings on compact lots. 

Related Policies & Studies 

Lot Size Policy 5434 

The subject property is located within the Single-Family Lot Size Policy No. 5434 (adopted by 
Council February 19, I 990/amended Octobcr 16, 2006) (Attachment 4). This Policy permits 
development of compact lots (minimum 9 m or 29.5 ft. wide) along Will iams Road, providing no 
direct accesses are created to the arterial roads. The current proposal would create two (2) lots; 
each approximately 10.06 m wide, with vehicle access from an existing rear lane, which is in 
conformance with the policy. 

Lane Establi shment and Arterial Road Redevelopment Policy 

The subject application is consistent with the City's Lane Establishment and Arterial Road 
Redevelopment Policy, which encourages compact single-family development with lane access 
along arterial roads. 

Affordable Housing 

The Richmond Affordab le Housing Strategy requires a suite on at least 50% of new lots, or a 
cash-in-lieu contribution of$I.OO per square foot of total building area toward the Affordable 
Housing Reserve Fund for single-family rezon ing app lications. 

The applicant is proposing to provide a legal secondary suite on at least one ( I) of the two (2) 
future lots at the subject site. To ensure that the secondary suites are built to the satisfaction of 
the City in accordance with the Strategy, the applicant is required to enter into a legal agreement 
registered on Title, stating that no final Building Permit inspection is to be granted until the 
secondary suites are constructed to the satisfaction of the City, in accordance with the 
Be Building Code and the City's Zoning Bylaw. This. legal agreement is a condition of 
rezomng. This agreement will be discharged from Title on the one (1) lot where a secondary 
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April II, 2012 - 3 - RZ 10-522194 

suite is not required by the Affordable Housing Strategy after the requirements are satisfied, at 
the initiation of the applicant 

Should the app licants change their mind about the affordable housing option selected, a 
voluntary contribution to the City's Affordab le Housing ReselVe Fund in-lieu of providing the 
secondary suite will be accepted. In this case, the voluntary contribution would be required to be 
submitted prior to final adoption of the rezoning bylaw, and would be based on $1,00 per square 
foot of total building area of the single detached deve lopments (i.e. $4,353). 

Floodplain Management Implementation Strategy 

The appl icant is required to comply with the Flood Plain Designation and Protection Bylaw 
(No. 8204). In accordancc with the Flood Management Strategy, a Flood Indemnity Restrictive 
Covenant specifying the minimum flood construction level is required prior to rezoning bylaw 
adoption. 

Public Input 

There have been no concerns expressed by the public about the development proposal in 
response to the placement orthe rezoning sign on the property. 

Staff Comments 

Tree Preservation 

A Tree Survey and a Certified Arborist's report were submitted in support of the application; six 
(6) trees were identified and assessed: 

• two (2) bylaw-sized trees on the subject property; 

• one (I) bylaw-sized tree on the adjacent property to the west (11320 Williams Road); and 

• three (3) street trees on city's property along the site frontage. 

The City' s Tree Preservation Coordinator rev iewed the Arborist's Report and concurs with the 
Arborist's recommendations to remove all bylaw-sized trees on the subject site: 

• a 20 cm caliper Cherry tree on-site is recommended for removal due to its existing poor 
condition (as a result of previous topping); and 

• a 28 em catiper Cherry trce on-site is recommended for removal due to its existing poor 
condition (as a result of previous topping) and the conflict with new construction. Since 
this tree is located on the west property line, a wrinen permission from the adjacent 
property owner to the west (at 11320 Williams Road) to remove the tree has been 
obtained. 

Based on the 2:1 tree replacement ratio goal stated in the Official Community Plan (OCP) and 
the size requirements for replacement tree in the Tree Protection Bylaw No. 8057, four (4) 
replacement trees each at 6 cm calliper or 3.5 m in height are required. 

In order to ensure that the proposed replacement trees will be planted and that the front yards of 
the future lots wi ll be enhanced, a Landscape Plan, prepared by a registered landscape architect, 
and a landscaping security, based on 100% of the cost estimates provided by the landscape 
architect, must be submitted prior to final adoption of the rezoning bylaw. The landscape plan 
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April II, 2012 - 4 - RZ 10-522194 

should comply with the guidelines of the Official Community Plan's Arteri al Road 
Redevelopment Policy and include four (4) replacement trees (a mix of coniferous and 
deciduous). If replacement trees cannot be accommodated on-site, cash-in-lieu ($SOO/tree) for 
off-s ite planting would be required. 

The applicant is also proposing to remove a bylaw-sized Babylon Willow tree located on the 
neighbouring property to the west (at 11320 Williams Road) due to its conOiet with new 
construction. The City's Tree Preservation Coordinator agrees with the Arhorist that this tree is 
in very poor condition (old lopping wounds have formed large decay pockets that are prone to 
branch failure) and recommends removal. A consent letter from the property owners of 11320 
Will iams Road is on file. A separate Tree Cutting Permit is requi red prior to Building Pennit 
Issuance. 

Three (3) street trees located on City property are all in good condition and should be retained. 
Since all three (3) trees are located in a concrete sidewalk, tree protection barriers are not 
required. 

Site Servicing and Vehicle Access 

No Servicing concerns. Vehicu lar access to the site at future development stage is not permitted 
to or from Williams Road as per Bylaw No. 7222. 

Subdivision 

At future subdivision stage, the developer will be required to pay Development Cost Charges 
(City and GVS&DD), School Site Acquisition Charge, Address Assignment Fee, Servicing costs 
and cash-in-Iieu for future lane improvements. 

Analysis 

The rezoning application complies with Lot Size Policy 5434 and the Lane Establishment and 
Arterial Road Redevelopment Policies. This is a single-family residential deve lopment on an 
arterial road where an existing municipal lane is fully operational. The future lots will have 
vehicle access to the laneway with no access being permitted onto Williams Road. 

Financial Impact or Economic Impact 

None. 
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April II , 2012 - 5 - RZ 10-522 194 

Conclusion 

This rezoning application to pennit subdivision of an existing large lot into two (2) compact lots 
complies with all po li cies and land use designations and is consistent with the direction of 
redevelopment currently on~going in the surrounding area. On this basis. staff support the 
application. 

~? 
~/ -z_?? 
: nLee 

Planner I 

EL:rg 

Attachment I: Location Map 
Attachment 2: Proposed Subdivision Plan 
Attachment 3: Development Application Data Sheet 
Attachment 4: Lot Size Policy 5434 
Attachment 5: Rezon ing Considerations Concurrence 
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Original Date: 03/3 1110 

RZ 10-522194 Amended Date : 

Note: Dimensions are ill METRES 
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TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND PROPOSED SUBDIVISION Of LOT J9 SECTION J6 
BLOCK 4 NORTH RANGE 6 IIBT NEW IIBTMINST£R DISTRICT PLAN 25908 
111340 WlLUAMS ROAD, 

RICHMOND, B.C. 
P.I.D 004 - 255- 275 

." o· 
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SCALE: 1 :200 
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CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
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City of 
Richmond 

Development Application Data Sheet 
Development Applications Division 

RZ 10-522194 Attachment 3 

Address: 11340 Williams Road 

Applicant: Khalid Hasan 

Planning Area(s) : Shell mont 

Proposed 

Owner: Urban Era Builders & Developers 
No Change Limited. 

Site Size (m2
): 674 m' (7.255 ft') Two (2) lots - each approximately 

337 m' (3 627.5 W) 
Land Uses: One (1) single·family dwelling Two (2) single-family dwellings 

OCP Designation: Generalized Land Use Map- No change 
Neighbourhood Residential 

Area Plan Designation: N/A No change 

Lot Size Policy 5434 permits 

702 Policy Designation: rezoning and subdivision to No change 
Compact Sing~~FDet~~hed (RC2) or 
Coach Houses RCH . 

Zoning: Single-Family Housing District, Compact Single Detached (RC2) Subdivision Area E (R1/E) 

Number of Units: 1 2 

Lane Establishment and Arterial 
Road Redevelopment Policies 

Other Designations: permit residential redevelopment No change 
along this arterial road due to the 
existinQ operational rear lane. 

On Future 
I Bylaw Requirement 

, 
Proposed I Variance Subdivided Lots I 

Floor Area Ratio: Max. 0.60 0.60 Max. none permitted 

Lot Coverage - Building: Max. 50% 50% Max. none 

Lot Coverage - Buildings, Max. 70% 70% Max. none structures, and non~porous 

Lot Coverage - Landscaping Min. 20% 20% Min. none 

Setback - Front Yard (m): 6mMin. 6mMin. none 

Setback - Rear Yard (m): Min. 1.2 m 1.2 m Min. 

Setback - Side Yards (m): Min. 1.2 m 1.2 m Min. none 
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On Future 
I Bylaw Requirement 

I 
Proposed Variance Subdivided Lots 

Height 1m): 2.5 storeys 2.5 storeys none 

Lot Size (min. dimensions): 270 m2 337 m2 none 

Lot Width Min. 9m 10.06 m none 

Other: Tree replacement compensation required for removal of Bylaw-sized trees. 
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ATTACHMENT 4 

City of Richmond Policy Manual 

Page 1 of 2 
Adopted by Council : February 19, 1990 
Amended by Council: November 18, 1991 
Amended by Council: October 16, 2006 

POLICY 5434 

File Ref: SINGLE-FAMILY LOT SIZE POLICY IN QUARTER-SECTION 36-4-6 

POLICY 5434: 

The following policy establishes lot sizes in a portion of Section 36-4-6, with in the area bounded 
by Steveston Highway, Shell Road, NO. 5 Road, and Williams Road: 

1. That properties within the area bounded by Shell Road , Williams Road, NO.5 
Road, and Steveston Highway, in a portion of Section 36-4-6, be permitted to 
subdivide in accordance with the provisions of Single-Family Housing District 
(R1 /E), with the exception that : 

a) Properties fronting on Will iams Road from Shell Road to No. 5 Road, 
properties fronting on Steveston Highway from Seaward Gate to Shell Road, 
and properties fronting on NO.5 Road from Williams Road 10 approximately 
135 m south of Seacliff Road to rezone and subdivide in accordance with the 
provisions of Single-Family Housing District (R1-0.6) or Coach House District 
(RIg) provided that vehicle accesses are to the existing rear laneway only. 
Multiple-family residential development shall not be permitted in these areas. 

b) Properties fronting on No.5 Road from Steveston Highway to approximately 
135 m south of Seacliff Road be permitted to subdivide in accordance with the 
provisions of Single-Family Housing District, Subdivision Area B (R1 /B) 
provided that vehicle accesses are to the existing rear laneway only. 

2. This policy, as shown on the accompanying plan, is to be used to determine the 
disposition of future rezoning applications in this area, for a period of not less 
than five years, unless changed by the amending procedures contained in the 
Zoning and Development Bylaw. 

2013902 
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II I 
VY 

, I I 

~~ Subdivision permitted as per RlIE (18 m wide lots) 

B8883 Subdivision permitted as per RI-O.6 or Rl9 

I 

(access to lane only) (No Multiple-family residential development 
is permitted. 

WM Subdivision permitted as per RIIB 

Policy 5434 
Section 36-4-6 

Adopted Date: 0211911990 

Amended Date: 1111 8/1991 
10116/2006 
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City of 
Richmond 

ATTACHMENT 5 

Rezoning Considerations 
Development Applications Divis ion 

6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Address: 11340 Williams Road File No.: RZ 10-522194 

Prior to final adoption of Zoning Amendment B}'law 8895, tbe developer is required to complete the 
following: 

I. Submiss ion of a Landscape Plan, prepared by a Registered Landscape Architect, to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Development, and deposit o f a Landscaping Security based on 100% of the cost estimate provided by the Landscape 
Architect, includ ing installation costs. The Landscape Plan should: 
• comply with the gu idelines of the OCP's Lane Establishment and Arterial Road Redevelopment Pol icies and 

should not include hedges along the front property line; 
• include a mix of coniferous and deciduous trees; 
• include the dimensions of tree protection fenc ing as illustrated on the Tree Retention Plan attached to th is report; 

and 
• incl ude the four (4) required replacement trees with the following minimum sizes: 

No. of Replacement Trees Minimum Caliper of Deciduous Tree r=~~~~~~~-' or Minim um Height of Coniferous Tree 
4 Scm 3,5 m 

If requi red replacement trees cannot be accommodated on-site, a cash-in-lieu contribution in the amount of $500/tree 
to the City's Tree Compensation Fund for off-site planting is required. 

2. Registration of a flood indem nity covenant on title. 

3. Registration of a legal agreement on Title to ensure that no final Bu ild ing Penni t inspection is granted until a 
secondary suite is constructed on one (I) of the two (2) futu re lots, to the satisfaction o rthe City in accordance w ith 
the BC Building Code and the City's Zoning Bylaw. 

Note: Should the applicant change their mind about the Affordable Housing option selected prior to final adoption of 
the Rezoning Bylaw, the City w ill accept a vo luntary contribution of $ 1.00 per bui ldable sq uare foot of the s ingle­
family developments ( i.e. $4,353) to the City'S Affordable Hous ing Reserve Fund in-lieu of registering the lega l 
agreement a ll Tit le to secure a secondary su ite. 

Prior to Approval of Subdivision, the developer is required to: 
I. Pay Deve lopment Cost Charges (C ity & GVS&DD). School site acquisition charge, Address assignment fee, 

Servicing costs, and cash-in-lieu fo r future lane improvemen ts. 

Note: 

• 
• 

This requires a separate application . 

Where the Director of Development deems appropriate, the preceding agreements are to be drawn not only as personal covenants 
of the property owner but also as covenants pursuant to Section 219 of the Land Title Act. 

All agreements to be registered in the Land Title Office shall have priority over all such liens, charges and encumbrances as is 
cons idered advisable by the Director of Development. All agreements to be registered in the Land Title Office shall, unless the 
Director of Development determines otherwise, be fully registered in the Land Title Offiee prior to enactment of the appropriate 
bylaw. 

The preceding agreements shall provide security to the City including indemnities, warrant ies, equitable/rent charges, leners of 
credit and withholding permits, as deemed necessary or advisable by the Director of Development. All agreements shall be in a 
form and content satisfactory to the Director of Development. 

[S igned original on fi le] 

Signed Date 

3S<183% 
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8895 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8895 (RZ 10-522194) 

11 340 WILLIAMS ROAD 

The Council of the City of Richmond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as fo llows: 

1. The Zoning Map of the City of Richmond, which accompanies and forms part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the fo llowing area and by designating it COMPACT SINGLE DETACH ED (RC2). 

P.J.D.004-255-275 
Lot 39 Section 36 Block 4 North Range 6 West New Westtninster District Plan 25908 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as " Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8895". 

FIRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HELD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS SATISFIED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

lS091S2 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

''''' '" RICHMOND 

APPROVED 

" It 
APPROVED 

tz ~lI<:lor 
Of N'or 

~ f\ 
~ 
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8877 

Child Care Operating Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 8877 

The COMeil of the City of Richmond enacts as follows : 

1. The Child Care Operating Reserve Fund is hereby established. 

2. The Child Care Operating Reserve FUl1d shall be separate and distinct from the Child Care 
Development Reserve Fund established by Reserve Flli1d Establishment Bylaw No. 7812. 

3. After the date that this bylaw takes effect, the following sources ofrevellue received by the 
City are directed to the Child Care Operating Reserve Fund : 

(a) a portion of developer cash contributions and 'density bonus contributions to the 
City's child care reserve funds, as directed by Council from time to time; and 

(b) donations from members of the public that are dedicated to the purposes 
established in this bylaw; 

and any interest earned by the Child Care Operating Reserve Fund shall accrue to it. 

4. Any and all amounts in the Child Care Operating Reserve Fund, including any interest 
earned and accrued, may be used and expended solely for non-capital expenditmes relating 
to child care within the City, including without limitation for anyone or more of the 
following purposes: 

(a) grants to non-profit societies to SUppOlt child care professional and program 
development within the City; 

(b) studies, research and production of reports and other information in relation to child 
care issues within the City; and 

(c) remuneration and costs, including without limitation expenses and travel costs, for 
consultants and City personnel to support the development and quality of child care 
within the City. 

5. If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or phrase of this bylaw is for any reason held 
to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision does not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions oftrus bylaw. 

6. This Bylaw is cited as "Child Care O pera ting Reserve F und Estab lishment Bylaw No. 
8877". 
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Bylaw 8877 

FIRST READING 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

Page 2 

APR 1 0 2012 

APR 1 0 2012 

APR 1 0 2012 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

C!TYOF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 
for contont by 

orlglnatlng 
dept 

APPROVED 
for I_galily 
by Solicitor 

111.1-
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8883 

Affordable Housing Operating Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 8206, Amendment Bylaw No. 8883 

'nle Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows: 

1. The Affordable Housing Operating Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 8206 IS 

amended by deleting subsections 3(a) and (b) and substituting the following: 

"(a) a p0l1ion of developer cash contributions and density bonus conb"ibutions to the 
City's affordable housing reserve funds, as directed by COW1cii from time to time; 

(b) fifty per cent (50%) of net income (revenue less operating expenses) received by the 
City from the rental of residential dwelling lmits that are owned or held by the City 
as part of the Richmond Affordable Housing Strategy; and" 

2. This Bylaw is cited as "Affordable Housing Operating Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 8206, Amendment Bylaw No. 8883", 

FIRST READlNG APR 1 0 2012 ClrYOF 
RICHMONO 

A?PROVED 

SECOND READING APR 1 0 2012 fer conlent by 
ori!lln. tin!l 

THIRD READlNG APR 1 0 2012 !! 
APPROVED 
fcrlog31ity 

ADOPTED by Scllcil<>r 

~ 

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER 
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City of 
Richmond 

Annual Property Tax Rates Bylaw No. 8885 

Bylaw 8885 

The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows: 

(a) Parts 1 through 6 excluding Part 3, pursuant to the Community Charter; and 

(b) Part 3 pursuant to section 100 of the Municipalities Enabling and Validating Act. 

PART ONE: GENERAL MUNICIPAL RATES 

1.1 Genera l Pu rposes 

1.1.1 The tax rates shown in column A of Schedule A are imposed and levied on the 
assessed value of all land and improvements taxable for general mWlicipai 
purposes, to provide the monies required for all general purposes of the City, 
inclu~ing due provision for uncollectible taxes, and for taxes that it is 
estimated wi ll not be co llected during the year, but not including the monies 
required under bylaws of the City to meet payments of interest and principal 
of debts incurred by the City, or required for payments for which specific 
provision is otherwise made in the Community Charter, 

1.2 C ity Policing, Fire & Rescue and Storm Drainage 

1.2.1 The tax rates shown in COIUIlUlS S, C & D of Schedule A are imposed and 
levied on the assessed value of all land and improvements taxable for general 
municipal purposes, to provide monies requi red during the current year for the 
purpose of providing policing services, fire and rescue services and stonn 
drainage respectively in the City, for which other provision has not been made. 

PART TWO: REGIONAL DISTRICT RATES 

2.1 TIle tax rates appearing in Schedule B are imposed and levied on the assessed value of 
all land and improvements taxable for hospital purposes and for Greater Vancouver 
Regional District purposes. 

April HI, 2C I2 
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Bylaw No. 8885 Page 2 

PART THREE: TRUNK SEWERAGE RATES 

3.1 The tax rates shown in Schedule C are imposed and levied on the assessed values of all 
land only of all real property, which is taxable for general municipal purposes, within 
the following benefitting areas, as defined by the Greater Vancouver Sewerage & 
Drainage District: 

(a) Area A, being that area encompassing those portions of sewerage sub-areas and 
local pwnp areas contained in the Lulu Island West Sewerage Area of the 
Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District as shown on the current plan 
of the Lulu Island West Sewerage Area; and 

(b) Area B, being that area encompassing Sea, Mitchell, Twigg and Ebume islands, 
which is that part of the City contained in the Vancouver Sewerage Area of the 
Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District as shown on the current plan 
of the Vancouver Sewerage Area; and 

(c) Area C, being that part of the City contained in the Fraser Sewerage Area oflhe 
Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District as shown on the current plan 
orthe Fraser Sewerage Area, 

and the total amowlt raised annually is to be used to retire the debt (including principal 
and interest) incurred for a sewage trunk system, which includes the co llection, 
conveyance and disposal of sewage, including, without limiting the general ity of the 
foregoing, forcemain sewers and their pumphouses and such ancillary drainage works 
for the impounding, conveying and discharging the surface and other waters, as are 
necessary fo r the proper laying out and construction of the said system of sewerage 
works, provided however that land classified as "Agriculture Zone" in Section 14. 1 of 
the Zoning Bylaw, is exempt from any tax rate imposed or levied pursuant to this Part. 

PART FOUR: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Imposition of Penalty Dates 

4. 1.1 All taxes payable under this bylaw must be paid on or before July 3, 20 12. 

4.2 Dcsibrnation of Bylaw Schedules 

4.2. 1 Schedules A. B and C are attached and designated a part of this bylaw. 

].01 92985 
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Bylaw No. 8885 Page 3 

PART FIVE: [NTERPRETATION 

5.1 In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires: 

CITY means the City of Richmond. 

means the Richmond Zoning ZONrNC 
BYLAW Bylaw 8500, as amended from time to time. 

PART SIX: PREVIOUS BYLAW REPEAL 

6.1 Annual Property Tax Rates Bylaw No. 8744 (20 11) is repealed. 

I' ART SEVEN: BYLAW CITATION 

7.1 Thjs bylaw is cited as "Annual Property T~,x Rates Bylaw No. 8885". 

FIRST READING APR 2 3 2012 

SECOND READING APR 23 2012 

THIRD READING APR 23 2012 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER 

3492985 

CfTYOF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 
fe. cont."t by 

origin.n"ll 

''''' )W 
APPROVED 
lorlogoll!y 

~or 
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SCHEDULE A to BYLAW NO. 8885 

PROPE RTY COLUMNA COLUMNS COLUMNC COLUMN D TOTAL 
CLASS GENERAL POLICING FIRE & STORM 

PURPOSES SERVICES 
RESCUE DRAINAGE 

1. Residential 1.14802 0.44006 0.36656 0.04664 2.00128 

2. Utilities 22.88831 8.77350 7.30823 0.92996 39.9000 

4. Major 
Industry 

8.28075 3.174 16 2.64404 0.33645 14.43540 

5. Light 5.16209 
Industry 

1.97872 1.64825 0.20974 8.99880 

6. Business 
other 

I 4.32279 1.65700 1.38026 0.17564 7.53569 

8. Recreation I 
non profit 1.09599 0.42011 0.34995 0.04453 1.9 /058 

9. Fann 6.85113 2.62616 2. 18757 0.27836 11.94322 

SCHEDULE B to BYLA W NO. 8885 

PROPERTY CLASS REGIONAL DISTRICT 

1. Residential 0.05766 

2. Utilities 0.20180 

4. Major Industry 0.19603 

5. Light Industry 0.19603 

6. Business/other 0.141 26 

8. Reclnon profit 0.05766 

9.Fann 0.05766 

SCHEDULE C to BYLAW NO. 8885 

AREA RATES 

A, B,&C Sewer Debt Levy (land only) 0.04923 
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8892 

Alexandra District Energy Utility Bylaw No. 8641 , Amendment Bylaw 
No. 8892 

The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows: 

1. Alexandra Dis trict Energy Utility Bylaw No. 8641 is amended by deleting Schedule C in 
its entirety and substituting Schedule C attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

2. This Bylaw is cited as "Alexandra District Energy Utility Bylaw No. 8641, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 8892". 

FIRST READING APR 23 2012 . 

SECOND READING APR 23 2012 

THIRD READING APR 23 2012 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER 

CITY OF 
RICIWONO 

APPROVED 
for content by 

originating 

/45 
APPROVED 
ler legality 

'Efi55 
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Bylaw 8892 Page 2 

SCHEDULE C to BYLAW NO. 8641 

Rates and Charges 

RATES FOR SERVICES 

The following charges will constitute the Rates for Services: 

3501551 

(a) Capacity charge - a monthly charge of $0.075 per square foot of gross floor area, 
and a monthly charge of $1.00 per kilowatt of the annual peak heating load 
supplied by DEU as shown in the energy modeling report required under Section 
21.1.(c); and 

(b) Volumetric charge - a charge of $3.20 per megawatt hour of Energy returned 
from the Heat Exchanger and Meter Set at the Designated Property. 
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City of Richmond Bylaw 8894 

Additional Hotel Room Tax Imposition Bylaw No. 8894 

The Council of the City of Riclunond enacts as follows: 

L The Lieutenant Governor in Council is hereby requested to issue a regulation under Section 
43(2)(e) of the Hotel Room Tax Act to provide that sect ion 3(1) of the Hotel Room Tax Act 
app lies in respect of accommodation purchased within the whole of the City of Richmond 
from and including July 1, 2012 to and including June 3D, 2017. 

2. The tax to be imposed under the provisions of the regulation referred to in section 1 of this 
Bylaw is requested to be two percent of the purchase price of the accommodation. 

3. The purposes for which the amount paid to the City of Riclunond out of the revenue 
collected from the tax to be imposed under the provisions of the regulation referred to in 
section I of this Bylaw may be expended are: 

(a) tourism marketing, programs and projects; and 

(b) sport hosting marketing, programs and projects. 

4. This bylaw is effective July 1,2012. 

5. This bylaw is cited as "Additiona l Hotel Room Tax ImpOSition Bylaw No. 8894". 

FIRST READ ING APR 2 3 2012 

SECOND READING APR 2 ~ 2012 

THIRD READING MAY 0 8 2012 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER 

lSlOO77vl 

CITY OF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 
forcOnl.nI b~ 

orlgl ... Ung 
d.pL 

APPROVED 
for I~aljly 

15Q5 
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City of 
Richmond 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8615 (RZ 08-449233) 

7411 AND 7431 MOFFATT ROAD 

Bylaw 8615 

The Council of the City of Richmond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. TIle Zoning Map of the City of Riclunond, which accompanies and fonns part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the following area and by designating it mCH DENSITY TOWNHOUSE (RTH4). 

P.lD.004-334-400 
North Half Lot 18 Except: Part on Plan 62052, Block I Section 17 Block 4 North Range 
6 West New Westminster District Plan 8037 

P.l.D.011-300-892 
South Half Lot l8 Except: Part Subdivided by Plan 62052, Block I Section 17 Block 4 
North Range 6 West New Westminster District Plan 8037 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as "llichmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8615" . 

FIRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HELD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS SA TlSFLED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

2897753 

JUN 1 4 2010 

JUL 1 9 2010 

JUL 1 9 2010 

JUL 1 9 2010 

MAY a 9 201Z 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

CITY OF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 

':t I, 
APPROVED f":: 
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City of 
Richmond 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8796 (11-572975) 

9640/9660 SEACOTE ROAD 

Bylaw 8796 

The Council of the City of Richmond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

I. The Zoning Map of the City of Richmond, which accompanies and fonns part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the following area and by designating it SINGLE DETACHED (RS21B). 

P.I.D.007-178-263 
Lot 77 Section 25 Block 4 North Range 6 West New Westminster District Plan 35759 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as "Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8796". 

FIRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HELD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS SATISFIED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

3254217 

SEP 1 2 2011 

OCT 1 7 2Dll 

OCT 1 7 2011 

OCT 1 7 2011 

MAY 1 a 2012 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

CITY OF 
RlCHMONO 

APPROVED 

'" 
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City of 
Richmond 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8843 (RZ 11-565948) 

7600 GARDEN CITY ROAD 

Bylaw 8843 

The Council of the City of Ricrunond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as fo llows: 

1. The Zoning Map of the City of Richmond, which accompanies and fOlms part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the following area and by designating it TOWN HOUSING (ZTSO) - SOUTH 
MCLENNAN (CITY CENTRE) 

P.I.D .. 004-1 I 1-044 
Lot 3 Block "H" Section 15 Block 4 North Range 6 West New Westminster District 
Plan 1207 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as " Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8843". 

FIRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HE LD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS SATISFlED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

)410088 

DEC 1 9 2011 

JAN 1 6 2012 

,IAN 1 6 2012 

JAN 1 6 2012 
MAY 08 2012 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

,<NO<' 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 

I:t. 
APPROVED 
bV Dlre<:IQ' 

I Itor 
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Time: 

Place: 

Present: 

City of 
Richmond 

Development Permit Panel 

Wednesday, April 11 , 2012 

3:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
Richmond City Hall 

Dave Semple, Chair 
Robert Gonzalez, General Manager, Engineering and Public Works 
Jo1m Irving, Director, Engineering 

Minutes 

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m. 

1. Minutes 

That lite minutes of lire meeting 0/ the Development Per",it Pmrel held Oil Wedllesl/ay, 
M arch 28, 2012, he adopted. 

2. Development Permit 11-564405 
(File Ref. No.: OP 11-564405) (REDMS No. 3482687) 

APPLICANT: Oris Development (River Drive) Corporation 

CARRIED 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 100 11 & 10 III River Drive and portion of 10199 River Drive 
(phase 1) 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

1. Permit the construction of five (5) residential buildings, one ( I) mixed-use 
commercial residential building and one (I) resident amenity/commercial use 
building (Phase 1) at 100ll and 101 11 River Drive and portion of 10199 River 
Drive on a site zoned "Residential Mixed-Use Commercial CZMU I 7)-River 
DrivelNoA Road (Bridgeport)"; and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) increase the maximum permitted building height between 20.0 m and 36.0 m 
of the lot line abutting River Drive, from 15.0 m to 26.0 m for the 
southenunost 5.0 m of the upper two floors of Building "G"; 

b) reduce the Building "B" setback to the proposed west property line of West 
Park from 6.0 m to 2.7 m for roof support columns; and 
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3497S88 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, April 11 , 2012 

c) reduce the Building "C" setback to the proposed intemal site east property line 
from 6.0 m to 4.0 m for a partial building and roof projection and allow the 
Building "E" entry canopy to project into the internal side yard setback. 

Applicant's Comments 

Dana Westennark, Oris Development (River Drive) Corporation, advised that the 
proposed development is sited on River Road, along the North Arm of the Fraser River, 
and comprises: (i) five residential bui ldings; (ii) one mixed·use commercial residential 
building; and (iii) Ol1e resident amenity/commercial use bui lding. 

Mr. Westennark then provided the fo llowing detai ls regarding the proposed development: 

• the five residential buildings rise to six storeys closer to the river and step down to 
townhouses along River Drive; 

• the applicant, the architect and City planning staff spent much time and effort on 
the architectural details on the edge facing the Fraser River waterfront; 

• 1.38 acres of parkland are provided at the west end of the site with Phase I, and 
three acres of parkland is provided in the middle of the site with Phase 2 to two 
separate City parks; 

• over the course of the overall development, the applicant will contribute up to $1 
million toward the construction of community space, adjacent to Tait Elementary 
School and $500,000 to the City Amenity Reserve Fund; 

• as part of the overall development, the applicant will construct a day care facility 
measuring at least 511 square metres; and 

• 67 affordable housing units are included in the proposed development. 

In response to queries by the Panel directed to the applicant, Mr. Westermark advised that: 

• Phase t of the proposed development starts is the western portion of the subject 
site, at No.4 Road; Phase 2 extends eastward, close to Shell Road; 

• the entire section of the subject site fTonting the Fraser River will have new dike 
work; 

• public access to the site includes a main courtyard space as well as elegant 
walkways a long the waterfront, and as the work progresses, these will be upgraded 
from gravel surfaces to paved surfaces; 

• for the majority of the time during which Phase I and Phase 2 construction, public 
access to the waterfront can be maintained; 

• the "West Park" includes a water feature integrated into the on-site mechanical 
system; a natural amphitheatre with a gentle slope from the West Park to the stage 
at the No.4 Road pump station; paths that act as wheelchair ramps; and an alley of 
trees along the No.4 Road access, with special events parking; 

• the underground parking structure is broken into sections, and its location by the 
dike allows it to be completely buried; 

2. CNCL - 146



3497Ssa 

Development Pennit Panel 
Wednesday. April 11 . 2012 

• a City-owned park straddles the property line of the subject site, and once the ou­
site park is turned over to the City it, it too becomes a City asset; 

• the private geothennal ground sowce heat pump system district energy utility for 
this project is situated behind a mature existing Sequoia tree on the site; the main 
distribution room for the energy system is drilled under the parking structure, and is 
the responsibility of the Strata Council; and 

• located between Building "E" and Building "F" are more private outdoor spaces, 
intended for use by residents, with large spaces between Building "F" and building 
"0", intended to be inviting to the public. 

In response to further queries from the Panel, Architect Simon Ho advised that: 

• there are three access points to the parking stmcture provided by two vehicular 
access driveways from River Road; 

• in Building "B" is a lap pool and a hot pool; a generous children's play area, with a 
lawn space is adjacent to the linear park along the dike; 

• the outdoor amenity spaces provide for good "eyes on the park" for safety 
observation or surveillance purposes; 

• the six-story buildings step down toward the riverfront, allowing the park to take 
advantage of the lower massing of the buildings to the south of the site; 

• a boardwalk-type of aesthetic is part of the landscape architect's design, to pick up 
the previous industrial nature of the area; the chosen landscape furniture will 
enhance the "boardwalk-aesthetic"; 

• the architectural fonn is considered an interpretation of the industrial nature of the 
site's fo rmer structures; 

• the proposed townhouse buildings are stepped down to mirror the single-family 
homes on River Drive; 

• the affordable housing structure has a modern appearance, while the amenity 
building has a modem. design with glass cladding to mark the comer; 

• materials include Hardi-panel and there is a combination of hard industrial with 
softer cladding for the residential components; and 

• given the size of the proposed development, the chosen colour palene helps to 
effectively break up and defme the different structures. 
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Brian J. Jackson. Director of Development, noted that of the three variances sought by the 
applicant, two are internal to the development. With regard to the request to increase the 
maximum pennitted building height from 15 metres to 26 metres for the southern 5 metres 
of the upper two floors of Building "G". the impact to the streetscape would be fully 
hidden by Building "C". Further, the request to reduce the setback for Building "C" would 
allow the Building "E" entry canopy to project into the internal side yard setback, and 
would have no impact on the existing neighbours. 

Mr. Jackson advised that for the purposes of columns and the roof of Building "8" the 
applicant is seeking a variance that the Parks Department feels is satisfactory, in this 
particular location. 

Mr. Jackson remarked that staff has worked with the applicant on the proposed West Park, 
and on the dike improvements, both of which are being undertaken at the applicant's 
expense. The applicant ensures that the amenities are available during the construction 
process. The applicant also ensures that the outdoor amenities are contributed on a phase­
by-phase basis. 

For the reasons stated, Mr. Jackson concluded that staff support this proposed 
development. 

Gallery Comments 

Susan Hodges, Delta resident and owner of 10140 River Road, referred to a letter she 
submitted (attached to these Minutes as Schedule I ) and described the proposed 
development as a nice one, but also expressed the following concerns: (i) the increase in 
the building height will create a wall effect between the Tait neighbourhood and its 
riverfront, and will increase density and increase traffic in the area; (ii) the requested 
variance for a 2.7 metre setback would intensify the tension and pressure of the 
population, would remove roadway visibility, road safety would be compromised, and an 
all day building shadow would exist; and (iii) the character and the standard of the 
neighbourhood should be maintained. 

Ms. Hodges stated that there should be a bicycle network for the community, and 
especially for the young people in the area, to access the Bridgeport Station of the Canada 
Line. 

Mr. Jackson addressed each of Mrs. Hodges' concerns and stated that: (i) as part of the 
proposed development the applicant is to construct a new bicycle lane in both directions; 
(ii) with regard to the requested variances, from River Road, the three-story townhouse 
units would completely block a view of the six-storey building behind, and the west side 
of Building "8" would not be visible from River Road; (iii) studies show that the 
proposed development would not shadow homes to the south, with the only potential 
exception being early on winter mornings; and (iv) both the grade at which the proposed 
development will be built, as well as the presence of large, open, park space on the site, 
will ensure views in the neighbourhood are maintained. 
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Susan Hodges, resident of 1575 Beach Grove Road, Delta, and owner of 10140 River 
Road, Riclunond (Schedule I) 

Panel Discussion 

There was agreement that the design of the proposed development is sensitive toward the 
neighbourhood, the overall design of the project provides valuable and significant 
amenities to the area, and the geo·thennal system is a long· term benefit to the conununity. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
That a Development Permit be issuell, which would: 

1. Permit the COllstrllctioll of five (5) residential buildillgs, Olle (1) mixed-use 
commercial residential buildillg and one (1) resident amenity/commercial lise 
building (Phase 1) at 10011 and 10111 River Drive altd portiolt of 10199 River 
Drive 0 11 a site zoned ffResidelltial Mixed-Use Commercial (ZMU17)-River 
DrivelNoA Road (Bridgeport)"j and 

2. Vary the provisions of Ric/wlOlIll Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) increase the maximum permitted buildillg height between 20.0 In and 36. 0 m 
of the lot Iille abutting River Drive, from 15.0 m to 26.0 III for tlte 
south em most 5.0 In o/the upper two floors 0/ Building ffG"j 

b) reduce the Building "8" setback to the proposed west property line of West 
Park from 6.0 III to 2. 7 mfor roo/ support COirtllIllS,' and 

c) reduce the Buildillg IrC" setback to the proposed intemal site east property 
lillefrom 6.0 m to 4.0 mfor a partial building ami roo/projection ami allow 
the Building ItE" entry canopy to project into tlte intemal side yard setback. 

CARRIED 

3. Development Permit 11-586344 
(Fi le Ref. No.: DP 11-586344) (REDMS No. 3382871) 

3497S88 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. 

9731 and 9751 Carnbie Road 

1. Permit the construction of 12 townhouse units at 9731 and 9751 Cambie Road on a 
site zoned Low Density Townhouse (RTL4); and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to allow a total of 16 tandem 
parking spaces in eight (8) townhouse units. 
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Matthew Cheng. Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. , provided the following information on 
the proposed 12 three~story townhouse units planned for Cambie Road near No. 4 Road: 

• since the project went to the July 20 11 Public Hearing the design of the proposed 
development has been refined; 

• the project includes two duplexes fronting Cambie Road, and two fourplexes 
fronting the internal drive aisle; 

• two metres of frontage along Cambie Road is dedicated to the City, and an 
additional right·of-passage for pedestrians will be provided; to ensure safety for 
pedestrians in the public walkway to the west, landscaping elements will mark the 
pedestTian passage to avo id confusion for vehicles drivers; 

• an existing bus stop is located 60 metres away from the proposed driveway location, 
and presents no safety issue; 

• the project's parking fulfills the bylaw requirements; 

• to make the structures more compatible with the surrounding homes, they will be 
built on existing grade, which is below the existing road elevation, so that the three­
storey townhouse units appear to rise only 2 and half storeys; 

• the third storey component of the townhouse units are setback far enough from the 
property line, up to a maximum of 7. 1 metres, to reduce or eliminate any impact on 
neighbouring properties, including no shadowing; 

• two large trees on site will be preserved, along the east property line; 

• aging in place features, including blocking in all bathrooms for future grab-bars, are 
provided in each townhouse unit; and one unit is designed to be convertible; 

• the grade meets the flood plain requirements; no living area in any of the proposed 
townhouse units are below the flood plain, while in the units at the rear of the site, 
only a small lobby sits below the flood plain; and 

• a noise study has been done, and there are indoor noise mitigation measures in place. 

Patricia Campbel l, DMG Landscape Architects, provided the following information: 

• a large, on-site Douglas Fir and a Cypress tree will be retained on the site; a 
Mountain Ash that is declining will be removed; and in lieu of the removal of ten 
trees, 20 replacement trees will be planted; 

• each townhouse unit features its own small fenced yard; 

• porous pavers and concrete banding are features of the internal drive aisle; and 

• a children's play area, with equipment, is adjacent to a grassed area at the east end. 

In response to queries from the Panel, Mr. Cheng and Ms. Campbell provided the 
fo llowing additional infonnation: 
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• the play equipment is a colourful see-saw sculptural element, and is situated near an 
outdoor bench; 

• noise from Cambie Road will be mitigated by extra treatment on exterior wall s, and 
if necessary, glass window treatments. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson, Director of Development, advised that staff supports the requested variance 
to allow for 16 tandem parking spaces for eight of the twelve townhouse units. He noted 
that the interface treatment with the property to the north of the subject site is a good one, 
and added that the four and a half meter setback at the ground level of the proposed 
townhouse units is increased to a generous seven meters above, double the bylaw 
requirement, and more than the set back required ofa single-family home. 

In response to a Panel query, Mr. Jackson advised that staff would work with the applicant 
to look into the issue of the play equipment and explore the idea of a sandbox, in addition 
to the seesaw planned for the children's play area. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

Panel Discussion 

A comment was made that considering the size of the proposed development, a 
reconfiguration of the amenity area should be considered in the landscape design. 

The Panel spoke in favour of the proposed development. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat (I Development Permit be issued which wOIlId: 

1. permit the COllstrllctioll of 12 towllhouse writs (It 9731 alll19751 Cambie Road Oil 
(I sire zoned Low Density Townhouse (RTL4); ami 

2. vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to allow a total 16 tandem 
parkillg spaces ill eight (8) townhouse ullits. 

CARRIED 
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4. Development Permit 11-589490 
(File Ref. No.: DP 11·589490) (REDMS No. 3494638) 

34975U 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

Triple A Planning Consultants 

6780 No'. 4 Road 

1. Pennit the construction of 10 bed congregate housing and 37 space child care 
facility with an accessory residential caretaker dwelling unit at 6780 No.4 Road on 
a site zoned "Congregate Housing and Child Care - McLennan (ZR8)"; and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richrnond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce the minimum road setback from 3m to 2.75m for the comer portion of 
the building located at the No.4 Road and Granville A venue intersection; and 

Applicant's Comments 

Joe Minten, Principal, 1M Architecture Inc., noted that the project was unique in nature, 
due to the combination of a la-bed congregate housing component with a 37-space 
childcare facility. Mr. Minten described the following highlights of the proposed 
development, located at the comer of No. 4 Road and Granville Ave: 

• the scale, materials, form and architectural character are residential, to conform 
with the surrounding neighbourhood; 

• the daycare component is single-storey. has a 'modernist' design, and includes an 
outdoor play area; 

• the entire project is fully accessible, with the primary vehicle access through 
Granville Avenue; 

• the west and south sides of the proposed structure, those fronting No. 4 Road and 
Granville Avenue, are useable landscaped areas; 

• the roof colour is light to enhance the overall design; 

• the tower element at the comer provides the anchor for the structure; and 

• the garbage enclosure has been pulled away from the adjacent property. 

The applicant Mr. Amin Alidina addressed the Panel and advised that Vancouver Coastal 
Heal th approves of the two distinct uses within the same development. He noted that the 
two outdoor spaces, one for the congregate housing component and another for the 
childcare faci li ty, are segregated from each other. He further noted that each part of the 
structure has its own fire exits. 

In response to a query, Mr. Minten advised that the amenity area provided for the 
congregate housing component allows residents to have an outdoor walking area within 
the confmes of the complex. 
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In response to a further query, Mr. Alidina noted that a noise study was commissioned, 
and that if aircraft noise is a concern, noise attenuation could be incorporated with exterior 
wall upgrades and the installation of thicker windowpanes. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson stated that the subject site is located in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR), 
but it is exempt from ALR requirements. because of its size and that it pre-dates the ALR. 
He also noted that the subject site is located outside the City'S sanitary sewer boundary. 
and therefore not serviced by the City. The applicant, Mr. Alidina, had agreed to create 
and maintain an on-site sewage disposal system, and should be commended for his 
perseverance in proceeding with his vision for the unique building with the combined 
uses. 

Mr. Jackson noted that the proposed structure is smaller than a single-family residence on 
the site could be. He stated that the applicant had done a tremendous job regarding the 
architecture, the layout and the proposed innovative uses. 

Mr. Jackson referenced the requested variances, and advised that staff was in support of 
those, as well as the development as a whole. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Gallery Comments 

Mr. Lu, resident of the Granville Avenue!No. 4 Road neighbourhood, posed commercial 
zoning queries to the Panel. The Chair advised Mr. Lu to speak with members of the 
Planning Department, and stated that the Development Permit Panel dealt only with form 
and character issues, not zoning matters. 

Panel Discussion 

The Panel commented that the project was innovative, with an interesting design, and 
commended the applicant for addressing adjacency issues. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
That a Development Permit be issued which would: 

1. Permit the COllstruction of 10 bell congregate housbrg and 37 space child care 
facility with all accessory residelltial caretaker dwelling IInit at 67S0 No.4 Road 
Oil a site ,Oiled "Congregate Housing ami Child Care - McLemlllJl (ZRS)"; alld 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce tire minimum road setback f rom Jm to 2. 75m for the comer portiolt 
of the buildillg located at tir e No.4 Road and Granville Avellue brtersecliOlr; 
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ami 

b) allow a screened garbage/recycling ellclosure 10 be localed along Ihe norllt 
property lille alld encroach 2.9m illio the setback for lit e east property line at 
the northeast com er of the sile. 

CARRIED 

5. New Business - None. 

6. Date Of Next Meeting - Wednesday, April 25, 2012 

7. Adjournment 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat tlte meetiug be adjourned 014:3 7 p.m. 

Dave Semple 
Chair 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the 
Development Permit Panel of the Council 
of the City of Richmond held on 
Wednesday, April 11 , 2012. 

Sheila Johnston 
Committee Clerk 
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Sc hedule 1 to t he M inutes of 

G .,' the Development Permi t ma I Panel meeting of Wednesday, susan hodges <sue.d.hodges@gmail.com> 

~cOOS~ April 11, 2012. 

Development Permit River Road DP-11-564405 
1 message 

susan ho dges <sue.d.hodges@gmail .com> 
To: mayorandcouncillors@richmond.ca 

Dear Richmond Mayor and Councililors , 

Re: Development Permit pP·11·564405 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

ru Increase the maximum permitted building height between 20.0m and 36.0m of the lot line abutting River 
Drive, from LOrn to 26.0m for the southernmost 5.0mof the upper two floors of Building "G". 

This is a request to increase the building height by more than 75% from my understanding of the above 
statement. As a property owner at 10140 River Rd., I find this completely unacceptable .. It is river 
frontage. It is not downtown Richmond. 
It will create a Bertin wall like effect where there should be an ambience and enhancement of the natural 
river front setting within the architecture and design of the project and with respect to the species along the 
rivers edge. It will increase density and increase the traffic by 75%. River Road is not built for that. 

As of the present there is single family residential across the street. There are children with bicycles, 
skateboards, walking to school and home again, to consider. As well as the families in the townhouses on 
Number 4 Road near River Road with many school age children that have to cross Number 4 road to get to 
the school. It is currently a quiet residential neighbourhood bounded by industry and mostly quiet in the 
evenings. Any buildings of this requested height would appear immense and completely destroy the 
character of the neighbourhood. It would throw an all day building shadow that would exist forever more. 
As well, the residential properies along River Road are at a low elevation to begin with , being lower than 
River Road itself. This will obstruct views of not just the river, but of Vancouver city across the river as 
well. The properties are on 50ft ground and need the sun to dry up. It could easily decrease the property 
values along River Road. 

Given the very real and intense concerns of traffic, population density, character of the neighbourhood 
impacts, shadow, inadequate roadway, questionable effect on property values by obstruction of views r 
request that Mayor and Council please reject this request. 

.ttl Reduce the building "8" setback to the proposed west property line of West Park from 6.0m to 2.7m for 
roof support solumns; and 

Again this is a request to reduce the allowable property setback by more than 50%. It is not viable . There 
needs to be green space to flow with the natural setting of the location. It is a beautiful part of the river 
despite the industrial area. The natural beauty is spectacular, it must be enhanced, not detracted from. 
Plus the closeness of the building to the road will only intensify the tension and pressure of the population. 
Also there may be an interest in community gardens by its future residents. That option would be taken 
away if this was allowed . For roadway visibility, moving in and out of parking spaces, for which I have not 
yet seen any plan, walking with strollers , physically walking and moving around, courier drop offs to 
businesses, this is the time now to set the standard for the future by simply maintaining the existing 
standard. Also I am requesting council to please consider bicycle pathways and network which will be a 
natura l mode of transport for young people commuting to Bridgeport Station. It is a perfect area to 
encourage bicycle use. Every foot of of the 6.0m allowable setback can be put to excellent use. 

£} Reduce the building "e" setback. to the proposed internal site east property line from 6.0m to 4.0m for a 
partial building and roof projection and allow the Bu ilding ""E"entry canopy to project into the internal side 
yard setback. 
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Again, this is about a 30% increase of variation to the bylaw. Council must consider the charader of the 
neighbourhood and the flow of the design with the setting . For a magnificent location such as this, one can 
only imagine that every standard must be maintained to carry this positively forward into the future. 

Sincerely 

C' 'j j 
Susan Hodges .,.. It l:?(it0 Keith Hodges, ___ ___ _ 
1575 Beach Grove Rd., (J 
Delta, B.C. V4L 1 P2 
6049438608 
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Time: 

Place: 

City of 
Richmond 

Development Permit Panel 

Wednesday, April 25, 2012 

3:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
Richmond City Hall 

Minutes 

Present: Robert Gonzalez, Chair 
Dave Semple, General Manager, Parks and Recreation 
John Irving, Director, Engineering 

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m. 

1. Minutes 

It was moved and seconded 
Thai lite mill utes of , Ire meeting of the Development Permit Pallel held 011 Wednesday, 
April 11, 2012, be adopted. 

CARRIED 

2. Development Permit 09466065 
(File Ref. No.: OP 09-466065) (REOMS No. 3360548) 

35116S2 

APPLICANT: Thomas Chalissery 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 8531 Williams Road (formerly 85 11 and 853 1/8533 Williams 
Road) 

INTENT OF PERM IT: 

l. Permit the construction of 10 townhouse units at 8531 Williams Road (fonnerly 
8511 and 853118533 Williams Road) on a site zoned Low Density Townhouses 
(RTlA); and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to allow tandem parking 
spaces in three (3) of the townhouse units and five (5) small~car parking stalls in 
five (5) of the townhouse units. 
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Applicant's Comments 

Development Permit Panel 
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Taizo Yamamoto, Yamamoto Architect lnc., spoke on behalf of the applicant regarding 
the proposed IO·unit townhouse development on Williams Road, opposite the South Ann 
Community Centre. The layout is organized around a driveway that provides access from 
Williams Road, as well as an east-west drive aisle to provide access to all unit garages. 
Mr. Yamamoto provided the following details: 

• the massing of the proposed development respects the context of the single-family 
dwellings to the north, east and west oCthe subject site; 

• three·storey units are proposed at the centre of the project, while two·storey units 
are at the east and west ends of the project; 

• the outdoor amenity space is within the central portion of the site; 

• permeable pavers in the drive aisle connect to the outdoor amenity area; pavers also 
distinguish the drive aisle ends; 

• a small play structure, with climbing apparatus, is located in the outdoor amenity 
area, an area that also features seating and a trellis structure; 

• proposed building material is Hardie· Plank siding, in a variety of forms; 

• a wann colour palette of tans and grays, with darker coloured trims, is planned, 
with a truss element meant to create some shadow on the units' facades; 

• the second storey roof form is emphasized, to create an illusion of a smaller form; 

• sustainable measures include, among others, lowe-glass windows, and energy 
efficient appliances; 

• one convertible unit is included in the design, and all other units have blocking, for 
future aging·in·place fixtures. 

Mr. Yamamoto concluded his remarks by stating that the requested variances were both 
parking-related. 

Staff Comments 

Holger Burke, Development Coordinator, advised that staff supports the application, and 
noted that, with respect to the request to allow tandem parking stalls, this type of parking 
configuration is a common feature of townhouse unit developments. 

Mr. Burke added that the request to provide a small·car parking stall in five of the 
townhouse units would allow an increase of space in the outdoor amenity area. 

Panel Discussion 

Discussion ensued between the Panel and staff, and the fo llowing advice was provided by 
Mr. Burke and Edwin Lee, Planning Technician: 
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• it is envisioned that both neighbouring 8551 Williams Road and 8491 Will iams 
Road will be developed in the future as extensions to the subject site, with potential 
cross-access through the subject site; 

• end units of the proposed development, on either side, step down to two-storeys to 
be consistent in height with the existing older home to the east, as well as other 
homes in the area; 

• cross-access for the purposes of the proposed garbage and recycling facility on the 
subject site benefits future development to the east, but not the future development 
to the west of the subject site; and 

• the facilities are appropriately sized. 

The Panel requested that Masa Ito, of Ito and Associates Landscape Architects, provide 
details of the landscape design scheme. Mr. Ito advised that: 

• the Will iams Road street frontage will be as lush as possible and will feature an 
assortment of shrubs, ground covers, perennials and grasses associated with different 
seasons of the year; 

• all front yards along the street frontage will have a picket fence element; 

• each unit will have a private yard at the back where pavers will be a feature of the 
patio surface; 

• flowering trees will be provided along the back of the units, along with other 
elements to provide a visual buffer between neighbouring properties to the north; 
and 

• the outdoor amenity area, that shares an entrance to the units, features children's 
play equipment that has a sculptural element. 

In response to a query, Mr. Yamamoto use4 display boards to indicate the location of the 
visitor-parking stall. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

Panel Discussion 

There was general agreement that the proposed development was a good one. and that the 
sculptured feature of the children's play equipment was an asset. 
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It was moved and seconded 
ThaI a Developmellt Permit be issued which would: 

1. Permit Ihe cOllstrllctiolt of 10 towllhouse writs at 8531 Williams Road (formerly 
851 J amI 853118533 Williams Road) 011 a site ZOlled Low Dellsity Townhouses 
(RTL4); allll 

2. Vary tile provisions of Ricllllroml Zoning Bylaw 8500 to allow tamlem parkillg 
spaces ill three (3) of tire tow"house lI11its amI five (5) small-cor parkillg stalls ill 
five (5) of tire townhouse ullilS. 

CARIUED 

3. Development Permit 11-594282 
(File Ref. No.: DP 11 ·594282) (REDMS No. 3491 300) 

3S 116S2 

APPLICANT: Am-Pri Construction Ltd. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 7600 Garden City Road 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

I . Permit the construction of a 23-unit town house development at 7600 Garden City 
Road on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT50) - South McLennan (City Centre); and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce the South side yard from 3 m to 2.2 m for a ground level enclosed 
garbage and recycling room; 

b) permit 0.6 m balcony projections into the South side yard for eight (8) second 
floor balconies; and 

c) permit a 0.5 m projection into the South side yard for a third floor room 
projection (unit B la) at the southeast comer of the site. 

Applicant's Comments 

Taizo Yamamoto, Yamamoto Architect Inc., spoke on behalf of the applicant regarding 
the proposed 23 unit, three-storey townhouse development on Garden City Road, near 
Jones Road. The layout includes five separate three-story buildings on a deep site. Mr. 
Yamamoto provided the fo llowing details: 

• the site is an 'orphaned lot' that remains after development on adjacent properties; 

• the proposed units' massing is in keeping with the neighbouring three-story town 
house developments to the north and to the south, and viewed from the street, the 
massing is broken down into smaller scale; 

• access to the subject site is from Turnill Street; 
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Development Pennit Panel 
Wednesday, April 25, 2012 

• architectural design features, such as stairs leading to the porch and gable 
treatments, complement the existing townhouse units on the neighbouring sites; 

• the Garden City Road frontage features a meandering greenway and a communal 
pedestrian entry to the site; 

• townhouse units are all street-facing along Garden City Road and Turni ll Street; 
units along Tumill Street have a second level balcony, and those along Garden City 
Road have ground floor porches; 

• concrete pavers emphasize the vehicular entry, and are also a feature of the outdoor 
amenity area; pavers are featured in all visitor parking stalls, and enhance 
pelmeability; 

• the colour palette for the townhouse units include a mix of neutral tones, and 
accents are created by the use of brick; 

• the outdoor amenity area is in the centre of the subject site, a location away from 
the enclosed garbage and recycling room, and includes mailboxes, a children's play 
area with lawn, and seating; and 

• sustainable measures include, among others, lowe-glass windows, energy efficient 
appliances, and enhanced site permeability by the use of permeable pavers. 

Mr. Yamamoto then addressed the requested variances and advised that: 

• the request to reduce the south side yard is meant to address the recycling area only, 
not the garbage area, and a lower enclosure is the desired outcome; and 

• the request to permit a 0.6 metre projection of balconies into the side yard is for 
eight of the 23 proposed townhouse units. and if granted, the variance would not 
impact the privacy of the residents of adjacent units; and 

• the project includes one adaptable unit, and all other units include aging-in-place 
features. 

Masa Ito, Ito and Associates Landscape Architects, provided the fo llowing information 
regarding the proposed landscape design: 

• on~site landscaping along Garden City Road and Turnill Street include lush 
landscaping, with a variety of flowering trees and plants; 

• the Garden City greenway includes new trees; 

• adjacent properties feature existing trees, such as an Oak, and Pine trees, as well as 
plant material that is complemented by the proposed landscape scheme for the 
subject site; and 

• the outdoor amenity area includes shrubs, trees, as well as a large open space for 
more physical play. 
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Staff Comments 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, April 25, 2012 

Mr. Burke advised that staff supports the application, and noted that: 

• the requested variances address setbacks and involve the south side yard; 

• the primary reason for the requested variances is the retention of five on-site trees 
along the north property line, and the desire to provide enough room for them to 
thrive; and 

• the project will: (i) complete a portion of Turnill Street with road dedication and 
will help with traffic flow in the area; and (ii) complete a portion of the Garden City 
Road greenway. 

Panel Discussion 

In response to queries, staff advised that the on-site accessible parking stall meets the 
zoning bylaw requirement, and that the 6.7 metre drive aisle width includes both the 
paved surface as well as the rollover curb edge. 

Mr. Yamamoto added that the configuration of the subject site is such that the on-site 
accessible parking stall is not directly outside the accessible unit. 

Correspondence 

Leslie-Anne Blake, #25-7533 Heather Street (Schedule I). 

Mr. Burke advised that Ms. Blake had made three suggestions. He remarked that her 
suggestion to install a stop sign at Jones Road and Turnill Street was an idea staff would 
look into. 

In response to another of Ms. Blake's suggestions, that parking on one side of Turnill 
Street be limited, Transportation staff advised that the completion of Turni ll Street, as a 
direct result of the proposed development, would improve parking. Mr. Burke further 
added that staff would assess Ms. Blake's third suggestion, that speed hwnps be added to 
Heather Street, and that staff would respond to Ms. Blake in writing. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

Panel Discussion 

The Panel noted that finishing Tumill Street would make a significant difference to the 
neighbourhood, and would improve traffic issues in the area. 

6. CNCL - 162



Panel Decision 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, April 25, 2012 

It was moved and seconded 
That a Development Permit be issued whiclt wOllld: 

1. Permit tlte constructioll of a 23-IIIIit tOWII Itouse development at 7600 Garden City 
Road 0 11 a site zoned Town lIollsing (ZT50) - South McLennan (City Celltre); 
alld 

2. Vary tlte provisions of Richmolld Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

0) redllce tlte Soutlt side yard from 3 m to 2.2 III for a ground level enclosed 
garbage ami recycling room; 

b) permit 0.6 m balcony projections illto tire SOlltlt side yard for eigltt (8) second 
floor balconies; alld 

c) permit a 0.5 III projection illto the South side yard for a tltird floor room 
projection (tmit B1a) at tIre soutlteast com er of the site. 

CARRIED 

4. New Business 

It was moved and seconded 
That tlte Development Permit Panel meeting telltatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 
16,2012 be callcelle/I, all/I that the next meeting of the Development Permit PUllel be 
telltatively scheduled to take place ill the Council Cltambers, Ric/rmoml City Hall, at 
3:30 p.m. Oil Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

CARRIED 

5. Date Of Next Meeting: Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

6. Adjournment 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat tir e meeting be adjourned at 3:57p.m. 

CARRIED 

7. 
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Robert Gonzalez 
Chair 

3S116S2 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday. April 25. 2012 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the 
Development Permit Panel of the Council 
of the City of Richmond held on 
Wednesday. April 25. 2012 

Sheila Johnston 
Committee Clerk 

8. CNCL - 164



Schedule 1 to the Minutes of 
April 13, 2012 the Development Permit 

Panel meeting of Wednesday, 
Mr. David Weber A ril2S 2012. 
Director ,City Clerks Office P , 
6911 No.3 Road 
Richmond,BC 
V6Y2C I 
604.276.4007 

Re: Development permitDP 11-594282 

Dear Mr. Weber: 
I am happy to support tWs new townhouse development only if, the City of Richmond fe-works some 
of the street sign and bylaws to support the added traffic to the neighbourhood. 

An addition of a stop sign at the end of Jones Road at Turnhill Street is greatly needed. Too many times 
I have crossed the siTeet with my children to have someone speed in from Garden City Road and not 
stop as we cross. This i, extremley dangerous and need, to be addressed immediately and is more 
relevant now with this new development and the future increase traffic. I would also request that new 
parking regulations be implemented on Tumhill Street as well . Parking should be limited to one side of 
the street for cars to pass safely as well as bicycles. 

With this increased traffic on Turnhill and Jones there will be increased traffic on Heather Street 
between Blundell and General Currie. I would like to request speed bumps be added on Heather Street 
in this area. Since one side is a park with a children's playground, people with dogs who visit the park 
and many seniors that take walks through the park from neighbouring developments. Again, too many 
times to count, a speeding vehicle races down Heather from Blundell to General Currie and too many 
times have almost hit people, dogs, children or other cars in the process. 

Please review these suggestions with your planning department and roadworks department as these are 
necessary and vital in keeping pedestrians, cyclists, and other drivers young and old, safe in our 
Heather Street neighbourhood. 

Sincerly, 

Leslie-Anne Blake 
25.7533 Roathcr Street 
Richmond, BC 
V6Y2P8 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Richmond City Council 

Joe Erceg, MCIP 
Chair, Development Permit Panel 

Report to Council 

Date: May 10, 2012 

File: 0100-20-DPER1 

Re: Development Permit Panel Meetings Held on October 13, 2010 and 
October 27, 2010 

Panel Recommendation 

That the recommendations of the Panel to authorize the issuance of: 

i) a Development Pennit (DP 07-363924) for the property at 741 1 and 7431 Moffatt Road; 

be endorsed, and the Permit so issued. 

~Ceg' MCIP 
Chair, Developme 

SB:blg 
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Panel Report 

The Development Permit Panel considered the following item at its meetings held on 
October 13,2010 and October 27, 2010. 

DP 07-363924 MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. 7411 AND 7431 MOFFATT ROAD 

(October 13, 2010 and October 27, 2010) 

The Panel considered a Development Permit application to pennit the construction of 12 townhouse 
units at 7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road on a site zoned High Density Townhouse (RTI-I4). Variances 
are included in the proposal for a reduced side yard setback and tandem parking. 

The application was considered at the October 13,2010 Development Pemlit Panel (DPP) meeting 
and deferred to the next meeting. The application was considered a second time at the 
October 27, 2010 DPP meeting. 

At the October 13,2010 meeting, Architect, Matthew Cheng, of Matthew Cheng Architect Inc., and 
Landscape Architect Patricia Campbell, ofDMG Landscape Architects, provided a brief 
presentation, including: 

• The outdoor amenity area is located at the entry point in order to create a vocal point upon 
entering the subject site, and could be enlarged with future development to the north. 

• The grades surrounding the retention trees will reduce the impact of fill on the trees. 

• Proposed building materials include hardie shingle siding and hardie-plank siding, with culture 
stone features to articulate the facades facing Moffatt Road. 

• The setback variance was a result of an additional 2.5 m north setback for tree preservation. 

In response to Panel queries, Mr. Cheng and Ms. Campbell provided the following infonnation: 

• The convertible unit is located beside the handicapped visitor parking stall. 

• The colour palette includes a range of earth tones, contrasting trims, and culture stone. 

• Two (2) lots to the south of the subject site is a townhouse development, featuring two-storey 
units in the front, and three-storey units at the rear. 

• 24 replacement trees will be planted to replace the trees to be removed due to poor condition, or 
conflict with site plans. 

• A Douglas Fir on the front yard is to be preserved on-site. 

• Four (4) London Plane trees on the adjacent property to the south are to be retained, and two (2) 
other trees on the adjacent property to the north, are to be protected. 

• A mix of tree species and ornament plants are included in the landscaping plan. 

• The play area is planned so that this development, and a future development to the north, can 
share a common play space. 

• A low fence defmes the amenity area and adds protection to the landscaping. 

• The amenity space will include play equipment for children aged 2 through 5, including a 
see-saw, with other play pieces added with future development to the north. 
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• Three (3) visitor parking spaces are provided throughout the site, including one (1) handicap 
accessible parking space located at the cross-access at the north end of the subject site. 

Staff supports the application and the two (2) variances. Staff noted that: 

• The electric closet at the south of the site is adjacent to an existing driveway on property to the 
south. Trees to the south of the subject site are located at the drive aisle and there is parking in 
between the trees. 

• The applicant had hired an arborist in 2006 to examine the trees and had recommended that 
two (2) are in good condition, and that two (2) others are not in good condition. 

• Prior to final approval of the Development Permit, the applicant has to hire an arborist and must 
indicate the tree protection plan. 

In response to Panel queries, staff advised: 

• Garbage trucks and emergency vehicles can access the site. 

• The parking space sizes and number meet the bylaw requirements. 

• The Arborist Report from 2006 stated that at that time, the trees on the adjacent site can be 
retained and would remain in place. 

• If the applicant's arborist submits a report that states that the construction phase places tree 
health in jeopardy, staff would recommend to the applicant that he bring the application back to 
the Development Pennit Panel for its approval of the alternative landscaping plan. 

The Chair noted that two (2) visitor parking spaces encroach into the dripline of some of the 
London Plane trees to be retained on the adjacent property. He queried whether the applicant had 
an arborist examining the situation to ensure the health of the trees is not jeopardized. 

Mr. Cheng advised that his client was in the process of having an arborist look at the site design. 

The Chair stated that in the Panel's recent experience, applicants had retained trees near planned 
patios, and the dripline issue had become problematic. He queried whether a retaining wall would 
also be constructed within the dripline. 

The landscape architect advised that the existing retaining wall along the west and south property 
lines on the adjacent property would remain in place. 

Public correspondence was received regarding the application from the adjacent neighbour to the 
north, Leonore Haudin, and Moffatt Road residents, Tony Thomas and Elizabeth Tan. Concerns 
were expressed in the letter regarding: 

• The number of parking spaces per townhouse unit and where extra vehicles would be parked. 

• Exiting Moffatt Road. 

• Residents converting a tandem parking space into extra habitable rooms, or storage space. 

• The small proposed side yard setback. 

• The total number of tandem parking spaces on the site. 
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In response, staff advised: 

• Transportation Division staff had examined the concerns raised. 

• The proposed parking exceeds the bylaw requirements. 

• A restrictive covenant is in place to prevent conversion of tandem parking. After the 
construction is complete, if neighbours complain to the City about parking stalls being enclosed, 
staff then investigates the alleged use of parking spaces for residential or storage purposes. 

Discussion ensued with regard to the status of the four (4) London Plane trees on the adjacent 
property to the south that are to be retained. Comments were made that: 

• The Panel wanted to hear from an arborist regarding the health and hardiness of the trees . 

• The advantage of the applicant's original site plan was that parking spaces would not encroach 
into the driplines of existing trees. 

• Feasibility of parking spaces between two (2) trees should be explored by an arborist. 

• The applicant' s landscape survey indicates that trees are close to the property lines and are at 
different grades; an arborist's report could clarify the location of the tree's limbs. 

The application was deferred to the next Panel meeting and referred back to staff to further explore 
tree retention, and the submission by the applicant of an Arborist's Report. 

At the October 27, 2010 Panel meeting, ArOOnst, Catherine MacDonald, advised that: 

• There are four (4) London Plane trees on the adjacent property to the south. 

• The health and hardiness of trees 2 and 3 would not be adversely affected by the parking spaces. 

• The health and hardiness ofttees 1 and 4 would not worsen during construction of the proposed 
townhouse units and affiliated parking spaces. 

• London Plane trees are hardy, and it is highly unlikely that they would have rooted down past 
the retaining wall along the property line, so should not be adversely affected by construction. 

In response to a query from the Chair, Ms. MacDonald advised that trees 1 and 4 have some decay, 
and trees 2 and 3 are healthier. 

A brief discussion ensued between the Panel, Mr. Cheng, and Ms. Campbell, with regard to the 
proposed wall finished grade, which would be lower than the existing retaining wall along the west 
and south property lines on the adjacent property. 

Ms. Campbell noted that the existing Fir tree on Moffatt Road is at a 0.67 grade, and in order to 
retain the tree, and the grade, four (4) steps up to the townhouse unit front porch were designed. 

Staff noted that the applicant and the arborist have addressed the concerns raised at the 
October J 3, 2010 meeting of the Development Pennit Panel to the satisfaction of staff. 

Public correspondence was not received regarding the application. 

The Chair stated that he was pleased with the additional information regarding landscaping 
provided. 

The Panel recommends that the Permit be issued. 

3530361 CNCL - 170



DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL 

REPORT AND ACCOMPANYING PLANS 

TO BE CONSIDERED BY COUNCIL 

AT THE COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED FOR 

Monday, May 14,2012 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Linda Barnes 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Evelina Halsey·Brandt 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 

Councillor Linda McPhail 
Councillor Harold Steves 
Director, City Clerk's Office 
Director, Development 
CounCil Chambers Binder 
Front of House Counter Copy 



City of 
Richmond 

To: David Weber 
Director, City Clerk's Office 

From: Brian J. Jackson, MCIP 
Director of Development 

Memorandum 
Planning and Development Department 

Date: May 9, 2012 

File: DP 07-363924 

Re: Application by - Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. for Development Permit at 
7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road 

The attached Development Pennit was given favourable consideration by the Development 
Pennit Panel at their meetings held October 13,20 I 0 and October 27, 20 I O. 

It would now be appropriate to include thi s item on the agenda of the next Council meeting for 
their consideration. 

~?,~ ;:~ 
t:- Brian J. Jackson, MelP 

Director of Development 

EL:brg 
Atl. 

3529846 --=-
.:--/RiChmond 



Time: 

Place: 

City of Richmond 

Development Permit Panel 

Wednesday, October 13,2010 

3:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers ' 
Richmond City Hall 

Minutes 

Present: Joe Erceg, Chair 
Robert Gonzalez, Gener~ ~ ager, Engineering and Public Works 
Dave Semple, Gene anager, Parks ;,lnd Recreation 

1tal the miuutes o/ the meeting o/ the Development Permit Pmtel held Olt Wedllesday, 
September 29, 2010, be adopted. 

2. Development Permit DP 07-363924 
(File Ref. No.: DP 07·363924) (REDMS No. 2938462) 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. 

74 ll and 7431 Moffatt Road 

CARRIED 

1. Permit the construction of 12 townhouse units at 7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road on a 
site zoned High Density ToWnhouse (RTH4); and 

2. Vary the provisions of Riclunond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce the south side yard setback from 2.0 III to 1.36 m for a single-storey 
electrical closet attached to the building; and 

b) allow a total of24 tandem parking spaces in 12 townhouse units. 

Applicant's Comments 

Matthew Cheng, Matthew Cheng Architect Inc., advised that the landscape; architect for 
the project was on her way, but was running late. 



)029420 

De~elopment Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 13, 2010 

The Chair advised that it was the applicant's responsibility to ensure that his whole team 
was present when the meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m., and requested that the 
applicant telephone the landscape architect to detemline her estimated time of arrival. 

When Patricia Campbell of DMG Landscape Architects arrived at 3:40 p.m. Mr. Cheng 
provided details regarding the proposed development of 12 townhouse units on Moffatt 
Road in the City Centre. 

Mr. Cheng stated that after the project was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel the 
applicant incorporated the Panel's suggested changes into the design plan. 

In response to a query from the Chair, Mr. Cheng confirmed that the changes to the design 
plan were made after the July 19,2010 Public Hearing for the rezoning of the subject site. 

Mr. Cheng then provided the following infonnation regarding the proposed d.evelopment: 

• three-storey townhouse units are proposed in two sixMplex clusters; 

• one six-plex fronts Moffatt Road and the other six-plex fronts the short internal 
drive aisle; 

• the short internal drive aisle provides access to the site from Moffatt Road, and a 
north-south drive aisle provides access to the unit garages; 

• the outdoor amenity area is located at the entry point in order to create a vocal 
point upon entering the subject site; 

• an adjacent property, to the north, has redevelopment potential, and in the future 
the amenity area of the current proposal could be enlarged, and merged, with the 
outdoor amenity area of the future development to the north; 

• each unit has a private outdoor space, consisting of either a front or rear yard, with 
balconies on the second floor; 

• the grades surrounding the retention trees will reduce the impact of fi ll on the 
trees; 

• articulated building forms include visual inierest such as gable roofs and bay 
windows; 

• pedestrian scale is provided at the ground level along the public street; 

• propo'sed building materials include hardie shingle siding and hardie-plank siding, 
with culture stone features to articulate the facades facing Moffatt Road; 

• a secondary stair is provided to all units at the back for direct access to the back 
yard from the living area; 

• the granting of the fi rst requested variance was a result of an additional 2.5 metre 
setback from the north property line for tree preservatio.o; and 

• the granting of the second requested variance would provide tandem parking. 

2. 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 13, 2010 

In response to the Chair's~queries, Mr. Cheng provided the following information: 

• the convertible unit is located beside the handicapped visitor parking stall; 

• the colour palette includes a range of earth tones, contrasting trims, and culture 
stone surfaced column; and 

• two lots to the south of the subject.site is a townhouse development, featuring two­
storey units in the front, and three-storey units at the rear. 

Patricia Campbell, DMG Landscape Architects, provided the following infonnation: 

• 24 replacement trees will be planted to replace the trees to be removed due to poor 
condition, or conflict with site plans; 

• a Douglas Fir on the front yard is to be preserved on site; 

• four London Plane trees on the adjacent propertY to the south -are to be retained, 
and two other trees on the adjacent property to the north, are to be protected; 

• a mix of tree species and ornament plants are included in the landscaping plan; 

• each townhouse unit has its own private yard with a patio and a tree provided; 

• the play area is planned so that t~s deve~opment, and a future development to the 
north, can share a common play space; and 

• a low fence in the amenity -area is provided to add protection to the landscaping 
and to defme the area. 

Panel Discussion 

Discussion ensued between the Panel and the applicant, and the following details were 
provided: 

• the amenity space for this development will include play equipment for children 
aged 2 through 5, including a sec-saw, with other play pieces added when a future 
development to the north is completed; 

• this development includes a social area with benches, and an access path; and 

• three visitor parking spaces are provided throughout the site, including one 
handicap accessible parking space located at the cross access at the north end of 
'the subject site. . 

In response to a query regarding the corifiguration of, and space available '[or, garbage 
trucks and emergency vehicles to turn around in the drive aisle, Brian J. Jackson, Director 
of Development, advised that large vehicleS can access the site, and the parking space 
meets the bylaw requirement. 

In response to queries regarding the handicap accessible and visitor parking spaces, 
related to the size of the spaces as well as the presence of the trees surrounding the spaces, 
Mr. Jackson advised that: 

• the spaces are standard and meet the bylaw requirements; and 

3. 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 13, 2010 

• an arborist report from 2006 stated tha.t at that time the trees on the adjacent site 
can be retained and would remain in place. 

The Chair noted that two visitor parking spaces encroach into the dripline of some of the 
London Plane trees to be retained on the adjacent property. He queried whether the 
applicant had an arborist examining the situation, to ensure the health of the trees is not 
jeopardi7..ed. 

Mr. Cheng advised that his client was in the process of having an arboritst look at the 
proposed site design. 

The Chair stated that in the Panel's recent experience, applicants had retained trees near 
planned patios, and the dripline issue had become problematic. He queried whether a 
retaining wall would also be constructed within the dripline. 

The landscape architect advised that the existing retaining wall along the west and south 
property lines on the adjacent property would remain in place. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson stated that staff supports the application and the two variances. He noted that 
the electric closet at the south of the ·site is adjacent to an existing driveway that accesses 
the property to the south. Trees to the south are located in the drive aisle and there is more 
parking to the south, in between the trees. 

Me. Jackson stated that the applicant had hired an arborist in 2006 to examine the trees 
and had recommended that two are in good condition, and. that two others are not in good 
condition. 

Me. Jackson noted that the trees located in the midst of the existing parking stalls are to 
the south of the subject site. He added that prior to fmal approval of the development 
pennit, the applicant has to hire an arborist and must indicate the tree protection plan. 

In response to queries from the Panel, Mr. Jackson advised that if the applicant's arborist 
submits a report that states that the construction phase places tree health in jeopardy, staff 
would recommend to the applicant that he bring the application .back to the De'.'elopment 
Permit Panel for its approval of the alternative landscaping plan. 

Correspondence 

Leonore Haudin, 126,7297 Moffatt Road (Schedule I) 

Mr. Jackson advised that Ms. lIaudin resides immediately to the north of the subject site 
and that she expressed concern regarding: (i) the number of parking spaces per townhouse 
unit; (ii) if any resident of the proposed development have more than two vehicles, where 
would park the extra vehicles; and (iii) exiting Moffatt Road. 

In response to a query from the Chair Mr. Jackson advised that all the concerns raised by 
the correspondent had been examined by Transportation staff, and that in his memo on the 
matter, Victor Wei, Director of Transportation, stated that the 27 parking spaces in the 
subject site plans exceed the bylaw requirements. 

4. 
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Tony Thomas, 224-7453 Moffatt Road (Schedule 2) 

Mr. Jackson stated that Mr. Thomas had expressed the concern that residents could 
convert a tandem parking space into extra habitable rooms, or storage space, 

Mr. Jackson advised that a restrictive covenant is in place to prevent this from occurring. 
He added that after the construction of developments, if neighbours complain to the City 
about parking stall s being enclosed, staff then investigates the alleged use of parking 
spaces for residential or storage purposes. 

Elizabeth Tan, 4-7420 Moffatt Road (Schedule 3) 

Mr. Jackson noted that Ms. Tan c:xpressed concern with the small proposed side yard 
setback, and stated that he was not sure that her concern relates only to the electrical 
closet. 

Mr. Jackson also noted that Ms. Tan's other concern was related to the total number of 
tandem parking spaces on the subject site. He advised that each townhouse unit has two 
dedicated tandem spaces, and that the planning model for the City Centre is that two 
spaces per lower, or upper, unit is acceptable. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

Panel Discussion ' 

Discussion ensued with regard ' to the status of the four London Plane trc:es on the adjacent 
property to the south that are to be retained. 

Comments were made that: 

• the Panel wanted to hear from an arborist regarding the health and hardiness of 
the trees; 

• the advantage of the applicant's original site plan was that parking spaces would 
not encroach into the driplines of existing trees; 

• feasibi lity of parking spaces between two trees should be explored by an a rborist; 
and 

• the applicant's landscape survey indicates that trees are close to the property Jines 
and are at different grades; an arborist's report could clarify the location of the 
tree's limbs. 

There was general agreement that the application should be referred back to staff, and 
should come back to the Panel for further consideration, after an arborist has submitted an 
up-to-date report. 

5. 



Panel Decision 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 13, 2010 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat Development Permit applicatioll 07-363924 be deferred to tlt e /lext Development 
Permit Panel meeting, sclteduled for Wedllesday, October 27, 2010 at 3:30 p.m. ill tIre 
Council Cltambers at Ricltmond City Hall, jor tlte purpose of f urtlIer exploration of tree 
retelltioll, and tlte submission by tire applicant of all A rborist 's Report .. 

CARRIED 

3. Development Permit 09-494270 

3029420 

(File Ref. No.: DP 09-494270) (REOMS No. 2974081) 

APPLICANT: Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 809 1 and 8 I3 1 No.2 Road 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 
1. To permit the construction of a 10-unit townhouse complex at 809 1 a 

Road on a site zoned "Medium Density Townhouses (RTM3)" ; an 

2. To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce the front yard setback from 6.0 m to 4.5 m; 

b) reduce the lot coverage for landscaping with Ii lant material from 30% to 
22%; 

c) increase the lot coverage for buildings fr 

d) pennit 12 tandem parking spaces. 

Applicant's Comments 

rchitects, advised that after the September 29, 2010 
it Panel, the landscaping plan has been changed to 

ments on the subject site. She provided the following 

Patricia Campbell, DMG Landsca 
meeting of the Development 
provide more landscaping 
additional details: 

• e as a yard fdr each to~ousc unit; 

• the amen" area features landscaping on the south side of the project, along No.2 
Road" luding small trees; 

• lay area includes a seating/social area; 

the parking stall near the outdoor amenity/play area is ncar the handicap parking 
stall; and 

the maximized landscaping includes four more trees added to the site plan. 

6. 



Suite 224 - 7453 Moffatt Road 
Richmond, BC 
V6Y 3WI 

SCHEDULE 2 TO THE MINUTES 
OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT PANEL MEETING OF 

October 08, 2010 WED. OCTOBER 13,2010. 

. 
To: Director, City Clerk' s Office 

To Oevolopmfilt Pennlt ......... 
O.t.: Od, 13 ,dOLO 
Itom #., d . 
R.: I2f' -07-3kP'l2'{, 

INT 

ii,--l!!!l.-1--' 
~---\--t--I 
;_ .. 1--+---, 
\-

_.-
-Regarding: Application for Development Permit DP 07 - 363924 at 

Street addresses, 74 I I and 7431 Moffatt Road H ;.. ·_·1 

1 live in Colony Bay condontiniums at 7453 Moffatt Road, immediately south of the proposed 
townhouse development. 1 do not have concerns about developing townhouses on the property. 

\.--\-.--+--i 

I do have concerns about one clause on the application to "vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning 
bylaw 8500 to: 

b) Allow a total of24 tandem parking spaces in 12 townhouse units. 

After reviewing the staff reports available on the website I noticed that the September 9, 2010 report 
section under Urban Design and Site planning bullet 4 states: 

• The provision of residential parking exceeds the bylaw requirement with two (2) ,tandem parldug 
spaces per Wlit. A Restrictive Covenant prohlbiting the conversion of the tandem parking area to 
habitable space is required prior to Development Pennit issuance. 

My concern is tandem parking is not a workable solution for parking vehicles in a home. 

Even with a "Restrictive Covenant" in place, without monitoring, owners can without peIIDits, convert 
the inside tandem parking spot to a more useful extra habitable room or storage at the least. When 
viewing similar townhouses for sale it was a common sales point from realtors that after occupancy, as 
the owner, you could convert the front space to another room if you desired. There was no reference to 
"Restrictive Covenants". In reality one car will park in the garage and given most households have two 
cars the other car will be looking for parking within the complex or on the street. 

Moffatt Road is almost fully developed and on street parking is currently at a premium in the evenings. 
My concern is that with few street parking spaces available, permittirig development with unworkable 
tandem parking forces new owners to park their vehicle on the street. I do not believe that permitting 
tandem parking is workable for the neighbourhood or for the new owners of the townhouses. 

Please decline the variance request for the tandem parking provision. 

~ 
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;C!-ffiDULE 3 TO THE MINUTES 
F THE DEVELOPMENT 

PERMIT PANEL MEETING OF 
WED. OCTOBER 13, 2010. 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 27, 2010 

• the proposed elevator will enhance the prominent northwest comer of the 
mall; and 

• the existing Cedar tree, planted in 1978 when the mall was can 
heritage tree. 

Staff Comments 

Brian J. Jackson, Director of Development, advised that ee on Dixon Aveflue had died, 
and was replaced with a mature shrub which wi ll be r aced by a Red Maple, and that the 
landscape design for the project includes the addif of a flowering Cherry tree. He added 
that the applicant was applying the 2-to- l ratio tree rep lacement on the site. 

With regard to the design of the propose 
the applicant does not plan a typical, 
staff supports the application. 

Correspondence 

None. 

None. 

t was moved and seconded 

evator, given the northwest corner position, 
o tower, but a lighted tower. For these reasons 

That a Developmellt Permit be issued which 1V0uid permit lire atldition of all elevator 
and associated mac/lille room to all existing bllildillg at 8040 Gardell City Road 011 a' 
site ZOlled "Community Commercial (CC)". 

CARRIED 

4. Development Permit 07-363924 

30~0476 

(File Rcf. No.: OP 07-363924) (REOMS No. 2938462) 

APPLICANT: Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 741 1 and 743 1 Moffatt Road 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

1. Pennit the construction of 12 townhouse units at 7411 and 743 1 Moffatt Road on a 
site zoned High Density Townhouse (RTH4); and 

2. Vary tile provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce the south side yard setback from 2.0 m to 1.36 m for a single-storey 
electrical closet attached to the buildi ng; and 

3. 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 27, 2010 

b) allow a total of24 tandem parking spaces in 12 townhouse units. 

Appl icant's Comments 

Mf\tthf;w Cheng, Architect, introduced arborist Catherine MacDonald. With regard to the 
status of the four London Plane trees on the adjacent property south of the subject site, 
Ms. MacDonald advised that: 

• the trees are identified as: tree I, tree 2, tree 3 and tree 4; 

• the health and hardiness of trees 2 and 3 would not be adversely affected by the 
proximity of parking spaces; 

• the health and hardiness of trees I and 4 would not worsen during construction of 
the proposed townhouse units and affiliated parking spaces; and 

. • London Plane trees are hardy, and it is highly unlikely that they would have rooted 
down past the retaining wall along the property line, so construction should not 
adversely affect their current state. 

In response to a query from the Chair, Ms. MacDonald advised that trees 1 and 4 have 
some decay, and trees 2 and 3 are healthier. She was. able to ascertain this information by 
surveying the trees from the subject site, as the trees are located on private property. She 
added that trees I and 4 are not associated with the to'wnhouse unit project, and it is not 
urgent that trees I and 4 be cut down. 

A brief discussion ensued between the Panel, Mr. Cheng, and Landscape Architect 
Patricia Campbell, DMG Landscape Architects, 'With regard to the elevation of the 
proposed wall for the subject site. It was noted that at its proposed finished grade, the wall 
would be lower than the existing retaining wall along the west and south property lines on 
the adjacent property. 

Ms. Campbell noted that the existing Fir tree on Moffatt Road is at a .67 grade, and in 
order to retain the tree, and the grade, four steps rising up to the townhouse unit front 
porch/entrances are part of the architectural design. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson noted that the applicant and the arborist have addressed the concerns raised at 
the October 13, 20 I 0 meeting of the Development Permit Panel to the satisfaction of staff 

Correspondence · 

None. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

4. 



Panel Discussion 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, October 27, 2010 

The Chair stated that he was pleased with the additional information regarding 
landscaping. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
That a Development Permit be issued which would: 

1. Permit the cOllstructioll of 12 townhouse units at 7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road 011 

a site zoned High Density Townhouse (RTH4); altd 

2. Vary tlte provisions of Ricltmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) reduce tire south . side yard setback from 2.0 III to 1.36 m for a single-storey 
electrical closet attached to tlte building; alUl 

b) allow a total of 24 tandem parking spaces ill 12 townhouse units. 

CARRIED 

2. Development Permit 10·539427 

30S0476 

(File Ref. No.: DP 10-539427) (REDMS No. 2996246) 

APPLICANT: Buttjes Architecture Inc. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 13800 Smallwood Place 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

To permit construction to extend the existing car dealership 
towards the south side by 1.06 m at 13800 Smallwood Place on 

oom ground floor 
e zoned Vehicle Sales 

(eV). 

Applicant's Comments 

Using design plans, Jeff Knoblauch, Cont or, advised the Panel that, regarding the 
proposed extension to the front buildin the site of the Signature Mazda car dealership 
at the Richmond Auto Mall, a key e ent of the renovation work is raising a parapet to a 
new' elevation. . 

In response to a query fro e Chair, Mr. Knoblauch stated that structural steel would be 
used to replace the r over the showroom, and to replace an existing canopy that will 
feature a corporat go. 

on ensued between the Panel and Mr. Knoblauch. Advice was given that: 

• existing wood frame showroom would be replaced with: (i) a new light steel 
structure; and (ii) curtain wall glazing; and 

interior renovations include new carpeting in office and public areas. 

5. 



To: 

From: 

City of Richmond 
Planni ng and Development Department 

Development Permit Panel 

Bri an J. Jackson, MCIP 
Director of Development 

Report to 
Development Permit Panel 

j; ; .0 PI' rtt'-'1:J . Oc.;(- · ,;;> 7-.:? 0 ( 0 
.:-rD' IV'/' "1/' I 'J- (" C ~ 13 /? r / [l 

Date: September 9, 2010 

File: DP 07-363924 

Re: Application by Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. for a Development Permit at 
7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road 

Staff Recommendation 

That a Development Permit be issued which would: 

I . Permit the construction of 12 townhouse units at 741 1 and 7431 Moffatt Road on a site zoned 
High Density Townhouse (RTH4); aod 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the south side yard setback from 2.0 m to 1.36 m for a single-storey electrical 
closet attached to the bui lding; and 

b) Allow a total of24 tandem parking spaces in 12 townhouse units . 

Brian ckson, MCIP 
Director of Development 

EL:blg 
Atl. 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. has applied to the City of Richmond for permission to develop 12 
townhouse units at 7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road. This site is being rezoned fTom Mediwn 
Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI) to High Density Townhouse (RTH4) under Bylaw 8615 
(RZ 08-449233). 

The site is currently vacant. There is no City standard Servicing Agreement required in 
association with this development proposal. Removal o f the existing driveways on Moffatt Road 
and fe-instating continuity of the sidewalk will be achieved via a Work Order at Building Permit 
stage. 

Development Information 

Please refer to the attached Development Application Data Sheet (Attachment 1) for a 
comparison of the proposed development data with the relevant Bylaw requirements. 

Background 

The subject site is comprised of two (2) of the very few lots avai lable for redevelopment on 
Moffatt Road between Granville Avenue and Blundell Road. The subject site is located within 
Sub-Area B.l of the City Centre Area Plan and the typical uses recommended by the Plan are 
conventional and high-density townhouses with a floor area ratio between 0.75 and 0.90. 

To the North: A single-family home, zoned medium Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI). 
The subject development is responsible for providing access to the future 
development on the existing single-family lot to the north. A development 
concept for this neighbouring parcel has been prepared and reviewed by staff, and 
is on fil e; 

To the East: Across Moffatt Road, multiple-family developments (townhouse and apartments) 
zoned Medium Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI); 

To the South: Across from the driveway to apartment complexes to the west, a townhouse 
development, zoned Medium Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI); and 

To the West: A four-storey condominiums (three (3) storeys over parking), zoned Medium 
Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI). 

Rezoning and Public Hearing Results 

The Public Hearing for the rezoning of this site was held on July 19,2010. At the Public 
Hearing, concerns related to traffic flow and parking along Moffatt Road were expressed. The 
Transportation Division was directed to respond to these concerns and a Memorandum to Mayor 
and Councillors was prepared on August 31, 2010 (Attachment 2). The Transportation Division 
concluded that no immediate action is warranted as part of this Development Permit application. 

2938462 
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There were also two letters related to construction activities such as construction noise, 
v ibrations, and potential damage to existing surrounding developments. The developer 
confmned that all construction activities, including noise and construction ho urs, will comply 
with City's Bylaws. Construction traffic will be controlled and a construction traffic plan will be 
submitted to the City at Building Permit submission stage. The developer will also retain an 
independent third party engineer to inspect the adjacent developments before construction. Any 
damage that is occurred during the construction will be fixed at the developer's own cost. 

Staff Comments 

The proposed scheme attached to this report has satisfactorily addressed the significant urban 
design issues and other staff comments identified as part of the review of the subject 
Development Permit application. In add ition, it complies with the intent of the applicable 
sections of the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is generally in compliance with the High 
Density Townhouse (RTH4) except for the zoning variances noted below. 

Zoning ComplianceNariances (staff comments in bold) 

The applicant requests to vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

I) Reduce the south side yard setback from 2.0 m to 1.36 m for a single-storey electrical closet 
attached to the building. 

(Staff supports tlte proposed variance, as it is a minor variance, which allows for a 
sillgle-storey electrical closet to encroach into the south side yard setback. The variance is 
the result of all adllitional2.S m setback from the north property line provided/or the 
purpose o/tree protectioll. The proposell entry llriveway and the frollt bllildillgs are 
shifted south in order to preserve two (2) trees situatell Oil tlte adjacent property to tlte 
nortlL). 

2) AJlowa total 0[24 tandem parking spaces in 12 townhouse lmits. 

(Staff supports tlte proposell variance as it is considered millor, alUl is consistellt with other 
townhouse development ill Richmond. The City's Transportation Department has 
reviewed and accepted the provision of tandem parkillg. A Restrictive Covenant 
prohibiting the cOllversion of the tamlem parking area to habitable space is required prior 
to Development Permit issuance.) 

Advisory Design Panel Comments 

The Advisory Design Panel supported the project and changes have been incorporated in line 
with comments made by Panel members. A copy of the relevant excerpt from the Advisory 
Design Panel Minutes from August 19,2009 is attached for reference (Attachment 3). The 
design response from the applicant has been included immediately following the specific Design 
Panel comments and is identified in ' bold italics'. 

Analysis 

Conditiolls of Adjacellcy 
• The proposed height, building form, si ting and orientation of the buildings respect the 

massing, and facilitate a softer interface, with surrounding existing residential developments. 

2938462 
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• The increased north side yard setback (range from 5.24 m to 9.63 m) provides adequate 
separation between the proposed threc-storey tow nhouse units and the existing single-family 
houses to the north. This setback ameliorates any overshadowing of the existing single­
family dwellings as welL 

• Protection of the existing trees on the adjacent property along the eastern portion orthe north 
property line, and planting of new trccs on site along the western portion of the north 
property li ne, minimize potential overlooking issue. 

• A 1. 8 m (6 ft.) m high fence and a trelli s structure have been incorporated to mitigate 
headlight glare to adjacent single-family home to the north. 

• Adjacent property to the north is expected to be redeveloped in the future to a building Conn 
similar to the proposed development. A conceptual development is on file. A cross-access 
agrcement allowing access to/from the future development site to the north is secured 
through the rezoning. 

• The site will be rai sed to approximately 1.10 m geodetic. Existing retaining wall along the 
west and south property lines on the adjacent property will remain. 

Urban Design ami Site Plallllillg 
• The site layout is organized around one ( I) short driveway provid ing access to the site from 

Moffatt Road and a north-south drive aisle providing access to the unit garages. 
• 12 three-storey townhouse units are proposed in two (2) six-plex clusters - one (l) fron ts 

onto Moffatt Road and anotiler one (1) fronts onto the internal drive aisle. 
• Pedestrian character has been maintained and enhanced along Moffatt Road witb the 

provision of at-grade living space, street front entries and additional landscaping. 
• The provision of residential parking exceeds the bylaw requirement with two (2) tandem 

parking spaces per uni t. A Restrictive Covenant prohibiting the conversion of the tandem 
parking area to habitable space is required prior to Development Permit issuance. 

• A total of three (3) visitor parking spaces are provided throughout the site, including one (1) 
accessible parking space. 

• A total of20 Class- l bicycle parking spaces are provided within the garages and three (3) 
Class-2 bicycle parking spaces are provided in the outdoor amenity area. 

• The outdoor amenity area is proposed at the entry point for maximum exposure. The size of 
the outdoor amenity space is in excess ofilie Official Community Plan (OCP) guidelines. 
The location is appropriate in providing open landscape and amenity convenient to all of the 
units as well as a green feature at the end of the driveway into the site. 

• The amenity area is expected to be enlarged and consolidated with the outdoor amenity area 
oftbe future development to tbe north by a coordinated design and removal of the fence in 
between. Registration ofa cross-access agreement is required prior to issuance of the 
Development Permit. 

• Each unit has private outdoor spaces of approx imately 37 m2 consisting of front or rear yard 
and balconies on the second floor. All of the private outdoor spaces can be accessed directly 
hom the li ving space. 

• The garbage and recycling enclosure is located on the soutb side of the entry driveway and 
has been incorporated into the design of the building to minimize its visual impact. 

293&462 
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Architectural Form lind Character 
• The building [amls are well articulated. Visual interest has been incorporated with gable 

roofs, bay windows, balconies, porches, and vertical columns. 
• A pedestrian scale is provided at the ground floor level of the units along the public street 

and internal drive aisle with the inclusion of windows, doors, porches, and landscape 
features. 

• The impact of blank garage doors has been mitigated with panel patterned doors, transom 
windows, planting islands, and pedestrian entries. 

• The proposed building materials (hardic shingle siding, hardie-plank siding, wood trims, 
double glazed vinyl framed window, culture stone, and asphalt roof shingles) are generally 
consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Guidelines. 

• The colour palette includes a range of earth tone colours, highlighted with contrasting trims 
and culture stone surfaced column. 

• Accessibility features that allow for aging in place havc been incorporated into this 
development (i.e., blocking in all bathrooms for grab-bars, level handle for all doors, and 
lever faucet in all bathrooms and powder rooms). 

• One (I) convertible unit has been incorporated into the design. Alternate floor plans 
demonstrating simple conversion potential to accommodate a person in a wheelchair are 
provided (see alternative floor plans for Unit #12 where a vertical lift: may be installed). 

Lom/scope Design and Open Space Design 
• The landscape design was developed considering tree retention. A large Douglas Fir tree in 

the front yard is to be preserved on site. Four (4) large Maple trees on the adjacent property 
to the south and two (2) other trees on the adjacent property to the north are to be protected. 
Tree protection fencing on-site around the driplines of the retained trees on-site and off-site 
wi ll be required prior to any construction activities occurring on-site. A contract with a 
certified arborist to oversee site preparation activities on-site and supervise any constructions 
and hard surface paving withln the protection zone is required. 

• Tree preservation was reviewed at rezoning stage and 20 bylaw-sized trees on-site are to be 
removed due to general poor condition. One (l) bylaw-sized tree is to be removed due to 
conflict with the proposed building footprint and grade changes. A total of 42 replacement 
trees are required. 

• The landscape design includes the planting of24 replacement trees (including large calliper 
and ornamental species) and a variety of shrubs and ground covers, which meets the Official 
Community Plan (OCP) guidelines for tree replacement and landscaping. Cash-in-lieu of 
planting 19 replacement trees has been secured at rezoning stage. 

• Permeable concrete pavers are proposed on the entire length of the drive isle to improve site 
permeability. The proposed total lot coverage for permeable surface, including landscape 
area, is 44.8%. 

• A chi ldren's play equipment on resilient surface, as well as an open lawn area for casual 
play, are proposed in the outdoor amenity area. A paved walkway to the play areas and 
benches complement the children play area and facilitate parent supervision. 

• Cash-in-lieu for indoor amenity has been provided as a condition of rezoning approvals. 
• Low metal fencing and landscaping vegetation is used along the Moffatt Road frontage to 

enhance the appearance from the street. 
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Crime Prevention Through Euvironmelltal Design 
• The site design provides both internal uni t privacy and passive surveillance of internal 

roadways and communal areas to enhance safety for residents; 
• Landscape area is designed to allow visual surveillance between top of low-growing shrubs 

and tree branches that are approximately 1.8 m above ground level. 
• Adeq uate li ght level is provided with ballard lights at pubLic space. 
• Pot lights will be installed at each main unit entry as well as the secondary entry of 

Building A at the internal driveway. 

Sllstaillabilily 
• The applicant advises that the project includes the following sustainabi lity features : 

--+ The project uses hardie materials as primary cladding material, which contains 10% 
post-industrial or pre-consumer recycled content and lasts longer to reduce the 
mai ntenance and repair cost. 

~ 19% of permeable pavers are used in the project to allow for maximum stoml water 
infiltration potentiaL 

~ Lighting level wi ll be appropriate to create no light pollution to surrounding areas. 
~ Planting generally has been designed with low water usage in mind and plant selection 

reflects appropriate choices in terms of the scale of the development and year-round 
interest. 

~ The development wi ll encourage sub-trades to use recycled materials, including recycled 
content in steel, concrete, window frames etc. , wherever feasib le. 

~ Construction techniques drning the development phase will be employed to keep the air 
quality as high as possible. 

~ A central recycle bin will be provided during the construction phase and construction 
waste wi ll be grouped into wood, plastic, metal, drywal l, etc. and will be delivered to an 
appropriate transfer station for recycle. 

Conclusions 

The applicant has satisfactorily addressed staffs comments regarding conditions of adjacency, 
site planning and urban design, architectural form and character, and landscape design. The 
applicant has presented a development that fi ts into the existing context. Therefore, staff 
recommend support ofthis Development Permit application 

/~ 
~ <-.-_-;2-

Edwin Lee 
Planning Technician - Design 
(Local 4121) 

EL:blg 

The following are to be met prior to forwarding this application to Council for approval: 
• Receipt of a Letter-of-Credit for landscaping in the amount of$5 1,202.60 (based on total floor area of25,601.3 

1\'). 
• Registration ofa covenant prohibiting the conversion of parking area into habitable space. 

2938462 
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• Registration of a cross-access easement over the outdoor amenity area between the subject site and the future 
development site to the north, at 7391 Moffatt Road and/or any consolidate there of, for shared use of the 
outdoor amenity space. The agreement must include language to ensure that no fence could be placed along the 
common property line to divide the consolidated amenity area. 

• Submission ofa contract with a certified arborist to oversee on-site works conducted on the subject site close to 
the protected trees onsile and on the adjacent properties. The contract should include provisions for completion 
of a post-impact assessment report to be reviewed by the City. 

Prior to future Building Permit issuance, the developer is required to complete the following: 
• Removal of the existing sidewalk crossings and reinstatement of the side walk through a City Work Order at 

developer'S cost. 
• The applicant is required to obtain a Building Permit for any construct ion hoarding associated with the 

proposed development. If construction hoarding is required to temporarily occupy a street, or any part thereof, 
or occupy the air space above a street or any part thereof, addi tional City approvals and associated fees may be 
required as part of the Building Permit. For further information on the Building Permit, please contact 
Building Approvals Division at 604-276-4285. 

• Submission of a construction traffic and parking management plan to the satisfaction of the City'S 
Transportation Division (http://www.richmond.calservicesftlp/spccial.htm). 

2938462 



City of Richmond 
69 11 No.3 Road 
Richmond, Be V6Y 2Cl 
www.richmond.ca 
604-276-4000 

Development Application 
Data Sheet 

Development Applications Division 

DP 07 -363924 Attachment 1 

Address: 7411 and 7431 Moffatt Road 

Applicant: Matthew Cheng Architect Inc. Owner: Mei Qjn, Jian P Wu, Xue Y Liu 

Planning Area(s): City Centre Area Plan (Schedule 2.10) - Sub-Area B.1 

Floor Area Gross: 2,37B.4 m' (25,601.3 ft') Floor Area Net: 1,694.1 m' (1B,235.9 ft') 

Existin Proposed 

Site Area: 1991.07 m' 1991 .07 m2 

Land Uses: Single-Family Residential Multiple-Family Residential 

OCP Designation: Neighbourhood Residential No Change 

Area Plan Designation : General Urban (T4) No Change 

Zoning: 
Medium Density Low Rise Apartment 

I (RAM1 ) 
High Density Townhouse 

I (RTH4) 

Number of Units: 2 12 

I 
Bylaw 

I Proposed I Variance 
Requirement 

Floor Area Ratio: Max. 0.9 0.B5 none permitted 

Lot Coverage - Building: Max. 45% 44.8% none 

Lot Coverage - Landscaping: Min. 25% 25.8% none 

Setback - Front Yard (m): Min. 4.5 m 6.47 m none 

Setback - North Side Yard (m): Min. 2.0m 5.24 m none 

0.64 m for a portion of 
Setback - South Side Yard (m): Min. 2.0 m 1.36 m an electrical room 

attached to the bui lding 

Setback -Rear Yard (m) : Min. 2.0 m 6.19 m none 

Height (m): 12.0 m (3 storeys) 11.46 m (3 storeys) none 

1 ,BOO m' (min. 40 m 
1991.07 m2 (min. 

Lot Size (min. dimensions): 
wide x 30 m deep) 

40.84 m wide x none 
4B.77 m deep) 

Off-street Parking Spaces - 1.4 (R) and 0.2 (V) 2 (R) and 0.25 (V) 
none 

Residential (R) I Visitor (V): per unit per unit 

Off-street Parking Spaces - Total : 20 27 none 

2938462 
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Tandem Parking Spaces: not permitted 24 24 tandem parking 
stalls in 12 units 

Bicycle Parking Space - Class-1 
1.25 spaces per unit 20 none 

15 spaces 

Bicycle Parking Space - Class-2 
0.2 spaces per unit;:: 

3 none 3 spaces 

Amenity Space - Indoor: 
Min. 70 m2 or Cash-in- $12,000 cash-in-lieu 

lieu none 

Amenity Space - Outdoor: 
Min. 6 m2 x 12 units;: 

109 m' 72 m2 none 

2938462 



To: 

City of 
Richmond 

ATTACHMENT2 

Memorandum 
Planning and Development Department 

Transportation 

Date: August 31, 2010 

From: 

Mayor and Councillors 

Victor Wei, P. Eng. 
Director, Transportation 

File: 10-6450-01 /201 O-Vol 01 

Re: TRAFFIC AND PARKING CONCERNS ON MOFFATT ROAD 

At the July t 9, 2010 Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings, the following referral was made: 

"During discussion, staff was directed (0 consult with the Transportation Division regarding 
potential traffic flow problems aru! parking restrictions on Moffatt Road" 

This memorandum responds to the referral and provides Council with the findings ofstafrs 
investigation on the above noted matter. 

1. Specific Traffic and Parking Concerns 

The traffic and parking concerns were expressed in relation to the proposed rezoning of7411 and 7431 
Moffatt Road from "Medium Density Low Rise Apartment (RAMI)" co "High Density Townhouse 
(RTH4)" to permit development of twelve (12) three-storey townhouses. Specifically, the following 
concerns were expressed: 

• 
• 

• 

increase of traffic on Moffatt Road due to the proposed development; 
lack of traffic signals andlor restriction of left-rurn movements on Moffatt Road at both Granville 
Avenue and Blundell Road; and 
illegal parking on Moffatt Road and within the parking areas of private residential complexes. 

2. Existing Conditions 

Moffatt Road is a north-south local road between Granville Avenue and Blundell Road that consists of 
two travel lanes, one in each direction, with sidewalk and curb and gutter provided on both sides. On­
street parking is generally permitted. Traffic calming measures (i.e., curb extensions) have been 
instatled on Moffatt Road at Granvi lle Avenue and a crosswalk is located approximately 220 metres 
south of the Granville Avenue intersection to facilitate pedestrians crossing the street and to calm traffic. 

Moffatt Road forms T-intersections with both Granv ille-Avenue and Blundell Road. At the Moffatt 
Road-Granville Avenue intersection, a stop sign is posted on Moffatt Road and traffic on Granville 
Avenue has the right-of-way. With the landscaped centre median on Granville Avenue, traffic 
movements are restricted to right-in and right-oue only to/from Moffatt Road. Pedestrians can cross 
Granvil le Avenue via the pedestrian signal located at the access to the Minoru Public Library and 
Cultural Centre located approximately 25 metres east of Moffatt Road. 

At the Moffatt Road-Blundell Road intersection, a stop sign is also posted on Moffatt Road and traffic 
on Blundell Road has the ri ght-of-way. A pedestrian signal is provided at the intersection that can be 
activated by pedestrians (not vehicles) wishing to cross Blundell Road. Traffic on Blundell Road has 
the right-of-way and receives the continuously flashing green traffic signal indication except during 
297337S 
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dedicated signal phases activated by pedestrians (via pedestrian push buttons) on Moffatt Road who 
intend [ 0 cross Blundell Road. There are no restrictions in place to restrict any traffic movements. 

3. Findings of Staffs Review 

To address the traffic and parking concerns expressed by the public and identify necessary mitigation 
measures, staff have conducted a review of the locations as noted above. The key findings are 
summarized below. 

Concern: Increase of traffic on Moffatt Road due to the proposed development. 
Response: Based on industry-recognized tfip generation rates published the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers, the proposed 12-unit townhouse development would generate less than ten 
vehic ular trips in the peak hour, which would have minimal impacts and can be accommodated 
within the existing configuration of Moffatt Road at and between Granville Avenue and Blundell 
Road. No immediate action is required at this time. 

Concern; Lack of traffic signals andlor restriction of left-tum movements on Moffatt Road at Granville 
Avenue and Blundell Road. 

Response; Both intersections operate well with adequate levels of service provided for the traffic. 
There are sufficient gaps in the trafftC on the arterial streets (i.e., Granville Avenue and Blundell 
Road) and adequate s ightlines for the traffic on Moffatt Road to access or cross the arterial streets. 
At the Granville Avenue intersection, the installation ofa traffic signal and permitting left-turn 
movements are not advisable due to the close proximity to the access (contro lled via a pedestrian 
signa l) to the Minoru Public Library and Cultural Centre and also that these measures are not warranted 
based on recognized industry standards. At the Blundell Road intersection, left-turn movements are 
already permitted. Upgrade of the existing pedestrian signal to a full traffic signal is not warranted at 
this time. However, consideration may be given to providing vehicle detection on Moffatt Road to 
facilitate left-turn vehicles from Moffatt Road to Blundell Road during the walk phase. Staff will 
continue to monitor the traffic conditions and if warranted in the future, this upgrade would be 
incorporated as part of Transportation's capital program, which is subject to Counci l approval as part 
of the annual capital budget review and approval process. 

Concern: Illegal parking on Moffatt Road and within the parking areas of private residential complexes. 

Response: As on-street parking is generally permitted along Moffatt Road, any illegal parking (i.e., 
near fire hydrants, within driveway clearances, in the travel portion of the road, etc) on Moffatt Road 
could be mitigated by increasing bylaw enforcement. Staff will continue to work closely with 
Community Bylaw staff to enforce the existing on-street parking restrictions. With respect to the 
illegal parking within the parking areas of private residential complexes, these lots are managed by 
private property owners/management companies and as such, concerns of this nature would best be 
directed to the property owners/management companies in question. 

Please contact me at 604-276-4131 if you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter fuITher. 

2' < 72 ? 

Victo r Wei, P. Eng. 
Director, Transportation 

FL:lce 
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Excerpt from the Minutes from 

The Design Panel Meeting 

Wednesday, August 19, 2009 - 4:00 p.m. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 

Rm. M.l.003 
Richmond City Hall 

Attachment 3 

That DP 07-363924 move forward to the Development Permit Panel taking into consideration 
the fo llowing comments of the Advisory Design Panel: 

1. Consider the si te planning of the development, in particular the orientation of Buildings B 
and C in order to improve the layout, reduce the amount of road, and increase soft 
landscaping; 

Building Band C has been reoriented allli combined il110 Olle building. There are six 
lIuits at the frollt and 6 units at lite back witlt one i"ternal driveway. 

2. Consider shi fting/moving the adaptable unit closer to the south near the handicap parking 
stall or consider Units lA and 12C for adaptabili ty as they have the opportunity for 
liveability on the ground floor via a vertical li ft; 

Tire convertible IInit;s at ullit 12 rigltt beside tire Hie visitor parkillg stall. 

3. Ensure grades around retention trees remain the same in order to reduce the impact of fill 
on the trees; 

Grade around tire tree protection area will remain tire same as tlte existing grade. 

4. Consider adjusting the colour palette as it appears dark and differentiate the roof and 
accent; 

Tire colour palette is adjusted with liglrt coloured IraNlie siding witlr Ir eritage red at tire 
groulldjloor siding aud wall shingles siding. 

S. Consider articulating Building A' s roofline in consideration of the neighbours; 

Buildillg A roof line is stepping down gradually from south to !lorth ami finally 
meeting lite lower gable of buildillg A 1I0rth facade. The top floor ami 2nd floor 
rooflille are intercepted by gable end roofs aud balcony roofs. Building A is also 9. 7m 
away from the north neighbour building with 3.4m landscape screening the nortII 
property and the project driveway. 

6. Consider the location of the parking stalls, particularly at the west end; 

Three visitor parkiug stalls are provided; two at the soulh end and Olle at lIorth end. 

7. Consider the accessibility and usability of the patios in Buildings B and C; 

A secondary stair is provided to all uuits at the backfor direct access to tile back yard 
from the living area. 



July 13, 2010 - 10 - DP 07-363924 
8. Consider low fencing in the amenity area in order to have more protection and to define 

Lhe area; 

Low felice is provided. 

9. Consider introducing planting at the space between the garbage / recycling area and Unit 
I ; 
Plantillg is provided between Ullit 1 ami the driveway. 

10. Ensure fencing respects retention trees; 

Fencing is kept away from tlte retentioll frees. 

II . cons ider replacing small areas of lawn with other ground cover or shrubs for massing and 
sustainability; 

Small areas of lawlI are replaced witlt other ground cover or shrubs. 

12. Remove Euphorbia from the plant list and replace with another perennial; 

Euphorbia is removed from tire plaut list. 

13. Consider having more plant diversity in the hedge materials; and 

More plant diversity for the hedge materials are added. 

14. Consider shifting Building A Southward to create more space for garbage/ recycling area. 

Mill. 2.6mx 1.5m space is providedfor garbage and recycle area. 

CARlUED 

2938462 



City of Richmond 
Planni ng and Deve lopment Department Development Permit 

To the Holder: 

Property Address: 

Address: 

MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. 

7411 AND 7431 MOFFATT ROAD 

MATTHEW CHENG 
C/O #201 - 445 WEST 6TH AVENUE 
VANCOUVER, BC V5Y 1L3 

No. DP 07-363924 

I. This Development Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the City 
appl icable thereto, except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This Development Permit applies to and only to those lands shown cross-hatched on the 
attached Schedule "AI! and any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon. 

3. The "Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500" is hereby varied to: 

a) reduce the south side yard setback from 2.0 m to 1.36 m for a single-storey electrical 
closet attached to the building; and 

b) allow a total of24 tandem parking spaces in twelve (12) townhouse units. 

4. Subject to Section 692 of the Local Government Act, RS.B.C.: buildings and structures; 
off-street parking and loading facilities; roads and parking areas; and landscaping and 
screening shall be constructed generally in accordance with Plans # I to #4 attached hereto. 

5. Sanitary sewers, water, drainage, highways, street lighting, underground wiring, and 
sidewalks, shall be provided as required. 

6, As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, the City is holding the securi ty in the amount of 
$5 1,202.60. to ensure that development is carried out in accordance with the tenns and 
conditions of this Permit. Should any interest be earned upon the security, it shall accrue to 
the Holder ifthe security is returned. The condition of the posting of the security is that 
should the Holder fail to can'y out the development hereby authorized, according to the terms 
and conditions of this Pennit within the time provided, the City may use the security to carry 
out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Holder. Should the Holder carry out the dcvelopment pennitted by this permit within the 
time set out herein, the security shall be returned to the Holder. The City may retain the 
security for up to one year after inspection of the completed landscaping in order to ensure 
that plant material has survived. 

7. Jf the Holder does not commence the construction permitted by this Permit within 24 months 
of the datc of this Permit, this Permit shall lapse and the security shal l be returned in full. 

2931>462 



Development Permit 

To the Holder: 

Property Address: 

Address: 

MATTHEW CHENG ARCHITECT INC. 

741 1 AND 7431 MOFFATT ROAD 

MATTHEW CHENG 
C/O #201 - 445 WEST 6TH AVENUE 
VANCOUVER, BC V5Y 1L3 

No. DP 07-363924 

8. The land described herein shall be developed generally in accordance with the terms and 
condi tions and provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this 
Permit which shall form a part hereof. 

This Permit is not a Building Permit. 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION NO. 
DAY OF 

DELIVERED THIS DAY OF 

MAYOR 

2938462 

ISSUED BY THE COUNCIL THE 



II 
C

it
y 

o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

~ H
 II

 
\\1

 
~ ~

I 
.

r
-.

U
A

N
V

l
I
l
 .

....
 A

V
E

 
" 

• ~ c o 

l;l
l 

;.: 
I 
L

Z
J 

c
i 

-

V[!
J 
w

~· 
"-

~
 

'"' 
"-

"-
'"' 

45
.7

3 
"-

48
.7

7 

<l
li 

78
.1

0 

54
.8

6 

~
~
 ~
 

0
)
 

0 
C
'
)
~
 

"
-
~
 

-
1-

D
P

 0
7-

36
39

24
 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 "

A
" 

~ Eo
-< ~ ~ ~ 

"' N
 -<D ~~ 

..
.r

-

O
ri

gi
na

l D
at

e:
 0

3/
14

/0
7 

R
ev

is
io

n 
D

at
e:

 0
91

1 
01

1 
0 

N
ot

e:
 

D
im

en
si

on
s 

ar
c: 

in
 M

E
T

R
E

S 

<::
> 

<::
> ;:'!:
 



[ ~ ~ 

,~ J [Ql 

I 
II!! 
,~! ... ~ 



0 

~~ I m ~~ bi, 
~1i :jll 
~or: I Ii « J.n 

<Q "<l' .. r:\l 
"< (J:J 
", C") 

• • ~ (Q 
''I C") 

~ " . . "" I" . '" i-~~ !II.' III- eg~: l:l t-
,! :1'1 

Iln~u," 

~ - 0 ""!L1ll! I ~~~i -J~~ ~ " 
~ 

J. I· I b~~o£ ~ 

~ " ! I '""" ....... • ~ 

SV'lOO~ mClMOd aNY SViOO~Hl va 1111 NI msn 38 01 13Jnv J t!3A31 • 
stlooa lTv' tlO.:l Q3sn 38 01 310NVH t!3fl31 

'st:/va aVtl8 tiD.:! $Y'lOOtlH1V8 l Tv NI 030ll\Qtld 38 01 8NI>tJ018 

'\ 
a\;loCi 11 \;I.LJON 

Iv rlNIOlIl'iel 

. '. 
Is ~Nlalln81 

. , 

! 

III 
!~ 

! 

!!l 
.~ 

! 
H. 
j i; 

':J 

~ - .~ 

". 

2: 
<t 
...J 

'" 

I 
./ 

. 

. , 

" 

Cs " '0\ . 
~~ '"t 

nJ 
f-. c' <t, J 

Ct:'~ 
f. :? 
(/) 

\'\. 



, 

- - / , , , 

, , 
, 

f]\;IOd 11 \;I LION 

\~, ~~",~==----~ ---, 
, 

'. 

r'-, 
f'=~ 1 I 

I I 
I I 
I I 
L J- - - _._,- - -

." 

- ,- ,-- £ - - ,---

! 
i 

'" . "" I ' 



~I! , , 
H 



---+<- 3 --
_1< ________ _ 

a't/o~ II 't/ :J:iOW 

.... 
o 



i , 
• 

I 
;' .' 

II 

\ 

'l,J 

.' , 
i 
I 
~ 

" I' 0 " · . · , 
" · . 
. J 

, 

"" i·"''''' I 
8 , 

1 t 

lIn 
'I" .. , 
I! 

1 ~ 
\ .' 

m 
!Il=== 

.:i'i 

, 

\.!) 11 'i' I I :;; ,! j!.I ;In 
oil'JI' ;I , ~ f ' J • 

, 

~ , 
I 

, , , 

I 

, 
• , 

! 
i 
, 
• 

~ ! 
• 1 

! ~ , , , 

- 0 

g ~ 2" -0 . 

H'i ;:j=l . ' 00 • o· . " I .-
~ =11 

. 0 

! " , 
I 

., 
h "1'1' I II I i,i ! a 

I!L± \ ~ 

! '" .j 
-J I 

! 
! d iii 

· • • .. 

I 
I , 
! 
! 
; 



I ' 

I ' I i! 
I I I ii 
ii',' I 

, " I' , I ! I' III I I I!! 
1 'II I! ill 

I Ii 1111 i I II 

i H,I i i i'lli 
'I I j! 1 I' I 11 i I f 'III ; 

:!!!!! 11! !)I.· 

, 
I , , , ' , - , , 
! I, 
! I 1 

d! i 
II ! '. !III J I ,,, 'I' II, i, i 
i f: il j i ! 
I tlf:!'I' ,,1.1, , 
. Ii h ! .t 
! I' III! I ! Ii I' II .. J .I _ .. 

[j 11 'i' ~ ~ j!,1 
oil-!l! 

I ! II, -,I, f 
if ( 
l • 

' 0 ," . 
~ 15 ill 
:0: !Ii ~ -

~ ~ : I 
"~ I , , 
~ .' , 

II , 
, , 
! I I i 
iii 
11 II' j I , l • 

I t ,i I d 
. Ill! 1 I I I 
'''' I 'I ,It "t J. • II 
ill i I ! I Ii 
II> I 'I ' "'I ijll ,i . I 
hi J ill Ilnl'llll, i 
ill J j!\ J' I II I 
!!!!I~!!.'''·!I. 

• 
~2 
<" u< 
~!:i! <' <u 
~: 
• 

, ! 

, , 
, I 

, , 
! 
! 

, , 

' ' 

I ,i! I' !i 
, , I II i !I 

1 I , " I Ii 
'I . : I I, '0' I .• I . 
II! !!' dill 
i I I ~! i j! ! I ii" I Ii I, , I' II I! I ~ II :1 

. I ill I 11,1 i j II 
, , "" , I " I l,i{Ii!: l'll! It 

I " J ,,! III Jl I I-
-ttft-ft-f-tttttfli I ,i j I 1\1 1,1, II i !'I' 

,1,1111,1 !!Ij!,i!h 

" 
'" I "II ",' _ !~I!JJ!! . . !f!.lJ 



~ 
0 

.i I • • .~ ~~ I a 0 , 'u 
I ~ liil f " ji .... t= ".; U I 

0'< <" ~~ hit II m.::: .... 'i\;o 01' q. li~=~ §~ 
I .. ; I ll.l "II .ll!!l!l!l B~~g '" I' ~~ iii, --10"'130 .... 

d: .",j< 
.::T 01 

, 

!i ! % OJ j r~') 

"" cO 

'" 
c':) 

" l-~ 

~ 0 
'" ~ ~ 



, , 
j 

.0 
. :;1; 

q 'I'i jdq~ 1 J I 



ilu I I 

~ 
"Z I 
~g bM iiii Jm'> 
"- '~I WH 1=5 I. 
~~ lJU J~~ ...... 

z 
~ 
u w 
~ z1r ~ 
~ 
< • 
u 
z 
Z 

" ~ w 
~ 

oil , , , " " j 
(J!lfJ.'J l1'fJ~ Jj.j •. _----------- --- j 

: '. '" 
,- " 

., 
i y~, 11 : 

p- I- if I ~; , 
, 

; I ~ 
'", r.;; 

,b... ~~ ~ 
;: 

_. 
'", 'v - <. 1 ....... ~ 

I' " . • ~i ::; 

r-; 
l- f- L '---I ·, I 

" 

J ~ 
"'" " <,. . ... .-- ----------·-f 

" ..-
'. , , . "'. 'I 

, '. , 
" '. " <, 

<' 

~! 
., 
~'< 
• 

I 
! , 

J ! ! 



1
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

l 

IB
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
al

 
IB

U
IL

D
IN

G
 

A
I 

E
r;

 

m
 

. i L
 

~
 

J 
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
-

B
LO

C
K

IN
G

 
TO

 
B

E
 

P
R

O
V

lD
E

D
 

IN
 

A
ll
 

S
A

 T
H

R
O

O
M

S
 

to
R

 
G

R
A

B
 

B
A

R
S

. 
LE

V
E

R
 

H
A

N
D

LE
 

TO
 8

E
 

U
S

E
D

 
FO

R
 
A

ll
 

O
D

O
R

S
 

LE
V

E
R

 
F

A
U

C
E

T
 

TO
 

B
E

 
U

S
E

D
 

IN
 

A
ll

 
B

A
T

H
R

O
O

M
S

 
A

N
D

 
P

O
W

D
E

R
 

R
O

O
M

S
 

m
 

M
A

TT
H

EW
 C

H
EN

G
 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
IN

C
. 

_
w
·
~
 .
. _

.
-
.
 

:'-
=

r'
..

=
l1

::
::

"_
 

.. __
 .... -

-

.. 
-

~
:
&
%
.
 
~
7
:
:
'
 

:
I
~
 .

. -
:
~
f
=

-­
I
:
~
 as

:: 
:: 

.. :
t'}

;: 
~:

:. 

- --12-UNIT 
TO

W
N

H
O

O
S

( 
OE

VE
LO

I'W
(H

T 
H

n
 I

oIO
fu

n
 R

O.
I.D

 
R

I()
!Io

IO
N

D
. 

B.
C

. 

GR
OU

ND
 F

OO
R 

Pl
A

N
 

SE
P 

Q
 g 

20
10

 

R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 P
LA

N
 

J)
P

 
0

7
3

6
3

9
2

4
 

- -• -,"'.,
~
 

;;
:;

;;
;0

;;
:;

;:
-

-- - - -
I#

sa 



r-
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

---
---

--
l 

IB
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
sl

 
IB

U
IL

D
IN

G
 

A
I 

. • I 

"...
,~
=
=
=
=
 

) 
~
~
_
m
 ___

 ~ __ 
; 

t. 
-., 

I If
 

L
. 

Ii 
~i

mm
!!

UM
 

p 
! 

L 
___

__
__

__
___

__
__

__
__

__
__

___
___

___
__

__
___

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__ J
 

B
LO

C
K

IN
G

 
TO

 
B

E
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 

IN
 

A
LL

 
B

A
T

H
R

O
O

M
S

 
FO

R
 

G
R

A
B

 
B

A
R

S
. 

LE
V

E
R

 
H

A
N

D
LE

 
TO

 
B

E
 

U
S

E
D

 
FO

R
 

A
LL

 
D

O
O

R
S

 
, 

LE
V

E
R

 
F

A
U

C
E

T
 

TO
 

B
E

 
U

S
E

D
 

IN
 

A
LL

 
B

A
T

H
R

O
O

M
S

 
A

N
D

 
P

O
W

D
E

R
 

R
O

O
M

S
 

~
 

).
fA

 T
n{

E
W

 C
H

E
N

G
 

A
R

C
H

m
:.

c
r I

N
C

. 

~
l
.
~
 

~ 
...

 -
&

 ..
..

. 

I~I
 """
' .... "

. 
~
~
!
3

' 
,1

$
 I.

 .. 

--12-lMT
 T

O
W

H
O

lIS
E 

.....
.. , ....

 " 
74

11
 

Io
IO

fT
 II 

IT
 R

O
A

D
 

R
IO

to
fO

M
I. 

8.
c. 

SH
E 

I'I
.A

N
 

SE
P 

0 
9 

26
11

 
S£

CO
N

O
 f

tO
R

 
Pl

A
N

 

R
E

FE
R

EN
C

E
 P

LA
N

 

j)\
'>

 
07

 3
63

9
2

4
 

~
 

• - -,,. ...... -=
= 
~
 

rli
5b 



1
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-l

 

: 
(B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 

61
 

(B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
AI

 
' 

I 
"
)
'
 

b.
:(

'M
Ii
H'
H4

'~
'V
'J
 r 

I 
I 

L
)

, 
, 

, 
L 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
___

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 J 

• 
B

LO
C

K
IN

G
 

TO
 

B
E

 
P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 
IN

 
A

LL
 

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M
S

 
FO

R
 

G
R

A
B

 
B

A
R

S
. 

LE
V

E
R

 
H

A
N

D
LE

 
TO

 
B

E
 

U
S

E
D

 
FO

R
 

A
LL

 
D

O
O

R
S

 
• 

LE
V

E
R

 
F

A
U

C
E

T
 

TO
 

B
E

 
U

S
E

D
 

IN
 

A
LL

 
S

A
 T

H
R

O
O

M
$ 

A
N

D
 

P
O

W
D

E
R

 
R

O
O

M
S

 

m
 

M
A

T
Il

IE
W

 C
H

E
N

G
 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
IN

C
. 

E
g
~
~
 

",
 

="
":"

:'"
.::

:. 
i 

."
'_

 
!!i>

!i t
w

. 
b
~
E
~

: 

=
 

~
 

12
-U

N
T

 T
a-

tO
O

S
E

: 
O

[\q
O

PN
E

H
T

 
'4

11
 

to
IO

fT
.<

.n
 R

O
.I.

D
 

R
IO

II
,j

()
l[

).
 
a
t.

 

.
~
 "'

" 
M

R
O

 f
\0

C
II

 P
\...

AH
 

SE
P 

0 
~ 

21
l~

 

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L
A

N
 

:D
P 

0
7

 J
b

S
d

:d
4

 
, ~
 - ~-- ~
 

:rt
 C

li5
e 



-1' 
" C\! " - (5) - ZC') ~ 

'" ~ (£) 

I I" · 
!:l C"), r ! ~ ~~ 1/ .... 

i ffi t--"-
~ O ••• ~ b. 

!~i§ ~;.'" 
~~ !lh ~ 

1"'~~S !A~ ~ 
~5 WI m ~~ nu .-

z 
:5 • 
0.. " • ' ' 
0: 
0 
g 
u. 

'" U 0: 
I 
f-

-.... - --,'-

n , i ! Iii 

II ,I 

• 

II I! I I , 
" 

, 

!! 
i 0" I . 

Ii 
I ! I; Ii 

II 
;- I 

z !jdl I 
:5 "'CD:' 
0.. 

'" . " l: : : --- " !ll~ 
0: -, 
0 

:----

si 
!J;.orth g 

D·· , 

! 
u. 

• 
1 I I • ~ , ; 

'" 
, 

: I . -i i z 

, 
: • II 

::::J 

, 
I : :la :! 

• : 
0 

, 
ll;! 

0: 

, 
: 

, , 
D •• 0-

(!) 


	Agenda - Cover Sheet - Council - May 14, 2012

	Minutes - Special Council - May 8, 2012
	Board in Brief - April 27, 2012
	Presentation - RF&YCC Annual Report
	#6(1) - Minutes - Finance - May 7, 2012
	#6(2) - Minutes - Planning - May 8, 2012
	#7 - 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements
	#8 - Application - 6471 Blundell Road
	#9 - Application - 11340 Williams Road
	Bylaw 8877
	Bylaw 8883
	Bylaw 8885
	Bylaw 8892
	Bylaw 8894
	Bylaw 8615
	Bylaw 8796
	Bylaw 8843
	Minutes - DPP - April 11, 2012
	Minutes - DPP - April 25, 2012
	Chair's Report - DPP - October 13 & 27, 2010
	DP to Council Package for Monday, May 14, 2012



